Republic of Iraq Ministry of Higher Education and Scientific Research Al-Nahrain University College of Science Department of Physics



q-Deformed Quantum Coherent States and Some of Their Applications

A Thesis

Submitted to the College of Science / Al–Nahrain University in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Physics

By

Ahmed Shakir Mahmood Yas

B.Sc. Physics / College of Science / Al–Nahrain University (1998) M.Sc. Physics / College of Science / Al–Nahrain University (2001)

> Supervised by Dr. Mohammed A. Z. Habeeb (Assistant Professor)

> > Jumada I 1437

February 2016

سورة: العلق

بسر <u>مَاللَّهِ ٱلرَّحْمَرُ ٱلرِّحْبَمِ</u>

ٱقْرَأْ بِٱسْمِ رَبِّكَ ٱلَّذِي خَلَقَ ٢ حَلَقَ مَن عَلَقٍ ٢ اقْرَأْ وَرَبُّكَ ٱلْأَكْرَمُ ٢ اللَّحِي عَلَّمَ بِٱلْقَلَمِ عَلَّمَر 'ٱلْإِنسَن مَا لَمْ يَعْلَمُ ٢

صدق الله العظيم

Supervisor's Certification

I certify that this thesis entitled "**q–Deformed Quantum Coherent States and Some of Their Applications**" was prepared by **Ahmed Shakir Mahmood Yas** under my supervision at the College of Science/Al–Nahrain University in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Physics.

Signature: Name: *Dr. Mohammed A. Z. Habeeb* Scientific Title: Assistant Professor Date: / / 2015

In view of the available recommendations, I forward this thesis for debate by the examining committee.

Signature:

Name: Dr. Alaa Jabbar Ghazai

Scientific Title: Assistant Professor

Title: Head of the Department of Physics

Date: / / 2015

Examining Committee Certification

We, the examining committee certify that we have read the thesis entitled "**q–Deformed Quantum Coherent States and Some of Their Applications**", and examined the student "**Ahmed Shakir Mahmood Yas**" in its contents and that in our opinion, it is acceptable for the Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Physics.

Signature: Name: *Dr. Hazim Louis Mansour* Title: Professor Address: College of Education, Al- Mustansiriyah University Date: / / 2016 (Chairman)

Signature: Name: *Dr. Laith A. Al-Ani* Title: Professor Address: College of Science, Al-Nahrain University Date: / / 2016 (Member)

Signature: Name: *Dr. Khalid A. Ahmed* Title: Professor Address: College of Science, Al- Mustansiriyah University Date: / / 2016 (Member) Signature: Name: *Dr. Saad Naji Abood* Title: Professor Address: College of Science, Al-Nahrain University Date: / / 2016 (Member)

Signature: Name: *Dr. Adel Khalaf Hamoudi* Title: Professor Address: College of Science, Baghdad University Date: / / 2016 (Member)

Signature:
Name: *Dr. Mohammed A. Z. Habeeb*Title: Assistant Professor
Address: College of Science, Al–Nahrain University
Date: / / 2016 (Member / Supervisor)

I, hereby certify upon the decision of the examining committee.

Signature: Name: *Dr. Hadi M. A. Abood* Title: Assistant Professor Address: Dean of College of Science, Al–Nahrain University Date: / / 2016





Acknowledgments

Praise be to Allah lord of the worlds and prayer and peace be upon the Prophet Muhammad and all his family and companions.

I would like to express my gratitude to my supervisor Dr. Mohammed A. Z. Habeeb for suggesting the research project, his valuable guidance and constant help throughout the research period and during writing this thesis.

I would like also to express my appreciation to the chairman of the Department of Physics, for all the support and encouragement. Thanks are also due to my colleagues and friends for their encouragement and care.

My thanks to the Dean of the College of Science and to his staff for their support and the facilities they provided.

I am also grateful to Dr. Salam S. Tawfiq, from the Dept. of Physics, University of Toronto, Canada for providing me with some literature that was difficult to find.

Finally, my deep gratitude to my parents, brothers, sisters and my wife for their patience and encouragement during the period of my study.

Ahmed Shakir Mahmood Yas September, 2015

Summary

The concept of q-deformation has found many important applications in a variety of fields in physics, such as quantum optics, atomic physics, solid state physics, nuclear physics and cosmology. This has motivated its extension to many well-established other concepts such as coherent states well-known in quantum optics. On the other hand, the interpretation of the physical meaning of the q-deformation remains an outstanding problem.

The present work is an attempt to apply the concept of q-deformed coherent states to solve this interpretation problem. The q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator is used as a model for the application of the methodology of using q-deformed coherent states to solve this problem. This is achieved by first deriving the classical Liouville equation for the q-deformed 1-D classical harmonic oscillator in the undeformed and deformed oscillator phase spaces. Then, this equation is solved by using the method of characteristics which gives the classical probability distribution function for this oscillator in phase space. The behavior of this function is then investigated by using a computer visualization method based on a computer program constructed in Mathematica[®] language.

On the quantum level, the Heisenberg equation of motion for the density operator corresponding to this 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator is expressed in the present work in terms of the standard quasiprobability distribution functions, again in the deformed and undeformed phase spaces. This helps to derive the quantum Liouville equations for this q-deformed oscillator in these phase spaces. The classical limits of these resulting Liouville equations are then approached by extending a standard procedure based on the non-deformed coherent states to the q-deformed case. In addition to the application of the standard q-deformed coherent states, a novel approach based on q-deformed coherent states due to Arik and Coon is also employed in this investigation.

Summary

The results of detailed mathematical derivations in this process of approaching the classical limit reveal that this limit is statistical in nature. This is similar to the case of the ordinary undeformed oscillator which has been proved previously. They also reveal, together with the complementary computer visualizations, more information about the physical meaning of the q-deformation. This includes the observations that the q-deformed 1-D oscillator can be interpreted as a nonlinear oscillator where the nonlinearity parameter depends on \hbar . Also, the behavior of the classical limits of the quantum Liouville equations for this oscillator is observed to show whorl shapes that can be contrasted with their classical analogs. This whorl shape behavior can be considered as a phenomenon connected with q-deformation in general; the anharmonic oscillator being a special case.

Some connection with phase space having a non-commutative geometry, resulting from q-deformation, also finds evidence in some of the results presented in this thesis.

List of Symbols

- \hbar : Planck's constant divided by 2π (Dirac's constant)
- υ : speed of light in matter
- c: speed of light in empty space
- *m*: mass of a particle
- ω : natural angular frequency of the 1-D classical harmonic oscillator

t: time

- *q* : position coordinate in phase space
- *p*: momentum coordinate in phase space
- q: real deformation parameter
- λ : nonlinearity parameter

 $[x]_q$: q-number

- D_x : dilatation (shift) operator
- \mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} : Jackson derivative operator with respect to x
- \mathcal{A} and \mathcal{B} : two dynamical variables
- α, α^* : two independent complex variables representing coordinates in complex phase space
- $H(\alpha, \alpha^*)$: Hamiltonian of the 1-D classical harmonic oscillator
- α_q, α_q^* : two independent q-deformed complex variables representing the coordinates in q-deformed complex phase space
- $\{\mathcal{A},\mathcal{B}\}$: Poisson bracket of \mathcal{A} and \mathcal{B} with respect to canonical variables \mathfrak{P} and \mathfrak{P} respectively
- ω_q : q-deformed oscillator frequency

- $\mathbb{H}_{a}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$: Hamiltonian of the q-deformed 1-D classical harmonic oscillator in α -representation $\mathcal{H}_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$: Hamiltonian of the q-deformed 1-D classical harmonic oscillator in α_a -representation $\chi_q(\alpha, \alpha^*)$: Poisson bracket $\{\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*\}_{\alpha, \alpha^*}$ multiplied by $i\hbar$ for q-deformed 1-D classical harmonic oscillator in α -representation $\eta_q(\alpha, \alpha^*)$: Poisson bracket $\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_q(\alpha, \alpha^*)\}_{\alpha, \alpha^*}$ divided by $\hbar \omega \alpha$ for q-deformed 1-D classical harmonic oscillator in α -representation $P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: classical probability distribution function for the undeformed classical harmonic oscillator in α -representation $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$: classical probability distribution function for the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in α -representation $P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$: classical probability distribution function for the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in α_q -representation $\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger}$: annihilation and creation boson operators \hat{N} : number operator \overline{n} : expectation value of the number operator \hat{H} : Hamiltonian operator of the undeformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator $\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q}$: Hamiltonian operator of the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in α -representation $\hat{\mathcal{H}}_{a}$: Hamiltonian operator of the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in α_q -representation
- $|\alpha\rangle$: coherent state (Gluaber-Sudarshan state)
- $|\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha|$: projection operator for coherent states

 $\langle \hat{A} \rangle$: expectation value of operator \hat{A} $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \hat{B} \end{bmatrix}$: commutator of operators \hat{A} and \hat{B} $\Delta_{\mathcal{P}}$: uncertainty in position Δp : uncertainty in momentum \hat{D} : displacement operator $\hat{\rho}$: density operator s: ordering parameter with s = 1, 0, -1 $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: quasiprobability distribution function $Q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: Husimi Q-function. This function represents the quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in the α -representation with s = 1 $W(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: Wigner W- function. This function represents the quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in the α -representation with s = 0 $P(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: Glauber-Sudarshan P- function. This function represents the quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in the α -representation with s = -1 $\xi \alpha, \alpha^*; t$: probability distribution function for the undeformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in α -representation $\varphi_q^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: q-analog of the quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in α -representation $Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: q-analog of the Husimi function $Q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in α -representation $P_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$: q-analog of the Glauber-Sudarshan P-function $P(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in α -representation $\xi_{\alpha} \alpha, \alpha^*; t$: q-analog of the $\xi \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ in α -representation

 $|n\rangle$: number state $|0\rangle$: ground state $\mathcal{N}(|\alpha|^2)$: normalization constant in α -representation $\mathcal{P}(n)$: Poissonian distribution with *n* excitations in a coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ $\mathbb{P}_{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$: q-analog of the Glauber-Sudarshan P-function $P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ in α_q -representation $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{N} \end{bmatrix}_{a}$: q-deformed number operator $\mathcal{N}(|\alpha_q|^2)$: normalization constant in α_q -representation $|n\rangle_{a}$: q-deformed number state $\hat{a}_q, \hat{a}_q^{\dagger}$: q-deformed annihilation and creation boson operators $\frac{D}{D\alpha_a}$: q-differential operator which is also called Jackson derivative (i.e., \mathcal{D}_x^q) \bar{n}_q : expectation value of q-deformed number operator $\left[\hat{N}\right]_q$ $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \hat{B} \end{bmatrix}_{a}$: q-commutator of operators \hat{A} and \hat{B} $||\alpha_a\rangle$: unnormalized q-deformed coherent state $\|n\rangle_{q}$: unnormalized q-deformed number state $||0\rangle_{a}$: unnormalized q-deformed ground state \mathbb{S} : basic integral

Table		Page
No		No.
(2.1)	Values of the ordering parameters, their associated types of ordered boson operators and quasiprobability distribution functions.	25
(4.1)	Forms of the function $f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and their associated types of deformation.	45
(5.1)	The expressions for the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix}$ for different values of the ordering parameter <i>s</i> .	83
(5.2)	The expressions for the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ for different values of the ordering parameter <i>s</i> .	84
(5.3)	The expressions for $\gamma_q^{(s)}$ corresponding to different values of the ordering parameter <i>s</i> .	86 86
(5.5)	The expressions for $e^{\hat{C}}$ corresponding to different <i>s</i> values.	112
	Different cases that arise in taking the limit $\hbar \rightarrow 0$ for the q-deformed oscillator.	

List of Figures

Figure		Page
No.		No.
(4.1)		67
(4.2)	The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function Q for the anharmonic oscillator in phase space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	69
(4.2)	The 2 D time and heli in a set of the election level a bility	08
	distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed	
	harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_q^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (4.42a)	
	and $q = 0.5$ in phase space, for different values of time (τ):	
	(a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	
(4.3)	The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed	69
	harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_q^{(\prime)}$ given by eqn. (4.42b)	
$(4 \ 4)$	and $q = 0.5$ in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	71
(7.7)	The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution function Q for the anharmonic oscillator in phase	/ 1

space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

Figure		Page
No.		No.
(4.5)		72
	The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution	
	function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator	
	with frequency $\omega_q^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (4.42a) and $q = 0.5$ in phase	
	space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$,	
	(c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	
(4.6)		73
	The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution a	
	function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{\prime}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator	
	with frequency $\omega_q^{(2)}$ given by eqn. (4.42b) and $q = 0.5$ in phase	
	space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$,	
	(c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	
(5.1)		122
	The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability	
	distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic	
	oscillator with frequency $\omega_q^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (5.124) and $q = 0.5$	
	in phase space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$,	
	(b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	
(5.2)		123
	The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability	
	distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic	
	oscillator with frequency $\omega_q^{(2)}$ given by eqn.(5.128) and $q = 0.5$	
	in phase space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$,	
	(b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	

Figure		Page
No.		No.
(5.3)		124
	The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability	
	distribution function $P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic	
	oscillator with frequency $\omega_q^{(3)}$ given by eqn. (5.136) and $q = 0.5$	
	in phase space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$,	
	(b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	
(5.4)		126
	The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution	
	function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator	
	with frequency $\omega_q^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (5.124) and $q = 0.5$ in phase	
	space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$,	
	(c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	
(5.5)		127
	The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution	
	function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator	
	with frequency $\omega_q^{(2)}$ given by eqn. (5.128) and $q = 0.5$ in phase	
	space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$,	
	(c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	
(5.6)		128
	The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution	
	function $P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator	
	with frequency $\omega_q^{(3)}$ given by eqn. (5.136) and $q = 0.5$ in phase	
	space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$,	
	(c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.	

Contents		
Summary	Ι	
List of Symbols	III	
List of Tables	VII	
List of Figures	VIII	
Contents	XI	
Chapter 1		
Introduction		
1.1 The q-Deformation	2	
1.2 Coherent States	3	
1.3 The f-Deformed and q-Deformed Coherent States and Some of	4	
Their Applications		
1.4 Interpretation of the Classical Limit of Quantum Systems	6	
1.5 Physical Interpretation of q-Deformation	8	
1.6 Aims of the Thesis	10	
1.7 Thesis Layout	11	
Chapter 2		
Coherent States and the Classical Limit of the Quantum Harmo	onic	
Oscillator		
2.1 The Undeformed 1-D Classical Harmonic Oscillator	14	
2.1.1 The Classical Equation of Motion	16	
2.1.2 The Classical Liouville Equation	17	
2.2 The Undeformed 1-D Quantum Harmonic Oscillator	18	
2.3 Coherent States of the 1-D Quantum Harmonic Oscillator	20	
2.3.1 Standard Definitions of Coherent States	20	
2.3.2 Some Properties of Coherent States	22	

Contents

2.4	The	Density Operator	24
2.5	The	Quantum Liouville Equation	25
2.6	Clas	ssical Limit of Quantum Systems	26
		Chapter 3	
Th	e q-D	eformed Harmonic Oscillator and q-Deformed Coherent	
		States	
3.1	Qua	intum Calculus	30
3	8.1.1	q–Numbers	30
3	8.1.2	q–Deformed Elementary Functions	31
3	8.1.3	q-Derivative (Jackson's Derivative)	33
3	8.1.4	Analog of Leibniz Rules for q-Differentiation	34
3.2	The	q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator	35
•	3.2.1	The q-Deformed Classical Harmonic Oscillator	36
	3.2.2	The q-Deformed Quantum Harmonic Oscillator	36
3.3	The	q-Deformed Coherent States	40
	3.3.1	Definition of q-Deformed Coherent States and their	40
		Generalizations	
	3.3.2	The q-Deformed Density Operator	41
		Chapter 4	
	Cla	assical Treatment of the q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator	
4.1	The	f-Deformed Coordinates Transformation	44
4.2	The	Classical Hamiltonian	46
	(A)	The Classical Hamiltonian in α -Representation	46
	(B)	The Classical Hamiltonian in α_f -Representation	46
4.3	The	Poisson Bracket $\left\{ \alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*} \right\}$	47

	(A) $\left\{\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*\right\}$ in the α -Representation	48
	(B) $\left\{\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*\right\}$ in the α_q -Representation	50
4.4	The Equation of Motion	52
	(A) α -Representation	52
	(B) α_f -Representation	55
4.5	The Classical Liouville Equation	59
	(A) α -Representation	59
	(B) α_f -Representation	62
4.6	Solution of the Classical Liouville Equation	64
4.7	Computer Visualizations for the q-Deformed Classical Harmonic	65
	Oscillator	
	Chapter 5	
The Classical Limit of the Quantum q-Deformed Harmonic		
	Oscillator	
5.1	The Quantum Liouville Equation Equation of the f-Deformed 1-D	75
	Quantum Harmonic Oscillator in the α -Representation	

- 5.1.1Solution of the Disentanglement Problem for the Operator81Functions
- 5.1.2 The q-deformed Husimi Q_q -function (s = 1), Glauber-Sudarshan P_q -function (s = -1) and the Dilatation (Shift) Operator
- 5.1.3 Zaslavskii's Method for Deriving the Quantum Liouville 94 Equation for the q-Deformed Oscillator in the α -Representation

Contents

5.2	The Quantum Liouville Equation of the q-Deformed 1-D Quantum Harmonic Oscillator in the α -Representation	99
501	Quantum Harmonic Oscillator in the a_q -Representation	00
5.2.1	The q-Analog of Glauber – Sudarshan P-Representation	99
5.2.2	The Quantum Liouville Equation in Terms of q-Derivative	105
5.3	The Classical Limit of the q-Deformed Quantum Harmonic	109
	Oscillator	
5.3.1	The Approach to the Classical Limit	110
5.3.2	The Classical Limit of the Liouville Equation for \mathcal{Q}_q in the	114
	α -Representation	
5.3.3	The Classical Limit of the Liouville Equation for P_q in the	117
	α -Representation	
5.3.4	The Classical Limit of the Liouville Equation for \mathbb{P}_q in the	118
	α_q -Representation	
5.4 Co	omputer Visualizations	121
	Chapter Six	
	Conclusions and Suggestions for Future Work	
6.1 Co	onclusions	130
6.2 Su	ggestions for Future Work	132
	Appendices	
Appendi	x A: Evaluation of the Poisson Bracket $\left\{ \alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*} \right\}$	135
Appendi	x B: Evaluation of the Poisson Brackets $\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)\}$ and	137
	$\left\{ \alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}) \right\}$	

Appendices

Appendix C: Evaluation of the Poisson Brackets

$$\left\{\mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right), P_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t\right)\right\}$$
 and $\left\{\mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t\right)\right\}$

Appendix D: The Correspondence Relations for $\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right)\right)\hat{\rho}$ and ¹⁴²

$$\hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right)\right)$$

Appendix E: Evaluation of the Commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix},$ 149

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$$

and
$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$$

Appendix F: The Action of the Dilatation (Shift) Operators $e^{\pm\lambda\alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}$ 152

and
$$e^{\pm \lambda \alpha^*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}$$
 on $F(\alpha, \alpha^*) G(\alpha, \alpha^*)$

Appendix G: The Expressions for $\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \| \alpha_q \rangle$ and $\langle \alpha_q \| \hat{a}_q$ in Terms of 155

q-Derivative

Appendix H: The Correspondence Relations for $\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_q$, $\hat{\rho}_q \hat{a}_q$, 157

$$\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{a}_q^{} \hat{\rho}_q^{}$$
 and $\hat{\rho}_q^{} \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{a}_q^{}$

References

المُلخص

Contents

10

139

167

١

ρ

Chapter One

Introduction

Introduction

1.1 The q-Deformation

The notion of deformation is inherent in physics, where quantum mechanics can be considered as a deformation of Newtonian mechanics with deformation parameter \hbar and, hence, in the limit $\hbar \rightarrow 0$, quantum mechanics reduces to classical mechanics. Similarly, special relativity is the deformation of Newtonian mechanics with deformation parameter ν/c and such that, in the limit $\nu/c \rightarrow 0$ reduces to Newtonian mechanics.

From these physical examples, one can give the following mathematical definition for q-deformation which is a q-analog theorem [1-3], where the identity expression is a generalization involving a new parameter, that returns the original theorem, in the limit as $q \rightarrow 1$ [1-3]. The history of q-calculus and q-hypergeometric functions dates back to the 18th century, where Euler (1707-1783), was the first to introduce the q-deformation parameter in his Introduction [1]. The formal power series was introduced by Gudermann (1798-1852) and Weierstrass (1815-1897) [1]. The basic hypergeometric series was introduced in the 19th century, specifically in 1846 by the German mathematician Heine [1, 2]. In the years 1909 and 1910, Jackson [4, 5] introduced the first explicit attempt to join the q-deformation with differential equations to obtain what is called the q-difference equations. Jackson is also known for the invention of the q-derivative (Jackson Derivative JD) [1, 3, 5, 6] and Jackson Integral [1, 3].

The applications of q-deformation in physics were first strongly connected with the development of the subject of quantum groups and then expanded to cover many fields in physics. In the period 1945-1950, Tamm and Dancoff [7, 8] introduced what is called Tamm-Dancoff deformed algebra. Deformed algebras are applied in quantum field theory [8]. Many years later, in 1976, Arik and Coon [9] introduced a deformed oscillator algebra in the Hilbert space H_q , where q is a real parameter. The deformed algebra with new generators was introduced by Feinsilver in 1987 [10, 11]. In 1989, the q-deformed oscillator algebra was introduced independently by Biedenharn and Macfarlane [12,13]; this q-deformed oscillator algebra was derived by adopting new definitions for the q-deformed creation and annihilation operators. Later on, specifically in the years 2002 and 2003, Quesne's oscillator algebra [14, 15] was introduced, where a new family of q-deformed coherent states were constructed. In this context, one can refer the reader to refs. [16-18].

The concept of q-deformation has found its way into real physics applications, such as the q-deformed fermions and q-deformation in thermostatics and statistical physics [19-22] and phase-diffusion of the q-deformed oscillator [23]. Other applications are the q-deformation of the Heisenberg algebra, Heisenberg equation of motion, uncertainty relation and Coulomb problem for q-Hydrogen atom [24-27]. Among these applications of the q-deformation in physics, one singles out an important application that arises as a result of attempts by many researchers [28-37] to apply the q-deformation and its generalization (f-deformation) to the well-known concept of coherent states [14,15,38].

1.2 Coherent States

In 1926, Schrödinger [39] discovered the "non-spreading wavepackets" of the harmonic oscillator. The original definition introduced by Schrödinger for these packets is that they have minimum-uncertainty product and correspond to the classical trajectory in phase space. Many years later, and specifically in 1963,

Glauber [40] called the Schrödinger [39] non-spreading wavepackets the "Coherent States" for the first time, and defined them as the eigenstates of the boson annihilation operator. The P-representation of the coherent states was introduced in 1963 by Glauber [40] and Sudarshan [41] independently. Other works by Glauber appeared in 1963 [42, 43]. The coherent states were always considered as the most classical ones among the quantum states. This notion was introduced in 1968 by Carruthers and Nieto [44]. Also, Glauber introduced more detailed clarifications of these states in 1969 [45, 46]. Thus, after the work of Glauber [40, 42] and Sudarshan [41], the coherent states became widely known and intensively used by many physicists where these states find many applications in the fields of physics and mathematical physics from solid state physics to cosmology and they represent the core of quantum optics. The work of Dodonov [47] represents an excellent review about coherent states, their types and applications. It is worth mentioning here that another technique to utilize the Glauber P-representation [40] was invented by Fan [48]. This technique is called integration within ordered product of operators (IWOP).

1.3 The f-Deformed and q-Deformed Coherent States and Some of Their Applications

A dominant direction in mathematical physics in the last decades of the 20th century was related to various deformations of the harmonic oscillator canonical commutation relation, $[\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger}] = 1$, where \hat{a} and \hat{a}^{\dagger} are the well-known annihilation and creation operators respectively [49, 50, 51]. The corresponding deformed bosonic operators \hat{a}_q and \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} were introduced, where the subscript "q" refers to the "q-deformation". However, the first study to obtain the eigenstates of the operator $\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{a}_q$ was performed by Iwata [52] in 1951. Many years later, specifically in 1976, Arik and Coon [9], and Kuryskin [53] considered a

generalization of the work of Iwata [52] to involve the case of several dimensions in order to obtain the q-deformed coherent states. A realization of the q-commutation relation, $\left[\hat{a}_{q}, \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\right]_{q} = 1$, was achieved by Jannussis et al [54] in terms of the usual bosonic operators \hat{a} and \hat{a}^{\dagger} by means of the nonlinear transformation $\hat{a}_{q} = \hat{a} f(\hat{N})$, where $\hat{N} = \hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a}$, and $f(\hat{N})$ represent a real operator function of \hat{N} . Biedenharn and Macfarlane [12, 13] in 1989 introduced independently a different type of q-deformed coherent states. The squeezing properties of these states were studied in 1990 and 1991 by Solomon and Katriel [55-56]. An excellent review of the f-deformed and q-deformed coherent states can be found in refs. [38, 47].

Thus, q-deformation has many applications in physics, where the q-deformed coherent states found their way in the field of quantum optics after the famous work of Biedenharn and Macfarlane [12, 13]. Also, the non-classical states are applied in different areas of physics, such as high energy physics, cosmology, condensed matter physics, molecular physics, and Bose-Einstein condensation [47]. The recent literature on the subject of the q-deformed coherent states and their applications in physics includes q-analogs of squeezed states, some of their non-classical properties [57], and q-deformed entangled states introduced on the basis of the IWOP-technique [58]. Moreover, the q-deformation can even be useful in actual real life situations where in 2013, Capolupo et al. [59] studied the benefit of using q-deformed coherent states to study filtered water with fractal self-similar properties.

It is worth mentioning that q-deformed coherent states are a special type of more generalized coherent states called Nonlinear Coherent States (NLCSs). These states, defined in the years 1996 and 1997 by Filho et al., and Man'ko et al.

[60,61] as the eigenstate of the f-deformed boson annihilation operator, represent the generalization of the q-deformed boson annihilation operator \hat{a}_q [60,61].

The NLCSs are sometimes called the f-deformed coherent states in the work of Man'ko et al. [61] on the f-oscillator. However, the nonlinear coherent states have attracted much attention in recent years [62-74], mostly because they exhibit non-classical properties of the radiation field, such as squeezing, sub-Poissonian photon statistics and photon anti-bunching [62-74].

1.4 Interpretation of the Classical Limit of Quantum Systems

Since the formulation of the quantum theory by Schrödinger in 1926 [49, 50], many attempts were performed to interpret the classical limit of the quantum systems. One of these attempts was implemented by Schrödinger to produce what was called later on the coherent states [47] for the harmonic oscillator. So, this attempt can be considered as the first attempt to approach the classical limit where these coherent states have a minimum uncertainty product. Another attempt was introduced by Dirac [75] in 1927, when he considered classical mechanics as the limiting case of quantum mechanics when $\hbar \rightarrow 0$. This limit implies that the time dependent Schrödinger equation [49, 50, 51] for a single particle in an external field reduces to the well-known Newton's equation of motion. But this limit is still a controversial problem and represents one of the problems still facing the interpretation of quantum mechanics.

However, Ghosh et al. [76] proved in 1977 that the classical limit of the quantum harmonic oscillator is statistical in nature, where the fluid dynamical equations belonging to what is called the single particle Schrödinger fluid have been obtained. These fluid equations reveal much of the physics involved in the classical limit of quantum systems and shed light on the outstanding problem of the interpretation of quantum mechanics. Another example of the interpretation

of quantum systems by using the classical limit was introduced in 1986 by Milburn [77] when he interpreted the quantum anharmonic oscillator by using the time-evolution equation for the Husimi function (quasiprobability distribution function) [77] in terms of undeformed phase space [77]. A simulation using the solution of this equation was obtained by him to reveal the nature of the quantum anharmonic oscillator in phase space. The behavior of the Husimi function exhibited a whorl structure which becomes increasingly more convoluted on a finer and finer scale as $t \rightarrow \infty$. Also, Habeeb in 1987 [78] interpreted the quantum damped oscillator system in the light of the work of Ghosh [76]. In this work the interpretation of such system was deduced from the conservative form of the obtained fluid-dynamical equations, where it was found that the classical limit for this quantum oscillator cannot be considered as the quantum analog of the classical damped oscillator. In 2009, Jafarpour and Tahamtan [79] obtained the classical limit for the octic anharmonic oscillator from the expectation value of the eigenenergy and eigenstate for the Rayleigh-Schrödinger perturbation theory. The classical limit for this oscillator revealed that there is a frequency shift proportional to the sixth power of the amplitude of this system.

Finally, it should be stated that the statistical description of microscopic systems is usually obtained by employing the quasiprobability distribution functions [45, 76, 80-86] in phase space. The first attempts in this direction were introduced by Wigner in 1932 [45, 80-86,107] to study the quantum corrections to classical statistical mechanics. His particular type of distribution function has become to be known as the Wigner distribution function [45, 80-86,107]. This function is normalized but can have a negative value [45, 80-86,107]. It has found many applications, primarily in statistical mechanics, and also in areas such as quantum optics. Another type of quasiprobability distribution function is the well-known P-representation of Glauber and Sudarshan [40, 41], which, like the Wigner function, can be well defined or singular [45], and has also found extensive use.

Also, the Q-function (Husimi function) was introduced in 1940 by Husimi [45, 80-86,107], which is a normalized function and has always positive values, and represents a third type of quasiprobability distribution functions.

1.5 Physical Interpretation of q-Deformation

There have been many attempts to reveal the physical meaning and interpretation of q-deformation. In this context, the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator has been used as a good example of this situation. In 1991, Buzek [87] evaluated the time-evolution of the mean values of the q (position) and the p (momentum) for the q-oscillator in order to obtain the periodic classical behavior, where the non- periodic behavior of this oscillator was interpreted as the interaction of the quantum oscillator with another system. In 1992, Shabanov [88] studied also the physical meaning and interpretation of the same oscillator used by Buzek but in a different manner. Shabanov obtained the q-deformed variables via the standard Heisenberg commutation relations, and defined the q-deformation parameter, q,

to be a function of \hbar and some dimensional parameter, ℓ_q where $q = e^{-\hbar/\ell_q^2 \omega}$.

To interpret this oscillator, he applied the classical limit $\hbar \rightarrow 0$, $q \rightarrow 1$ for the canonical variables to arrive at the classical theory. The second attempt by Shabanov [89] was more rigorous than the first attempt, where he introduced in 1993 the path integral in his approach. Hence, the classical theory was obtained by applying the semi classical approximation. It turns out that the q-oscillator can be interpreted as a particle with a friction force acting on the particle that is proportional to its velocity. In the same year, Chaichian and Demichev [90] constructed a q-deformed path integral and applied the quasi-classical limit with some specific conditions to obtain the classical equation of motion. Also, Man'ko et al. [91] studied both the quantum and classical q-oscillator from the

corresponding quantum q-oscillator and interpret the q-oscillator as a classical oscillator with a special type of nonlinearity, where the frequency of the oscillator is a function of the energy which is a constant of the motion. Man'ko also published further works in the same context in 1997 and 1998 [61, 92] in which he introduced the concept of the f-oscillator. Gruver [93] studied the dynamical properties of the q-deformed oscillator and found that the q-oscillator is an anharmonic oscillator with a q-deformation parameter which can be interpreted as a measure of anharmonicity. Many years later, and specifically in 2007, Jafarov et al. [94] introduced a different technique to understand the q-deformation for the quantum harmonic oscillator by studying the behavior of the density plot for both Wigner and Husimi quasiprobability distribution functions for this oscillator. Another attempt to interpret q-deformation was made in the year 2014 where Batouli and El Baz [95] studied the q-deformation for the quantum harmonic oscillator in a way similar to the work of Buzek [87] but with some modifications. These modifications led to a different interpretation of the q-deformation of this oscillator, where it was found that the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator is the quantum version of the classical forced oscillator with a modified q-dependent frequency, such that in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$ the driving force disappears.

From another point of view, the q-deformation can be interpreted in terms of non-commutative quantum mechanics, introduced by Lavagno et al. in 2006 [96], where the meaning of q-deformation was investigated by applying non-commutative q-calculus. Then, they obtained the generalized q-classical theory which is defined by means of the q-deformed Poisson bracket. Also, Eftekharzadeh et al. and Benatti et al. [97-99] studied in the period 2005-2014 the interpretation of the non-commutative quantum mechanics by applying a special classical limiting to the non-commutativity.

Despite all the attempts that were made to interpret q-deformation, there is still a problem in understanding the physics behind this kind of deformation. This has motivated the present work which is an attempt to investigate the physical nature of q-deformation in the quantum oscillator case via the q-deformed coherent states on the basis of Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation to obtain the Heisenberg equation of motion (quantum Liouville equation) then approach the classical limit to recover the classical Liouville equation of the q-deformed oscillator.

1.6 Aims of the Thesis

The major aims of this thesis are:

- 1- The derivation of the 1-D classical Liouville equation in undeformed and deformed phase spaces for q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator.
- 2- Investigation into the possibility of finding a well-behaved analytical solution for this equation by using the well-known analytical solution methods to solve partial differential equations. This solution will produce the probability distribution function belonging to the q-deformed 1-D classical harmonic oscillator in phase space.
- 3- Studying the time-evolution of the probability distribution function to investigate its behavior in phase space. This investigation is performed by writing a computer simulation program in Mathematica[®].
- 4- Generalization of the Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation for the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in such a way as to handle the q-deformation problem by overcoming the problem of operators disentanglement in order to derive the quantum Liouville equation in the undeformed phase space.

- 5- Employing Zaslavskii's method [129] to derive the *Q*-representation for the quantum Liouville equation of this oscillator in the undeformed phase space for comparison purposes.
- 6- Investigation into the possibility of deriving the q-analog of Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation in the deformed phase space. This permits the derivation of the P-representation for the quantum Liouville equation of the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in this deformed phase space.
- 7- Investigation into the possibility to obtain the classical limit for the obtained quantum Liouville equation in order to obtain the corresponding q-deformed
 1-D classical Liouville equation.
- 8- Attempting to solve these equations to obtain the quasiprobability distribution functions for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator.
- 9- Finally, using a technique similar to that used in the classical treatment, studying the time-evolution of these probability distribution functions in order to investigate their behavior in phase space.

1.7 Thesis Layout

To achieve the aims stated previously, the rest of the thesis is organized as follows. **Chapter Two** is devoted to the introduction of the mathematical concepts and relations that are relevant to coherent states and the classical limit of the ordinary harmonic oscillator. Then, in **Chapter Three**, the concepts of quantum calculus, including q-numbers, q-deformed elementary functions, q-derivative as well as the equations governing the q-deformed classical and quantum harmonic oscillators are given. The q-deformed coherent states and some of their properties are also introduced in this chapter with some mathematical details together with the definition of the q-deformed density operator. **Chapter Four** is devoted to the construction of the q-deformed oscillator and its f-deformed generalized version and the derivation of the classical Liouville equations for these oscillators. A solution for these Liouville equations and a simulation method is also introduced in this chapter and a computer visualizing method is presented to investigate these oscillators in phase space together with a discussion of the obtained results. In **Chapter Five**, the q-deformed quantum oscillator is constructed and then its quantum Liouville equation is derived in terms of the Glauber–Sudarshan quasiprobability distribution function. Also, the classical limit is investigated for the obtained quantum Liouville equation along the same lines used in Chapter **Six** is dedicated to the main conclusions and suggestions for future work.

In addition, (8) Appendices are devoted to give the full mathematical derivations for some relations and mathematical expressions that were used in this thesis.

Chapter Two

nononono

Coherent States and the Classical Limit of the Quantum Harmonic

Oscillator

Coherent States and the Classical Limit of the Quantum Harmonic Oscillator

The undeformed simple harmonic oscillator (ordinary simple harmonic oscillator) (SHO) represents the standard system that is used in physics to simulate many systems in nature. In this chapter a short review is given about the undeformed classical and quantum SHO to serve the aim of deriving the time-evolution equations of motion for both classical and quantum oscillators.

2.1 The Undeformed 1-D Classical Harmonic Oscillator

The Hamiltonian of the 1-D-SHO with mass *m* and angular frequency ω is defined as [100]

$$H = \frac{p^2}{2m} + \frac{m\omega^2 q^2}{2}$$
(2.1)

where γ and p represent the classical position and momentum respectively. The Poisson bracket for any two dynamical variables \mathcal{A} and \mathcal{B} with respect to the classical coordinates (γ, p) in classical phase-space is defined as [100]:

$$\left\{\mathcal{A},\mathcal{B}\right\}_{q,p} = \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{A}}{\partial q}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{B}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{A}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{B}}{\partial q}\right)_{p}$$
(2.2)

Therefore, the Poisson bracket $\{q, p\}$ with respect to canonical variables (q, p) is (the subscript q, p will be dropped from now on):

$$\left\{\boldsymbol{q},\boldsymbol{p}\right\} = 1 \tag{2.3}$$

since γ and p are considered to be independent variables. The independent variables γ and p that have Poisson bracket defined in eqn. (2.3) are called canonical variables [100]. One can also define the Hamiltonian in eqn. (2.1) in terms of non-canonical complex independent variables α and α^* , where [77,91,101]:

$$\alpha = \sqrt{\frac{m\omega}{2\hbar}} \, \varphi + \frac{i\, p}{\sqrt{2\hbar m\omega}} \tag{2.4}$$

$$\alpha^* = \sqrt{\frac{m\omega}{2\hbar}} \, q - \frac{i\,p}{\sqrt{2\hbar\,m\omega}} \tag{2.5}$$

The appearance of \hbar in eqns. (2.4) and (2.5) is to provide a convenient scaling for various physical quantities even though one is dealing with a classical system here [77].

The Poisson bracket $\{\alpha, \alpha^*\}$ with respect to canonical variables γ and p is given as [101]:

$$\left\{\alpha,\alpha^*\right\} = -\left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right) \tag{2.6}$$

But, since from eqns. (2.4) and (2.5):

$$q = \sqrt{\frac{\hbar}{2m\omega}} \left(\alpha + \alpha^*\right) \tag{2.7}$$

$$\boldsymbol{p} = -i\sqrt{\frac{\hbar m\omega}{2}} \left(\alpha - \alpha^*\right) \tag{2.8}$$

then, substituting eqns. (2.7) and (2.8) into eqn. (2.1) one obtains [91]:

$$H(\alpha, \alpha^*) = \hbar \,\omega \,\alpha \,\alpha^* \tag{2.9}$$
2.1.1 The Classical Equation of Motion

The equation of motion for the system defined by the Hamiltonian of eqn. (2.9) is obtained from Hamilton's equations as [91]:

$$\dot{\alpha} = \left\{ \alpha, H\left(\alpha, \alpha^*\right) \right\}$$
(2.10)

where [91,101]:

$$\left\{\alpha, H\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\} = \left\{\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\alpha, H\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}}$$
(2.11)

But since,

$$\left\{ \alpha, H(\alpha, \alpha^*) \right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^*} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial \alpha} \right)_{\alpha^*} \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^*)}{\partial \alpha^*} \right)_{\alpha} - \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial \alpha^*} \right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^*)}{\partial \alpha} \right)_{\alpha^*}$$

$$(2.12)$$

and,

then, substituting eqns. (2.13) into eqn. (2.12), one obtains:

$$\left\{\alpha, H\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial H\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha}$$
(2.14)

Substituting eqn. (2.9) into eqn. (2.14) and using the result together with eqn. (2.6) in eqn. (2.11), one obtains the Poisson bracket $\{\alpha, H(\alpha, \alpha^*)\}$. Finally, substituting the result into eqn. (2.10), one obtains:

$$\dot{\alpha} = -i\omega\alpha \tag{2.15}$$

The solution of eqn. (2.15) is

$$\alpha(t) = \alpha(0) e^{-i\omega t} \tag{2.16}$$

where $\alpha(0)$ is the amplitude or the value of $\alpha(t)$ at t = 0. Similarly, the complex conjugates of eqns. (2.15) and (2.16) are given as:

$$\dot{\alpha}^* = i\omega\alpha^* \tag{2.17}$$

and,

$$\alpha^*(t) = \alpha^*(0) e^{i\omega t} \tag{2.18}$$

2.1.2 The Classical Liouville Equation

The classical Liouville equation (or time-evolution equation) in phase space is given in terms of the Poisson bracket as [100]

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{A}}{\partial t} = \left\{ H(\alpha, \alpha^*), \mathcal{A} \right\}$$
(2.19)

Letting, $\mathcal{A} = P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in eqn. (2.19), this equation becomes:

$$\frac{\partial P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ H(\alpha, \alpha^*), P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t) \right\}$$
(2.20)

where, $P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ represents the classical probability distribution function for the 1-D SHO in phase-space. But since,

$$\left\{H(\alpha,\alpha^*), P_{CL}(\alpha,\alpha^*;t)\right\} = \left\{\alpha,\alpha^*\right\} \cdot \left\{H(\alpha,\alpha^*), P_{CL}(\alpha,\alpha^*;t)\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^*}$$
(2.21)

and,

$$\left\{ H(\alpha, \alpha^*), P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t) \right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^*} = \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^*)}{\partial \alpha} \right)_{\alpha^*} \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)}{\partial \alpha^*} \right) - \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^*)}{\partial \alpha^*} \right)_{\alpha^*} \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)}{\partial \alpha} \right)$$

$$(2.22)$$

then, using the Hamiltonian of eqn. (2.9), one obtains:

$$\left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} = \hbar \omega \alpha^{*} \\
\left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} = \hbar \omega \alpha$$
(2.23)

Substituting eqn. (2.23) in eqn. (2.22), and using the result in eqn. (2.21) together with the eqn. (2.6), one obtains the expression for the Poisson bracket $\{H(\alpha, \alpha^*), P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)\}$. Using this result, eqn. (2.20) becomes:

$$\frac{\partial P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega \left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right) P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$$
(2.24)

Equation (2.24) represents the classical Liouville equation for the classical undeformed 1-D SHO in phase space.

2.2 The Uneformed 1-D Quantum Harmonic Oscillator

The undeformed boson operators \hat{a} and \hat{a}^{\dagger} are defined in terms of position and momentum operators \hat{q} and \hat{p} respectively, as [49-51]:

$$\hat{a} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\hbar m\omega}} \left(m\omega \hat{q} + i \hat{p} \right) \qquad \text{(annihilation operator)} \tag{2.25}$$

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2\hbar m\omega}} \left(m\omega \hat{q} - i \hat{p} \right) \qquad \text{(creation operator)} \tag{2.26}$$

The commutation relations for $(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})$ and (\hat{q}, \hat{p}) are given as [49-51, 91]:

$$\left[\hat{\boldsymbol{q}}, \hat{\boldsymbol{p}}\right] = i\hbar \tag{2.27}$$

$$\left[\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right]=1$$
(2.28)

where,

$$\hat{\boldsymbol{q}} = \boldsymbol{q} \tag{2.29}$$

$$\hat{\boldsymbol{p}} = -i\hbar \frac{d}{d\boldsymbol{q}} \tag{2.30}$$

Therefore, the Hamiltonian operator of the 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator can be defined in terms of the boson operators as [49-51]:

$$\hat{H} = \left(\frac{\hbar\omega}{2}\right) \left(\hat{a}\,\hat{a}^{\dagger} + \hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\,\right) = \hbar\,\omega \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} + \frac{1}{2}\right) = \hbar\,\omega \left(\hat{a}\,\hat{a}^{\dagger} - \frac{1}{2}\right) \tag{2.31}$$

Also, one usually defines the number operator, \hat{N} , as

$$\hat{N} = \hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \tag{2.32}$$

Hence,

$$\hat{N} + 1 = \hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger} \tag{2.33}$$

and in terms of eqns. (2.32) and (2.33), the Hamiltonian operator becomes:

$$\hat{H} = \hbar \omega \left(\hat{N} + \frac{1}{2} \right) \tag{2.34}$$

Then, the expectation value of the Hamiltonian operator can be calculated as [49-51]:

$$\left\langle \hat{H} \right\rangle = \left\langle n \left| \hat{H} \right| n \right\rangle = \hbar \omega \left(n + \frac{1}{2} \right)$$
(2.35)

where the state $|n\rangle$ is nth excited number state defined as [49-51]:

$$|n\rangle = \frac{\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right)^{n}}{\sqrt{n!}} |0\rangle \quad ; n = 0, 1, 2, \cdots$$
(2.36)

It satisfies the relations [49-51]

$$\begin{array}{l}
\hat{a}|n\rangle = \sqrt{n} |n-1\rangle \\
\hat{a}^{\dagger}|n\rangle = \sqrt{n+1} |n+1\rangle \\
\hat{a}|0\rangle = 0
\end{array}$$
(2.37)

and,

where the state $|0\rangle$ is the vacuum (or ground) state with occupation number n=0.

2.3 Coherent States of the 1-D Quantum Harmonic Oscillator

In quantum systems, one cannot measure the position of a particle and its momentum precisely at the same time because of the Heisenberg uncertainty principle. Therefore, the best way to talk about a quantum state that is analogues to classical motion is a localized state. Such a state is the "Coherent State" [39, 40, 42, 43].

2.3.1 Standard Definitions of Coherent States:

A coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ can be defined in three different ways as follows:

a) As eigenstate of the boson annihilation operator, or [40,102-108]:

$$\hat{a}|\alpha\rangle = \alpha|\alpha\rangle$$
 (2.38)

where α is the eigenvalue of the annihilation operator \hat{a} when acting on $|\alpha\rangle$, which is a complex number since \hat{a} is a non-Hermitian operator.

b) As minimum-uncertainty state (MUS):

According to this definition, it is required that the coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ satisfies the minimum-uncertainty relation as [42, 43, 83]:

$$\left(\Delta \varphi\right)^{2} \cdot \left(\Delta \varphi\right)^{2} = \frac{\hbar^{2}}{4} \tag{2.39}$$

where $(\Delta_{\mathcal{P}})^2$ and $(\Delta_{\mathcal{P}})^2$ are defined as [103],

$$\left(\Delta \boldsymbol{g}\right)^{2} = \left\langle \boldsymbol{g}^{2} \right\rangle - \left\langle \boldsymbol{g} \right\rangle^{2} = \left(\frac{\hbar}{2m\omega}\right) \tag{2.40}$$

and,

$$\left(\Delta \boldsymbol{p}\right)^{2} = \left\langle \boldsymbol{p}^{2} \right\rangle - \left\langle \boldsymbol{p} \right\rangle^{2} = \left(\frac{\hbar m\omega}{2}\right) \tag{2.41}$$

and the expectation values are taken with respect to the coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$.

c) As the state generated from the ground state $|0\rangle$ by acting with the displacement operator $\hat{D}(\alpha)$, or [102,104,109]:

$$\left|\alpha\right\rangle = \hat{D}\left|0\right\rangle \tag{2.42}$$

where,

$$\hat{D}(\alpha) = e^{\alpha \, \hat{a}^{\dagger} - \alpha^* \hat{a}} \tag{2.43}$$

It is known that all three definitions of the coherent states $|\alpha\rangle$ can be shown to be equivalent for the SHO [103].

Also, it can be shown that the coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ as defined above, can be expanded in Fock space as [40, 42, 43]:

$$|\alpha\rangle = e^{-\frac{|\alpha|^2}{2}} \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \frac{\alpha^n}{\sqrt{n!}} |n\rangle$$
(2.44)

where

$$\alpha |^2 = \alpha \alpha^* \tag{2.45}$$

2.3.2 Some Properties of Coherent States:

Coherent states of the SHO have a number of important properties. In this section, some of these properties that are of relevance to the work in this thesis are reviewed. For further mathematical details about these properties and other properties one is referred to refs. [83, 102-110].

(a) The set of coherent states $\{|\alpha\rangle\}$ is normalizable with normalization constant

$$\mathcal{N}(|\alpha|^2)$$
 given as [97,99]:
 $\mathcal{N}(|\alpha|^2) = e^{-\frac{|\alpha|^2}{2}}$ (2.46)

(b) These coherent states are non-orthogonal states in the sense [102-110]:

$$\langle \alpha | \beta \rangle = e^{-\left(\frac{1}{2}\right) \left(\left| \alpha \right|^2 + \left| \beta \right|^2 - 2\alpha^* \beta \right)}$$
(2.47)

or,

$$\left|\left\langle \alpha \left|\beta\right\rangle\right|^{2} = e^{-\left|\alpha-\beta\right|^{2}}$$
(2.48)

Hence, for $\alpha \neq \beta$ these states become approximately orthogonal since

 $|\alpha - \beta|^2 \to \infty$ as $\langle \alpha | \beta \rangle \to 0$ [102-110].

(c) The set of coherent states $\{|\alpha\rangle\}$ resolves the identity:

This means that [83, 102-110]

$$\frac{1}{\pi} \int d^2 \alpha |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| = 1 \tag{2.49}$$

where,

$$d^2 \alpha = d\alpha \, d\alpha^* \tag{2.50}$$

In view of eqn. (2.47), the set of coherent states $\{|\alpha\rangle\}$ forms an overcomplete set

of states, where $\sum_{n=0}^{\infty} |n\rangle \langle n| = 1$ represents the completeness relation for number

states in Hilbert space.

(d) The expectation value of the Hamiltonian operator \hat{H} in the coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ is given as [108-110]:

$$\left\langle \hat{H} \right\rangle = \left\langle \alpha | \hat{H} | \alpha \right\rangle = \hbar \omega \left\{ \left\langle \alpha \left| \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} + \frac{1}{2} \right) \right| \alpha \right\rangle \right\} = \hbar \omega \left(\left| \alpha \right|^{2} + \frac{1}{2} \right)$$
(2.51)

(e) The expectation value \overline{n} of the number operator \hat{N} in the coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ is given as [102,108-110]:

$$\overline{n} = \left\langle \hat{N} \right\rangle = \left\langle \alpha | \hat{N} | \alpha \right\rangle = \left\langle \alpha | \hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} | \alpha \right\rangle = \left| \alpha \right|^2$$
(2.52)

(f) The probability $\mathcal{P}(n)$ of measuring *n* excitations in a coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ is Poisson distributed since,

$$\mathcal{P}(n) = \left| \langle n | \alpha \rangle \right|^2 = \left(\frac{|\alpha|^{2n}}{n!} \right) e^{-|\alpha|^2}$$
(2.53)

Substituting \overline{n} from eqn. (2.52) into eqn. (2.53) one gets [102,108-110]:

$$\mathcal{P}(n) = \left| \langle n | \alpha \rangle \right|^2 = \left(\frac{(\overline{n})^n}{n!} \right) e^{-\overline{n}}$$
(2.54)

It is clear that eqn. (2.53) represents a Poissonian distribution [102,108-110].

2.4 The Density Operator

The density operator $\hat{\rho}$ is an operator associated with the probability of finding any quantum system under consideration in a certain state [49, 50]. In the coherent state representation, this operator can be defined in terms of the weight function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ with ordering parameter, *s*, as [41, 42, 45, 46]:

$$\hat{\rho} = \int d^2 \alpha \, \varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*) \, |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \tag{2.55}$$

The weight function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ represents a quasiprobability distribution function [45, 46]. A quasiprobability distribution is just like a true probability distribution from which one can calculate the average values. However, it differs from a true probability in that it can have negative as well as positive values besides other properties [45, 46, 80, 81, 84].

The values of the ordering parameter, s, and their associated quasiprobability distribution functions are illustrated in Table (2.1)

Table (2.1)

Values of the ordering parameter *s*, their associated types of ordered boson operators and quasiprobability distribution functions.

S	$\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$	type of ordered bosons operators		type of quasiprobability distribution functions	
1	$\varphi^{(1)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$	normal ordered	$\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}$	Q-function (Husimi)	$Q(lpha, lpha^*)$
0	$\varphi^{(0)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$	symmetrical ordered	$\left(\frac{1}{2}\right)\left(\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger}+\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right)$	W-function (Wigner)	$W(lpha, lpha^*)$
-1	$\varphi^{(-1)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$	anti-normal ordered	$\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger}$	P-function (Glauber, Sudarshan)	$P(\alpha, \alpha^*)$

2.5 The Quantum Liouville Equation

The equation of motion for any operator \hat{A} in the Heisenberg picture is given by the Heisenberg equation of motion as [49, 50]:

$$\frac{\partial \hat{\mathcal{A}}}{\partial t} = \left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right) \left[\hat{\mathcal{A}}, \hat{H}\right]$$
(2.56)

For the density operator, $\hat{\rho}$, this equation becomes [49, 50]:

$$\frac{\partial \hat{\rho}}{\partial t} = \left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right) \left[\hat{\rho}, \hat{H}\right]$$
(2.57)

Eqn. (2.57) is the analog of the classical Liouville equation (2.20) which can be considered as quantum Liouville equation.

2.6 Classical Limit of Quantum Systems

The expectation value of the Heisenberg equation of motion for any operator \hat{A} can be obtained from eqn. (2.56). In general, it is written as [49, 50]

$$\left\langle \frac{\partial \hat{\mathcal{A}}}{\partial t} \right\rangle = \left(\frac{i}{\hbar} \right) \left\langle \left[\hat{\mathcal{A}}, \hat{H} \right] \right\rangle$$
(2.58)

Eqn. (2.58) is the quantum analog of the equation of motion for a classical dynamical variable \mathcal{A} in a Hamiltonian system as given in eqn. (2.19).

It is well known that quantum mechanics should go over to classical mechanics whenever the commutators divided by " $i\hbar$ " go over into the corresponding Poisson brackets in the limit $\hbar \rightarrow 0$ [49, 50, 75]. Thus, eqn. (2.58) goes over into eqn. (2.19) in the classical limit. This is Ehrenfest's theorem in its general form [49, 50, 75]. Therefore, one can investigate if any quantum system has a classical counterpart by applying this theorem. This application is very important as it sheds light on the outstanding problem of the interpretation of quantum mechanics [76-78].

A good example of applying the classical limit for quantum systems is the 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator, where the standard method to approach the classical limit for this oscillator is achieved via coherent states. This method can be approached by using the density operator, $\hat{\rho}$, in the Heisenberg equation of motion. The best example in this respect is that of Ghosh et al. [76] for the SHO which can be summarized as follows.

It is well known that the density operator, $\hat{\rho}$, can be written in the Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation as [40, 42, 45, 46] (see also Sec. (2.4)):

$$\hat{\rho} = \int d^2 \alpha \ P(\alpha, \alpha^*) \ |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \tag{2.59}$$

Substituting the Hamiltonian of eqn. (2.31) in eqn. (2.57), one gets [76]:

$$\frac{\partial \hat{\rho}}{\partial t} = i\omega \left\{ \hat{\rho} \ \hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} - \hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \ \hat{\rho} \right\}$$
(2.60)

Eqn. (2.60) can be simplified by re-arranging terms such that all annihilation operators, \hat{a} , are to the left and all creation operators, \hat{a}^{\dagger} , are to the right for all operator products (anti-normal ordering) [42–45,46]. This process can be achieved by using integration by parts and the following relations [76,108,109,111,112]:

$$\hat{a}\,\hat{\rho} = \int d^2\alpha \,|\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha|\,\,\alpha\,P(\alpha,\alpha^*) \tag{2.61}$$

$$\hat{\rho} \, \hat{a}^{\dagger} = \int d^2 \alpha |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \, \alpha^* P(\alpha, \alpha^*) \tag{2.62}$$

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha |\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha| \left(\alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right) P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$$
(2.63)

$$\hat{\rho} \,\hat{a} = \int d^2 \alpha |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha | \left(\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} \right) P(\alpha, \alpha^*) \tag{2.64}$$

Eqns. (2.61) - (2.64) can be written in the form of one-to-one correspondence as [76,108,109,111,112]:

$$\hat{a}\,\hat{\rho} \to \alpha \,P(\alpha,\alpha^*)$$
 (2.65)

$$\hat{\rho} \, \hat{a}^{\dagger} \to \alpha^* P(\alpha, \alpha^*) \tag{2.66}$$

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{\rho} \rightarrow \left(\alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right) P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$$
 (2.67)

$$\hat{\rho} \hat{a} \rightarrow \left(\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}\right) P(\alpha, \alpha^*)$$
 (2.68)

Therefore, the Heisenberg equation of motion, eqn. (2.60), is translated into the P-representation as [76]:

$$\frac{\partial P(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega \left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right) P(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$$
(2.69)

One can consider eqn. (2.69) as representing the classical Liouville equation by interchanging $P(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ by $P_{CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ (i.e.; classical probability distribution function) because eqn. (2.69) does not contain any quantum term (i.e., \hbar does not appear in this equation). Also, defining the mass density and the local hydrodynamic velocity, one can consider another interpretation of the classical limit in terms of the continuity and Euler equations of the incompressible fluid dynamics as can be found in ref. [76].

The importance of this approach to the classical limit of a quantum system will become clearer in the next chapters, specifically when the deformed harmonic oscillator and the approach to its classical limit are introduced.

Chapter Three

The q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator and q-Deformed Coherent States

The q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator and q-Deformed Coherent States

3.1 Quantum Calculus

Quantum calculus is a branch of calculus that arises naturally from studying the subject of quantum groups. It is different from ordinary calculus, but they approach each other in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$ and coincide when q is equal to unity. In the next sections, some mathematical details about quantum calculus that are needed in the next chapters will be introduced.

3.1.1 q–Numbers

In general, q-numbers are classified into two types according to the q-deformation parameter under consideration; if they are real q-numbers or complex ones. In this thesis, the interest will be in real q-deformation parameter in the range of values 0 < q < 1. The real q-deformation parameter can be defined in terms of 'x' which could be ordinary number or operator as [16, 17, 113, 114]:

$$[x]_q = \frac{q^x - q^{-x}}{q - q^{-1}} \tag{3.1}$$

which is invariant (symmetrical) under the substitution $q \rightarrow q^{-1}$. One can also define

$$q = e^{\lambda} \tag{3.2}$$

where λ represents the nonlinearity parameter in the range of values

$$-\infty < \lambda < 0$$
, then,
 $\lambda = \ln q$ (3.3)

Using eqns. (3.2) and (3.3) in eqn. (3.1), one can write:

$$[x]_{q} = \frac{\sinh(\lambda x)}{\sinh(\lambda)}$$
(3.4)

There is another definition for the q-number $[x]_q$ as [116,117]:

$$[x]_q = \frac{q^x - 1}{q - 1} \tag{3.5}$$

which is non-symmetrical under the substitution $q \rightarrow q^{-1}$.

In a similar manner as before, using eqns. (3.2) and (3.3) in eqn. (3.5), the q-deformed number $[x]_q$ becomes:

$$[x]_q = \frac{e^{\lambda x} - 1}{e^{\lambda} - 1} \tag{3.6}$$

It can be noted that both definitions of the q-number $[x]_q$ coincide with the ordinary number x in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$, i.e.,

$$\lim_{q \to 1} [x]_q = x \tag{3.7}$$

3.1.2 q–Deformed Elementary Functions

In addition to q-deformed numbers, some q-deformed elementary functions can be introduced, where according to Euler's 1st and 2nd identities [3]:

$$(1+x)_{q}^{\infty} = \sum_{j=0}^{\infty} q^{j(j-1)/2} \left(\frac{x^{j}}{(1-q)(1-q^{2})\cdots(1-q^{j})} \right)$$
(Euler's 1st identity)

(3.8)

$$\frac{1}{(1-x)_{q}^{\infty}} = \sum_{j=0}^{\infty} \left(\frac{x^{j}}{(1-q)(1-q^{2})\cdots(1-q^{j})} \right)$$
 (Euler's 2nd identity) (3.9)

Then, according to eqns. (3.8) and (3.9), there are two types of q-exponential functions which are defined as [3]:

$$e_q^x = \sum_{j=0}^{\infty} \left(\frac{x^j}{[j]_q!} \right) \tag{3.10}$$

and,

$$E_{q}(x) = \sum_{j=0}^{\infty} q^{j(j-1)/2} \left(\frac{x^{j}}{[j]_{q}!} \right)$$
(3.11)

where $[j]_q!$ represents the q-analog of the factorial, defined as [1,3]

$$[j]_{q}! = [j]_{q} [j-1]_{q} [j-2]_{q} \cdots [1]_{q}$$
(3.12)

$$[0]_q! = 1$$
 (3.13)

Also, q-trigonometric functions are defined as [1, 3,115]

$$\sin_q(x) = \sum_{j=0}^{\infty} (-1)^j \frac{x^{2j+1}}{[2j+1]_q!}$$
(3.14)

$$\cos_{q}(x) = \sum_{j=0}^{\infty} (-1)^{j} \frac{x^{2j}}{[2j]_{q}!}$$
(3.15)

3.1.3 q-Derivative (Jackson's Derivative)

The q-analog of the ordinary derivative was first introduced by Jackson in 1909 [4]. The Jackson derivative operator with respect to x, denoted as \mathcal{D}_x^q , is defined in terms of the dilatation (shift) operator D_x [3,113-116] as:

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} = \frac{D_{x} - (D_{x})^{-1}}{\left(q - q^{-1}\right)x}$$
(3.16)

where

$$D_{\chi} = q^{\chi} \frac{\partial}{\partial x}$$
(3.17)

Also, the dilatation operator can be defined by using ordinary differential calculus

(i.e.,
$$D_x = q^x \frac{d}{dx}$$
) as given in refs. [3,114].

Other possible definitions of \mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} are also found in the literature. For example, the definition

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} = \frac{D_{x} - 1}{(q - 1)x}$$
(3.18)

is also used [114,116].

The Jackson derivative operator, defined in eqns. (3.16) and (3.18), when acting on an arbitrary function f(x), gives [115]:

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} f(x) = \frac{f(qx) - f(q^{-1}x)}{(q-q^{-1})x}$$
(3.19)

for the definition of \mathcal{D}_{χ}^{q} given in eqn. (3.16), and [116]:

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} f(x) = \frac{f(qx) - f(x)}{(q-1)x}$$
(3.20)

for the definition of \mathcal{D}_x^q given in eqn. (3.18).

These results follow from the relation [3,112-116]

$$q^{\pm x} \frac{\partial}{\partial x} f(x) = f\left(q^{\pm 1}x\right)$$
(3.21)

Also, one notices that both definitions of the Jackson derivative given above reduce to the standard derivative in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$ as expected, or:

$$\lim_{q \to 1} \mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} f(x) = \frac{d}{dx} f(x)$$
(3.22)

It is also useful to note some examples of the action of the q-derivative on the q-deformed elementary functions, such as [3]:

$$\begin{aligned}
 \mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} e_{q}^{x} = e_{q}^{x} \\
 \mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} E_{q}(x) = E_{q}(qx) \\
 \mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} \sin_{q}(x) = \cos_{q}(x) \\
 \mathcal{D}_{x}^{q} \cos_{q}(x) = -\sin_{q}(x)
 \end{aligned}$$
(3.23)

More details about such actions of the q-derivative on other functions can be found in ref. [3].

3.1.4 Analog of Leibniz Rules for q-Differentiation

The analog of Leibniz rules for q-differentiation of two arbitrary functions

F(x) and G(x) are given as [3]:

(i) Sum Rule

$$\mathcal{D}_{\chi}^{q}\left\{F(x)+G(x)\right\}=\mathcal{D}_{\chi}^{q}F(x)+\mathcal{D}_{\chi}^{q}G(x)$$
(3.24)

(ii) Product Rule

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}\left\{F(x)\cdot G(x)\right\} = F(qx)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}G(x) + G(x)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}F(x)$$

which can also be written as

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}\left\{F(x)\cdot G(x)\right\} = G(qx)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}F(x) + F(x)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}G(x)$$

(iii) Quotient Rule

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}\left\{\frac{F(x)}{G(x)}\right\} = \frac{G(qx)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}F(x) - F(qx)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}G(x)}{G(x)G(qx)}$$

which can also be written as

(3.26)

(3.25)

$$\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}\left\{\frac{F(x)}{G(x)}\right\} = \frac{G(x)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}F(x) - F(x)\mathcal{D}_{x}^{q}G(x)}{G(x)G(qx)}$$

where G(x) and $G(qx) \neq 0$.

For more details about q-integration, q-polynomials and many other q-relations and identities, one is referred to refs. [1-3].

3.2 The q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator

The q-deformed harmonic oscillator was introduced firstly in connection with studying quantum groups [16], where one can consider the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator as a deformation of the standard quantum harmonic oscillator. There are different versions of the q-deformed harmonic oscillator that can be obtained by defining the q-deformed boson operators [9, 12-15]. In the next two sections, q-deformations of the harmonic oscillator in both its classical and quantum versions, are introduced.

3.2.1 The q-Deformed Classical Harmonic Oscillator

There are different approaches to introduce q-deformation for the classical harmonic oscillator. One approach is q-deformation of the Poisson bracket via the Jackson derivative [117]. Another approach is q-deformation of the Lagrangian of the harmonic oscillator [118]. Also, there is the possibility of q-deforming the action integral to obtain the q-deformed equation of motion [119]. In this context, it should be emphasized that the problem of the q-deformed classical oscillator and its interpretation are still open problems. Finally, it should also be stated that a q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$.

3.2.2 The q-Deformed Quantum Harmonic Oscillator

In general, there are different versions of the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator according to the q-commutator that is adopted for each version as well as the definitions of the bosonic operators that satisfy these q-commutators [9, 12-16, 32, 38]. An example of the q-deformed quantum oscillator is given in ref. [12] in which Biedenharn introduced the following q-commutator:

$$\left[\hat{a}_{q},\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\right]_{q} = \hat{a}_{q}\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} - q^{\mp 1}\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\hat{a}_{q} = q^{\pm\hat{N}}$$
(3.27)

In general, and according to Man'ko [91], the q-deformed oscillator may represent a special type of nonlinearity where the frequency of the oscillator depends on the energy of the oscillator (i.e., $|\alpha|^2$). In this context, an f-deformed

oscillator, which is a generalization of the q-oscillator, was introduced by Man'ko [61]. The realization of the f-deformed boson operators \hat{a}_f and \hat{a}_f^{\dagger} in terms of the undeformed boson operators \hat{a} and \hat{a}^{\dagger} was achieved via the transformation [61, 92, 96, 120]:

$$\hat{a}_{f} = \hat{a} f\left(\hat{N}\right) = f\left(\hat{N}+1\right) \hat{a}
\hat{a}_{f}^{\dagger} = f\left(\hat{N}\right) \hat{a}^{\dagger} = \hat{a}^{\dagger} f\left(\hat{N}+1\right)$$
(3.28)

where $f(\hat{N})$ represents a non-negative real operator-valued function of the number operator. It should be noted that the subscript "f" used here refers to the "f-deformation" case. Also, whenever a q-deformation process is used instead of the f-deformation process, then the subscript "f" is interchanged by "q" and vice versa.

The transformation from the f-deformed oscillator to the q-deformed oscillator or to the undeformed oscillator involves substituting specific values for the function $f(\hat{N})$ in the transformation of eqn. (3.28) in the form [61, 64, 65, 91]:

$$f(\hat{N}) = \begin{cases} 1 & \text{for undeformed oscillator} \\ \sqrt{\frac{[\hat{N}]_{q}}{\hat{N}}} & \text{for q-deformed oscillator} \\ \text{otherwise} & \text{for f-deformed oscillator} \end{cases}$$
(3.29)

Furthermore, the Hamiltonian operators of the q-deformed and f-deformed quantum harmonic oscillators are defined as [61, 91, 92, 120, 121]:

$$\hat{\mathcal{H}}_{q} = \left(\frac{\hbar\omega}{2}\right) \left(\hat{a}_{q}\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} + \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\hat{a}_{q}\right)$$
(3.30a)

and,

$$\hat{\mathcal{H}}_{f} = \left(\frac{\hbar\omega}{2}\right) \left(\hat{a}_{f} \, \hat{a}_{f}^{\dagger} + \hat{a}_{f}^{\dagger} \, \hat{a}_{f}\right) \tag{3.30b}$$

respectively.

Substituting the f-deformed boson operators \hat{a}_f and \hat{a}_f^{\dagger} from eqn. (3.28) into eqn. (3.30b), results in:

$$\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{f} = \left(\frac{\hbar\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \hat{N} f^{2}\left(\hat{N}\right) + \left(\hat{N}+1\right) f^{2}\left(\hat{N}+1\right) \right\}$$
(3.31)

Eqn. (3.31) represents the Hamiltonian operator for the f-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator in terms of the undeformed number operator \hat{N} .

The q-deformed number operator, \hat{N}_q , in terms of q-deformed boson operators is defined as [28, 32, 33, 87]:

$$\hat{N}_q = \begin{bmatrix} \hat{N} \end{bmatrix}_q = \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{a}_q \tag{3.32}$$

and hence,

$$\left[\hat{N}+1\right]_{q} = \hat{a}_{q} \,\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \tag{3.33}$$

Substituting eqns. (3.32) and. (3.33) in eqn. (3.30a), yields [12]:

$$\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} = \left(\frac{\hbar\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \left[\hat{N}\right]_{q} + \left[\hat{N}+1\right]_{q} \right\}$$
(3.34)

Eqn. (3.34) represents the Hamiltonian operator for the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator in terms of the undeformed number operator \hat{N} .

Also, the q-deformed number operator, \hat{N}_q , can be defined in terms of the q-number by using eqns. (3.4) and (3.6) together with $x = \hat{N}$, then eqn. (3.32) becomes [120,121]:

$$\hat{N}_{q} = \left[\hat{N}\right]_{q} = \frac{\sinh(\lambda \hat{N})}{\sinh(\lambda)}$$
(3.35a)

and,

$$\hat{N}_{q} = \left[\hat{N}\right]_{q} = \frac{e^{\hat{\lambda}\hat{N}} - 1}{e^{\hat{\lambda}} - 1}$$
(3.35b)

The q-deformed boson operators act on the q-deformed number state $|n\rangle_q$ in the q-deformed Hilbert space as [12, 28, 32, 87]

$$\hat{a}_{q} |n\rangle_{q} = \sqrt{[n]_{q}} |n-1\rangle_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} |n\rangle_{q} = \sqrt{[n+1]_{q}} |n+1\rangle_{q}$$

$$\left[n \right]_{q} = [1]_{q}, [2]_{q}, \cdots$$

$$(3.36)$$

where,

$$\left|n\right\rangle_{q} = \frac{\left(a_{q}^{\dagger}\right)^{n}}{\sqrt{\left[n\right]_{q}!}} \left|0\right\rangle_{q} \tag{3.37}$$

and,

$$\left|0\right\rangle_{q} = \left|0\right\rangle \tag{3.38}$$

Also, the completeness relation in q-Hilbert space for $|n\rangle_q$ is given as:

$$\sum_{n=0}^{\infty} |n\rangle_{qq} \langle n| = 1$$
(3.39)

Another formulation of the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator, which was introduced by Arik and Coon [9], is based on the definition of the Jackson derivative. The basic idea in this work depends on the basic integral [123]. For other formulations of the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator, one is referred to refs. [32, 38, 89, 96].

It should also be stated that, as in the q-deformed classical oscillator case, the q-deformed quantum oscillator reduces to the standard quantum oscillator in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$.

3.3 The q-Deformed Coherent States

The importance of the standard (Glauber–Sudarshan) coherent states motivated many researchers to study the q-deformation of these states [26-28, 43, 68]. In what follows, is an attempt made to give an introduction to this subject with some mathematical details that are relevant to the work in the present thesis.

3.3.1 Definition of q-Deformed Coherent States and their Generalizations

In general, the q-deformed coherent state, $|\alpha_q\rangle$ is defined as the eigenstate of the q-deformed annihilation operator [14, 15, 31, 38, 61-65, 87], or:

$$\hat{a}_{q} \left| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \alpha_{q} \left| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \tag{3.40}$$

This definition produces a normalizable q-deformed coherent state.

The Hilbert space adjoint of eqn. (3.40) becomes

$$\left\langle \alpha_{q} \right| \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} = \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right| \alpha_{q}^{*} \tag{3.41}$$

where α_q and α_q^* represent independent arbitrary complex numbers. Also, the q-deformed coherent state reduces to the Glauber–Sudarshan state in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$. A generalization of the q-deformed coherent state was introduced by Man'ko in [61]. This generalization leads to the concept of nonlinear coherent state (NLCs). The NLCs involves the notion of the f-deformed oscillator (see eqn. (3.29)) [47, 62, 64, 68] where for each choice of the nonlinearity function $f(\hat{N})$ one gets a different nonlinear coherent state.

The q-deformed coherent state (q–CS) can be expanded in the q-Fock space as [28, 47, 64, 87]

$$\left|\alpha_{q}\right\rangle = \mathcal{N}_{q}\left(\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right) \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \frac{\alpha_{q}^{n}}{\sqrt{[n]_{q}!}} \left|n\right\rangle_{q}$$
(3.42)

where $N_q(|\alpha_q|^2)$ represents the q-analog of the normalization constant defined as [28, 47, 64, 64, 87]:

$$\mathcal{N}_q\left(\left|\alpha_q\right|^2\right) = e_q^{-\frac{\left|\alpha_q\right|^2}{2}} \tag{3.43}$$

Also, the expectation value, \overline{n}_q , of the q-deformed number operator, \hat{N}_q , is given as [124]:

$$\overline{n}_{q} = \left\langle \alpha_{q} \left| \hat{N}_{q} \right| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \left\langle \alpha_{q} \left| \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} \right| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \alpha_{q} \alpha_{q}^{*} = \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2}$$
(3.44)

3.3.2 The q-Deformed Density Operator

As it has already been illustrated in Sec. (1.2), the conventional coherent states (Glauber–Sudarshan states) and the P-representation of the density operator [40, 41, 45, 46] play a crucial role in investigating the classical limit of the

undeformed quantum harmonic oscillator via the Heisenberg equation of motion [76, 78]. To generalize this notion to the q-deformed density operator, one should overcome the problem of the existence of resolution of unity for q-deformed coherent states, as not all definitions of q-CSs satisfy the resolution of unity [38,122]. This resolution of unity can be obtained by using the standard method to produce an explicit formula for the q-deformed density operator. This method is based on solving the moment problem in order to obtain the q-deformed weight This weight function represents the function [38,122]. q-deformed quasiprobability distribution function [14, 15, 38, 122], where in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$, it reduces to the conventional (undeformed) quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ for the standard (Glauber–Sudarshan) coherent states [40, 41, 45, 46].

Chapter Four

Classical Treatment of the

q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator

Classical Treatment of the q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator

In this chapter, the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator is defined in more details and treated along the lines of Man'ko [91]. The treatment begins with a generalization that involves the general case of the f-oscillator where the q-oscillator is considered as a special case. Then, the classical equation of motions and the Liouville equations are obtained for both types of oscillator. Finally, solutions for the classical Liouville equations for the q-deformed case are obtained and a computer visualization method is used to investigate the phase space time-evolution of this oscillator for comparison with the anharmonic oscillator treated by Milburn [77].

4.1 The f-Deformed Coordinate Transformation

As mentioned in Sec. (2.1), α and α^* represent two independent complex variables that can be considered as coordinates in a complex phase space. When considering f-deformation [61], these undeformed coordinates can be transformed to f-deformed coordinates α_f and α_f^* by a non-linear transformation as [61, 91]:

$$\alpha_f = f(\alpha, \alpha^*) \alpha \tag{4.1}$$

$$\alpha_f^* = f^*(\alpha, \alpha^*) \, \alpha^* \tag{4.2}$$

where α_f and α_f^* are considered as two independent complex variables and $f = f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ is a non-negative function of the two independent complex variables α and α^* . The subscript "f" refers to "f-deformation". Generally, the function $f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ has the following three forms corresponding to the deformation types shown in Table (4.1):

Table (4.1)

Forms of the function $f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and their associated types of deformation.

$f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$	type of deformation	
1	undeformed case	
$\sqrt{\frac{\left[\alpha\alpha^{*}\right]_{q}}{\alpha\alpha^{*}}}$	q–deformed case	
otherwise	general f-deformed case	

In the case of q-deformation, $\sqrt{\frac{\left[\alpha\alpha^*\right]_q}{\alpha\alpha^*}}$ can also be written in terms of the

q-numbers as [9, 61, 91]:

$$\sqrt{\frac{\left[\alpha\alpha^{*}\right]_{q}}{\alpha\alpha^{*}}} = \sqrt{\frac{\sinh(\lambda\alpha\alpha^{*})}{\alpha\alpha^{*}\sinh(\lambda)}} \quad \text{for} \quad \left[\alpha\alpha^{*}\right]_{q} = \frac{q^{\alpha\alpha^{*}} - q^{-\alpha\alpha^{*}}}{q - q^{-1}} \tag{4.3a}$$

and,

$$\sqrt{\frac{\left[\alpha\alpha^{*}\right]_{q}}{\alpha\alpha^{*}}} = \sqrt{\frac{e^{\lambda\alpha\alpha^{*}} - 1}{\alpha\alpha^{*}(e^{\lambda} - 1)}} \quad \text{for } \left[\alpha\alpha^{*}\right]_{q} = \frac{q^{\alpha\alpha^{*}} - 1}{q - 1}$$
(4.3b)

4.2 The Classical Hamiltonian

The classical Hamiltonian of the f-deformed oscillator can be introduced in terms of the two sets of coordinates of the non-linear transformation given in eqns. (4.1) and (4.2) as:

(A) The Classical Hamiltonian in α -Representation

The Hamiltonian of the f-deformed oscillator defined in terms of the (α, α^*) coordinates as given by Man'ko [61, 91] is,

$$\mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) = \hbar \omega f f^{*} \alpha \alpha^{*}$$
(4.4)

For the case of the q-deformed classical oscillator, the function f is given by eqns. (4.3). Then, eqn. (4.4) in α -representation becomes

$$\mathbb{H}_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) = \begin{cases} \hbar \omega \left\{ \frac{\sinh(\lambda \alpha \alpha^{*})}{\sinh(\lambda)} \right\} & \text{for } \left[\alpha \alpha^{*} \right]_{q} = \frac{q^{\alpha \alpha^{*}} - q^{-\alpha \alpha^{*}}}{q - q^{-1}} & (4.5a) \\ \hbar \omega \left\{ \frac{e^{\lambda \alpha \alpha^{*}} - 1}{(e^{\lambda} - 1)} \right\} & \text{for } \left[\alpha \alpha^{*} \right]_{q} = \frac{q^{\alpha \alpha^{*}} - 1}{q - 1} & (4.5b) \end{cases}$$

(B) The Classical Hamiltonian in α_f –Representation

The classical Hamiltonian of the f-deformed oscillator, defined in terms of the (α_f, α_f^*) coordinates as given by Man'ko [61, 91], is $\mathcal{H}_f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*) = \hbar \omega \alpha_f \alpha_f^*$ (4.6)

Hence, for the special case of q-deformation, this Hamiltonian can be written as: $\mathcal{H}_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = \hbar \omega \alpha_q \alpha_q^*$ (4.7)

4.3 The Poisson Bracket $\left\{ \alpha_f, \alpha_f^* \right\}$

The Poisson bracket $\{\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*\}$ can be written as (see Appendix–A, eqn. (A.11)):

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\} = \left\{\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}}$$

$$(4.8)$$

where,

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} - \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}}$$
(4.9)

Using eqns. (4.1) and (4.2), one obtains:

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha^{*}} = f + \alpha f_{\alpha}$$

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha} = \alpha f_{\alpha^{*}}$$

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha^{*}} = \alpha^{*} f_{\alpha}^{*}$$

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha} = f^{*} + \alpha^{*} f_{\alpha^{*}}^{*}$$

$$(4.10)$$

where the following notations have been employed,

$$f_{\alpha} = \left(\frac{\partial f}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}}$$

$$f_{\alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial f}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha}$$

$$f_{\alpha^{*}}^{*} = \left(\frac{\partial f^{*}}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha}$$

$$f_{\alpha}^{*} = \left(\frac{\partial f^{*}}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}}$$

$$(4.11)$$

then substituting eqn. (4.10) into eqn. (4.9), one can write:

$$\left\{\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = f f^{*} + \alpha f^{*} f_{\alpha} + \alpha^{*} f f_{\alpha^{*}}^{*} + |\alpha|^{2} \left(f_{\alpha} f_{\alpha^{*}}^{*} - f_{\alpha}^{*} f_{\alpha^{*}}\right) \quad (4.12)$$

For the special case of real function f, eqn. (4.12) becomes,

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}} = f^{2} + f \cdot \left(\alpha f_{\alpha} + \alpha^{*} f_{\alpha^{*}}\right)$$

$$(4.13)$$

Now, letting

$$\chi_{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*}) = f^{2} + f \cdot \left(\alpha f_{\alpha} + \alpha^{*} f_{\alpha^{*}}\right)$$
(4.14)

then, one can write:

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}} = \chi_{f}\left(\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right)$$
(4.15)

Substituting for $\{\alpha, \alpha^*\}$ from eqn. (2.6) and using eqn. (4.15) in eqn. (4.8), then:

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\} = -\left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right)\chi_{f}\left(\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right)$$
(4.16)

Eqn. (4.16) represents the general formula for the Poisson bracket of the f-deformed classical harmonic oscillator.

For the special case of the q-deformed classical oscillator, where the function f is given by eqns. (4.3), the Poisson bracket $\{\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*\}$ in eqn. (4.16) becomes

 $\left\{\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*\right\}$ and can then take the forms:

(A)
$$\left\{ \alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right\}$$
 in the α -Representation

It is easy to show that for f defined by eqn. (4.3a):

$$f_{\alpha} = \left(\frac{1}{2f}\right) \left\{ \frac{\alpha^* \left[\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2 \cosh\left(\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2\right) - \sinh\left(\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2\right)\right]}{\left|\alpha\right|^4 \sinh\left(\lambda\right)} \right\}$$
(4.17)

and,

$$f_{\alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{1}{2f}\right) \left\{ \frac{\alpha \left[\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2} \cosh\left(\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right) - \sinh\left(\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right)\right]}{\left|\alpha\right|^{4} \sinh\left(\lambda\right)} \right\}$$
(4.18)

Then,

$$\alpha f_{\alpha} = \alpha^* f_{\alpha^*} = \left(\frac{1}{2f}\right) \left\{ \frac{\lambda \cosh(\lambda |\alpha|^2)}{\sinh(\lambda)} - f^2 \right\}$$
(4.19)

Similarly, for f defined by eqn. (4.3b):

$$f_{\alpha} = \left(\frac{1}{2f}\right) \left\{ \frac{\alpha^* \left[\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2 e^{\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2} - \left(e^{\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2} - 1\right)\right]}{\left|\alpha\right|^4 \left(e^{\lambda} - 1\right)}\right\}$$
(4.20)

$$f_{\alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{1}{2f}\right) \left\{ \frac{\alpha \left[\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2} e^{\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2}} - \left(e^{\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2}} - 1\right)\right]}{\left|\alpha\right|^{4} \left(e^{\lambda} - 1\right)} \right\}$$
(4.21)

Hence,

$$\alpha f_{\alpha} = \alpha^* f_{\alpha^*} = \left(\frac{1}{2f}\right) \left\{ \frac{\lambda e^{\lambda |\alpha|^2}}{(e^{\lambda} - 1)} - f^2 \right\}$$
(4.22)

Substituting eqns. (4.19) and (4.22) into eqn. (4.14), one obtains:

$$\chi_q(\alpha, \alpha^*) = \left\{ \frac{\lambda \cosh(\lambda |\alpha|^2)}{\sinh(\lambda)} \right\}$$
(4.23a)

and,

$$\chi_q(\alpha, \alpha^*) = \left\{ \frac{\lambda e^{\lambda |\alpha|^2}}{(e^{\lambda} - 1)} \right\}$$
(4.23b)

respectively.

When these two expressions for $\chi_q(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ are substituted in eqn. (4.16), they give

$$\left\{\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right\} = -\left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right) \left\{\frac{\lambda \cosh\left(\lambda |\alpha|^{2}\right)}{\sinh\left(\lambda\right)}\right\}$$
(4.24a)

and,

$$\left\{\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right\} = -\left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right) \left\{\frac{\lambda e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}}}{\left(e^{\lambda}-1\right)}\right\}$$
(4.24b)

respectively.

Eqns. (4.24) represent the Poisson brackets for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator in the α -representation for two definitions of the function f. It is observed that eqn. (4.24a) is the same as that introduced by Man'ko [91].

(B) $\left\{\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*\right\}$ in the α_q -Representation

To obtain the Poisson bracket $\{\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*\}$ in the α_q -representation one needs the inverse function $f^{-1} = f^{-1}(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$. Substituting the definitions of the function f from eqns. (4.3) in the non-linear transformation represented by eqns. (4.1) and (4.2), then multiplying these two equations with each other, one gets:

$$|\alpha|^{2} = \frac{\sinh^{-1}(|\alpha_{q}|^{2}\sinh(\lambda))}{\lambda}$$
(4.25a)

and,

$$\left|\alpha\right|^{2} = \frac{\ln\left(1 - \left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\left(1 - e^{\lambda}\right)\right)}{\lambda}$$
(4.25b)

respectively.

The inverse of the non-linear transformation represented by eqns. (4.1) and (4.2) is given as:

$$\alpha = f^{-1} \alpha_f \tag{4.26}$$

$$\alpha^* = \left(f^*\right)^{-1} \alpha_f^* \tag{4.27}$$

Then, multiplying these two equations one gets:

$$\left|\alpha\right|^{2} = \left(f^{-1}\right)^{2} \left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2} \tag{4.28}$$

Substituting eqns. (4.25) into eqn. (4.28) and solving for f^{-1} , one obtains:

$$f^{-1} = \sqrt{\frac{\ln\left(\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\sinh\left(\lambda\right) + \sqrt{1 + \left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{4}\sinh^{2}\left(\lambda\right)}\right)}{\lambda\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}}}$$
(4.29a)

and

$$f^{-1} = \sqrt{\frac{\ln\left(1 - |\alpha_q|^2 (1 - e^{\lambda})\right)}{\lambda |\alpha_q|^2}}$$
(4.29b)

respectively.

Eqn. (4.29a) is the same as that introduced by Man'ko [61]. Substituting eqns. (4.29) into eqn. (4.28) and substituting the result into eqns. (4.23) and after some mathematical manipulations one obtains:

$$\chi_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = \left\{ \frac{\lambda \sqrt{1 + |\alpha_q|^4 \sinh^2(\lambda)}}{\sinh(\lambda)} \right\}$$
(4.30a)

and,

$$\chi_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = \left\{ \frac{\lambda \left[1 - |\alpha_q|^2 \left(1 - e^{\lambda} \right) \right]}{\left(e^{\lambda} - 1 \right)} \right\}$$
(4.30b)

respectively.
Finally, substituting eqns. (4.30) into eqn. (4.16), the Poisson brackets in the α_q -representation become:

$$\left\{\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right\} = -\left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right) \left\{\frac{\lambda \left[\sqrt{1 + \left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{4} \sinh^{2}(\lambda)}\right]}{\sinh(\lambda)}\right\}$$
(4.31a)

and,

$$\left\{\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right\} = -\left(\frac{i}{\hbar}\right) \left\{\frac{\lambda \left[1 - |\alpha_{q}|^{2} \left(1 - e^{\lambda}\right)\right]}{\left(e^{\lambda} - 1\right)}\right\}$$
(4.31b)

respectively.

It is noticed that eqn. (4.31a) is the same as that introduced by Man'ko [91].

4.4 The Equation of Motion

The equation of motion for the f-deformed harmonic oscillator can be obtained in the α -representation and α_q -representation as:

(A) α -Representation:

The equation of motion in this representation is:

$$\dot{\alpha}(t) = \left\{ \alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(4.32)

But since, (see Appendix-B, eqn. (B.7))

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\} = \left\{\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}}$$

$$(4.33)$$

then, simplifying $\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}}$ by using eqn. (2.13), to obtain

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha}$$
(4.34)

and substituting $\mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$ from eqn. (4.4) into eqn. (4.34), this equation becomes:

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \hbar \omega \left\{f f^{*} + \alpha^{*} f^{*} f_{\alpha^{*}} + \alpha^{*} f f_{\alpha^{*}}^{*}\right\} \alpha \qquad (4.35)$$

Observing again that $f = f^*$, and defining:

$$\eta_f(\alpha, \alpha^*) = f^2 + 2\alpha^* f f_{\alpha^*} , \qquad (4.36)$$

eqn. (4.35) takes the form:

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \hbar \omega \eta_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right) \alpha$$
(4.37)

Defining

$$\omega_f = \omega \eta_f \left(\alpha, \alpha^* \right) \tag{4.38}$$

eqn. (4.37) becomes:

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \hbar \,\omega_{f} \,\alpha \tag{4.39}$$

where ω_f can be considered as the frequency of the f-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α -representation.

Substituting $\{\alpha, \alpha^*\}$ from eqn. (2.6) and using eqn. (4.39) in eqn. (4.33), eqn. (4.32) can be cast in the form:

$$\dot{\alpha}(t) = -i \,\omega_f \,\alpha \tag{4.40}$$

Eqn. (4.40) represents the equation of motion for the f-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α –representation.

For the special case of the q-deformed classical oscillator, where the function f is given by eqns. (4.3), substituting for $\alpha^* f_{\alpha^*}$ from eqns. (4.19) and (4.22) into eqn. (4.36), the result becomes:

$$\eta_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) = \left\{ \frac{\lambda \cosh(\lambda |\alpha|^{2})}{\sinh(\lambda)} \right\}$$
(4.41a)

and,

$$\eta_q(\alpha, \alpha^*) = \left\{ \frac{\lambda e^{\lambda |\alpha|^2}}{(e^{\lambda} - 1)} \right\}$$
(4.41b)

respectively.

Then, substituting eqns. (4.41) into eqn. (4.38), the frequency of the q-deformed classical oscillator, $\omega_q^{(\mu)}$, becomes:

$$\omega_q^{(1)} = \omega \left\{ \frac{\lambda \cosh(\lambda |\alpha|^2)}{\sinh(\lambda)} \right\}$$
(4.42a)

and,

$$\omega_q^{(2)} = \omega \left\{ \frac{\lambda e^{\lambda |\alpha|^2}}{(e^{\lambda} - 1)} \right\}$$
(4.42b)

respectively.

Again, it is noticed that eqn. (4.42a) is the same as that introduced by Man'ko [91].

Substituting eqns. (4.42) into eqn. (4.40), leads to:

$$\dot{\alpha}(t) = -i \,\omega_q^{(\mu)} \alpha \qquad ; \quad \mu = 1, 2.$$
(4.43)

and the complex conjugate of eqn. (4.43) is:

$$\dot{\alpha}^{*}(t) = i \omega_{q}^{(\mu)} \alpha^{*}$$
; $\mu = 1, 2.$ (4.44)

where $\omega_q^{(\mu)}$ is obviously real.

Eqns. (4.43) and (4.44) represent the equations of motion for the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α -representation.

Solving these equations of motion, gives the equations of trajectories for the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the complex (α, α^*) phase space:

$$\alpha(t) = \alpha(0) e^{-i \omega_q^{(\mu)} t} ; \quad \mu = 1, 2.$$

$$\alpha^*(t) = \alpha^*(0) e^{i \omega_q^{(\mu)} t}$$

$$(4.45)$$

where, $\alpha(0)$ and $\alpha^*(0)$ are initial trajectory points at t = 0.

(B) α_f –Representation:

In this case, the equation of motion is given by:

$$\dot{\alpha}_{f}(t) = \left\{ \alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right) \right\}$$
(4.46)

where, (see Appendix-B, eqn. (B.8))

$$\left\{\alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right)\right\} = \left\{\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}}$$
(4.47)

Also,

$$\left\{\alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right)}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}}$$
(4.48)

where the counterparts of eqns. (2.13) for α_f and α_f^* , i.e.,

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \\ \alpha_{f} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \\ \alpha_{f} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \\ \alpha_{f} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_{$$

were used to obtain eqn.(4.48).

Substituting $\mathcal{H}_f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*)$ from eqn. (4.6) into eqn. (4.48), the result is:

$$\left\{\alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}} = \hbar \,\omega \,\alpha_{f} \tag{4.50}$$

Then, finally the substitution of $\{\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*\}$ from eqn. (4.16) and the Poisson bracket of eqn. (4.50) into eqn. (4.47), and using the result in eqn. (4.46), yields:

$$\dot{\alpha}_f(t) = -i\omega_f \,\alpha_f \tag{4.51}$$

where,

$$\omega_f = \omega \,\chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*) \tag{4.52}$$

It is worth mentioning that $|\alpha|^2$ represents a constant of the motion for the undeformed classical oscillator. This can be proved by evaluating the Poisson bracket for the undeformed classical oscillator $\{\alpha\alpha^*, H(\alpha, \alpha^*)\}_{\alpha, \alpha^*}$ as:

$$\left\{\alpha\alpha^{*}, H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial(\alpha\alpha^{*})}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} - \left(\frac{\partial(\alpha\alpha^{*})}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}}$$

$$(4.53)$$

Therfore, using eqns. (2.13) in eqn. (4.53) leads to:

$$\left\{\alpha\alpha^{*}, H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \alpha^{*} \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} - \alpha \left(\frac{\partial H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} (4.54)$$

Substituting the Hamiltonian from eqn. (2.9) in eqn. (4.54) results in:

$$\left\{\alpha\alpha^{*}, H(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = 0$$
(4.55)

which proves that $|\alpha|^2$ is a constant of the motion for the undeformed oscillator. A similar result can be obtained for $|\alpha_f|^2$ and, hence, for the special case $|\alpha_q|^2$. Therefore, the functions $\chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and $\eta_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ also represent constants of the motion, where one can prove this by noticing that $f = f(|\alpha|^2)$, then substituting into eqn.(4.14), and after some mathematical manipulations, the result is:

$$\chi_{f}\left(\left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right) = \left\{f\left(\left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right)\right\}^{2} + 2f\left(\left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right) \frac{\partial f\left(\left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right)}{\partial\left|\alpha\right|^{2}}$$
(4.56)

It is obvious that the f is a function of $|\alpha|^2$. Then, the function $\chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$, that is given by eqn. (4.14), reduces to the function $\chi_f(|\alpha|^2)$. Similarly, one can prove that the function $\eta_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ also represents a constant of the motion.

In the same context, the frequency of the f-deformed classical oscillator, ω_f , which is a function of $|\alpha|^2$, is a constant of the motion and depends on the energy of the oscillator orbit.

The equation of motion for the special case of the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator is obtained by substituting the function $\chi_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ from eqns. (4.30) into eqn. (4.52). Then, the frequencies of this oscillator are given as:

$$\omega_q^{(3)} = \omega \left\{ \frac{\lambda \left[\sqrt{1 + |\alpha_q|^4 \sinh^2(\lambda)} \right]}{\sinh(\lambda)} \right\}$$
(4.57a)

and,

$$\omega_q^{(4)} = \omega \left\{ \frac{\lambda \left[1 - |\alpha_q|^2 \left(1 - e^\lambda \right) \right]}{\left(e^\lambda - 1 \right)} \right\}$$
(4.57b)

respectively.

It is noticed that eqn. (4.57a) is the same as that introduced by Man'ko [91].

Substituting eqns. (4.57) into eqn. (4.51), one gets:

$$\dot{\alpha}_{q}(t) = -i\omega_{q}^{(\mu)}\alpha_{q}$$
; $\mu = 3,4.$ (4.58)

The complex conjugate of eqn. (4.58) becomes:

$$\dot{\alpha}_{q}^{*}(t) = i\omega_{q}^{(\mu)}\alpha_{q}^{*}$$
; $\mu = 3,4.$ (4.59)

Eqns. (4.58) and (4.59) represent the equations of motion for the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α_q -representation.

Again, solving these equations of motion, gives the equations of trajectories for the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the complex (α_q, α_q^*) phase space:

$$\begin{array}{l} \alpha_{q}(t) = \alpha_{q}(0) e^{-i \omega_{q}^{(\mu)} t} \\ \alpha_{q}^{*}(t) = \alpha_{q}^{*}(0) e^{i \omega_{q}^{(\mu)} t} \end{array} \right\} ; \ \mu = 3, 4.$$

$$(4.60)$$

where $\alpha_q(0)$ and $\alpha_q^*(0)$ are initial trajectory points at t=0.

4.5 The Classical Liouville Equation

In this section, the classical Liouville equations for the f-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the two complex phase space representations are derived by using the classical Liouville equation for the undeformed classical system that was introduced in ref. [100]. The q-deformed case is also treated as a special case.

(A) α – Representation

In this case, and using the Hamiltonian $\mathbb{H}_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ of eqn. (4.4), the classical Liouville equation is given as:

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t) \right\}$$
(4.61)

where $P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ represents the classical probability distribution function for the f-deformed classical oscillator in the α -representation.

But since, (see Appendix-C, eqn. (C.9))

$$\left\{\mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*}),\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t)\right\} = \left\{\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*}),\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t)\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}}$$

(4.62)

then, using the definition of the Hamiltonian $\mathbb{H}_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ in the α -representation as in eqn. (4.4), and assuming $f = f^*$, one obtains:

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} = \hbar \omega \left\{f^{2} + 2\alpha f f_{\alpha}\right\} \alpha^{*}$$
(4.63)

and,

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} = \hbar \omega \left\{f^{2} + 2\alpha^{*} f f_{\alpha^{*}}\right\} \alpha$$
(4.64)

Furthermore, the Poisson bracket $\left\{ \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t) \right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}}$ is given by:

Now, substituting eqns. (4.63) and (4.64) into eqn. (4.65), the latter takes the form:

$$\left\{ \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*}), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t) \right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}} = \hbar \omega \left\{ \left(f^{2} + 2\alpha f f_{\alpha} \right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \left(f^{2} + 2\alpha^{*} f f_{\alpha^{*}} \right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right\} \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t)$$

$$(4.66)$$

Then, substituting eqns. (4.66) and the Poisson bracket $\{\alpha, \alpha^*\}$ from eqn. (2.6) into eqn. (4.62), one can write:

$$\left\{ \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*}), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t) \right\} = -i\omega \left\{ (f^{2} + 2\alpha f f_{\alpha})\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - (f^{2} + 2\alpha^{*} f f_{\alpha^{*}})\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right\} \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t)$$

$$(4.67)$$

Using eqn. (4.67) in eqn. (4.61), one obtains:

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega \left\{ \left(f^{2} + 2\alpha f f_{\alpha} \right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \left(f^{2} + 2\alpha^{*} f f_{\alpha^{*}} \right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right\} \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

$$(4.68)$$

Noting here that if the function $f = f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ is a function of $|\alpha|^2$ (i.e.; $f = f(|\alpha|^2)$), then $\alpha f_{\alpha} = \alpha^* f_{\alpha^*}$. Also, $\chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*) = \eta_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ (see eqns.

(4.14) and (4.36)). Therefore, eqn. (4.68) becomes

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega_{f} \left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right) \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$
(4.69)

where $\omega_f = \omega \chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and $\chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ is as given by eqn. (4.14).

Eqn. (4.69) represents the classical Liouville equation for the f-deformed classical oscillator in the α -representation.

For the special case of the q-deformed classical oscillator, the classical Liouville equation (4.69) for the f-deformed oscillator becomes:

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -i \omega_{q}^{(\mu)} \left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right) \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t) \quad ; \ \mu = 1, 2.$$

$$(4.70)$$

where, $\omega_q^{(\mu)}$ is given by eqns. (4.42).

Eqn. (4.70) represents the classical Liouville equation for the q-deformed classical oscillator in the α -representation.

(B) α_f -Representation

For this case, the classical Liouville equation is given as:

$$\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}), P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t) \right\}$$
(4.71)

where $P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}; t)$ represents the classical probability distribution function for the f-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α_{f} -representation.

But since, (see Appendix-C, eqn. (C.8))

$$\left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}), P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t) \right\} = \left\{ \alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*} \right\} \cdot \left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}), P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t) \right\}_{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}}$$

$$(4.72)$$

then, using the definition of the Hamiltonian $\mathcal{H}_f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*)$ in the α_f -representation as in eqn. (4.6), and assuming $f = f^*$, one obtains:

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*)}{\partial \alpha_f}\right)_{\alpha_f^*} = \hbar \omega \alpha_f^*$$
(4.73)

and,

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*)}{\partial \alpha_f^*}\right)_{\alpha_f} = \hbar \,\omega \,\alpha_f \tag{4.74}$$

Also, since the Poisson bracket $\left\{ \mathcal{H}_f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*), P_{CL}^f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*; t) \right\}_{\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*}$ is defined

as:

$$\left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}), P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t) \right\}_{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*})}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \right)_{\alpha_{f}^{*}} \\ \cdot \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t)}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \right) - \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*})}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \right)_{\alpha_{f}} \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t)}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \right)$$
(4.75)

then, substituting eqns. (4.73) and (4.74) into (4.75) and re-arranging, the result takes the form:

$$\left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}), P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t) \right\}_{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}} = \\ \hbar \omega \left(\alpha_{f}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} - \alpha_{f} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \right) P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t)$$

$$(4.76)$$

Now, substituting eqn. (4.76) and the Poisson bracket $\{\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*\}$ of eqn. (4.16) into eqn. (4.72), one obtains:

$$\left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}), P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t) \right\} = -i\omega_{f} \left(\alpha_{f}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} - \alpha_{f} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \right) P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t)$$

$$(4.77)$$

where $\omega_f = \omega \chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and $\chi_f(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ are as defined in eqn. (4.14).

Inserting eqn. (4.77) into eqn. (4.71) one obtains:

$$\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega_{f} \left(\alpha_{f}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} - \alpha_{f} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \right) P_{CL}^{f}(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t)$$
(4.78)

Eqn. (4.78) represents the classical Liouville equation for the f-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α_f -representation.

Also, for the special case of the q-deformed classical oscillator, the classical Liouville equation (4.78) becomes:

$$\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega_{q}^{(\mu)} \left(\alpha_{q}^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}^{*}} - \alpha_{q}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}} \right) P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t) \quad ; \ \mu = 3,4.$$

$$(4.79)$$

where, $\omega_q^{(\mu)}$ is given by eqns. (4.57). Eqn. (4.79) represents the classical Liouville equation for the q-deformed classical oscillator in the α_q -representation.

It is obvious that in the limit $f \rightarrow 1$, the classical Liouville eqns. (4.69) and (4.78) for the case of the f-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α - and α_f - representation respectively, reduce to the classical Liouville equation of the undeformed simple harmonic oscillator (i.e., eqn. (2.69)) in the α - representation as expected.

Similarly, the same result can be attainable in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$ for the classical Liouville eqns. (4.70) and (4.79) of the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in the α - and α_q - representation respectively.

4.6 Solution of the Classical Liouville Equation

Solutions of the classical Liouville equations of the q-deformed harmonic oscillator, (i.e., eqns. (4.70) and (4.79)) can be obtained by using the method of

characteristics [77] in the same manner performed by Milburn [77] for the anharmonic oscillator. Hence, assuming the following initial solution at t = 0:

$$\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; 0) = e^{-|\alpha - \alpha(0)|^{2}} \quad (\text{in the } \alpha \text{ -representation}) \tag{4.80}$$

then, the time-evolution for each point (α, α^*) in complex phase space can be obtained by replacing α by $\alpha(t)$ given by [77]:

$$\alpha(t) = \alpha e^{-i\omega_q^{(\mu)}t} \tag{4.81}$$

Substituting eqn. (4.81) into eqn. (4.80), one obtains:

$$\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t) = e^{-i\omega_{q}^{(\mu)}t} - \alpha(0)\Big|^{2} ; \ \mu = 1, 2.$$
(4.82)

Similarly, in the α_q -representation:

$$P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t) = e^{-i\omega_{q}^{(\mu)}t} - \alpha_{q}^{(0)} \Big|^{2}; \ \mu = 3,4.$$
(4.83)

Direct insertion of the solutions given in eqns. (4.82) and (4.83) into the classical Liouville eqns. (4.70) and (4.79) has verified that these solutions indeed satisfy these equations.

4.7 Computer Visualizations of the q-Deformed Classical Harmonic Oscillator

The computer visualization method introduced in ref. [77] was utilized by Milburn to investigate the time-evolution of the probability distribution function for the anharmonic oscillator in phase-space using the Q-function which was defined in Sec. (1.4). It is noted that the frequency of the anhrmonic oscillator treated by Milburn [77] is a function of $|\alpha|^2$, which is the same case as that of the

q-deformed oscillator where the frequency of this oscillator is also a function of $|\alpha|^2$ or $|\alpha_q|^2$ depending on the representation. This motivates using the same method as that used by Milburn [77] to investigate the behavior of the classical probability distribution functions $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ and $P_{CL}^q(\alpha_q, \alpha^*_q; t)$ in the case of the q-deformed oscillator in the α and α_q representations respectively.

In the present work, the computer visualization method was implemented by writing a computer program using Mathematica[®] [125]. The complex coordinate α is given by eqn. (2.4) and the mass of the oscillator, the initial value for the complex coordinate, $\alpha(0)$, and the momentum p_0 are taken as 1, 0.5 and 0

respectively. The position coordinate is measured in units of $\sqrt{\frac{2\hbar}{m\omega}}$ and the

momentum coordinate in units of $\sqrt{2\hbar m\omega}$. It should also be mentioned that all the computer visualizations are performed in the rotating frame [77].

To verify the reliability of this program, the same results that were obtained by Milburn [77] were reproduced by applying the computer program using eqn. (4.82) with $Q = \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$. The results obtained are illustrated in Fig. (4.1).

Hence, the time evolution of the classical probability distribution functions $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ and $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha^{*}_{q}; t)$ can be represented in phase space through the behavior of two particular initial contours $|\alpha - \alpha(0)| = \frac{1}{2}$ and $|\alpha_{q} - \alpha_{q}(0)| = \frac{1}{2}$ centered at $\alpha(0)$ and $\alpha_{q}(0) = 0.5$ respectively [77]. In time $(\tau = \omega t)$, each point on an initial contour will move according to eqns. (4.45) and (4.60), and the evolution of this initial contour in the time interval $0 \le \tau \le 2\pi$ in the phase space

Chapter Four

region $-1 \le q \le 1$ and $-1 \le p \le 1$ is followed. The results of such a procedure are depicted in Figs. (4.2) and (4.3) where the time-evolution of the 2-D probability distribution is shown. These figures exhibit whorl shapes and can be compared with those obtained by Milburn [77] for the anharmonic oscillator as shown in Fig. (4.1). Also, it is obvious that these whorl shapes become finer as $t \to \infty$.



Fig. (4.1): The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function Q for the anharmonic oscillator in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.



Fig. (4.2): The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (4.42a) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

Fig. (4.3): The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(2)}$ given by eqn. (4.42b) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

It is observed that the behavior of the classical probability distribution function $P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$ in phase space is similar to the behavior shown in Figs. (4.2) and (4.3) for the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$. This similarity is a result of the fact that the expressions for the frequencies $\omega_{q}^{(1)}$ and $\omega_{q}^{(2)}$ in α -representation, are equivalent to the expressions for the frequencies $\omega_{q}^{(3)}$ and $\omega_{q}^{(4)}$ in the α_{q} -representation (see eqns. (4.42) and (4.57)).

In Figs. (4.4) - (4.6), results of 3-D time-evolution of the same classical probability distributions are presented. Fig. (4.4) shows the Q function which corresponds to Fig. (4.1) presented as 3-D plot. The eqns. (4.82) and (4.83) have been used to calculate the values of the classical probability distributions $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ and $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$. All of these figures are presented for $-4 \leq \gamma \leq 4$ and $-4 \leq p \leq 4$. It is clear that from all of these figures that the peaks of the q-deformed Gaussian for the classical probability distributions Q and $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ do not change with time and are equal to the maximum value (i.e., 1). These peaks follow the classical trajectories shown in Figs. (4.1) - (4.3), for the probability distribution functions.

Another noticeable feature is the observation that the Gaussian shapes of these distributions become more convoluted around themselves as $t \rightarrow \infty$, which is clear in Figs. (4.4) - (4.6).

Fig. (4.4): The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution function Q for the anharmonic oscillator in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

Fig. (4.5): The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (4.42a) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

Fig. (4.6): The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(2)}$ given by eqn. (4.42b) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

Chapter Five

aaaaaaaaaaaa

ane

The Classical Limit of the Quantum q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator

The Classical Limit of the Quantum q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator

This chapter begins with deriving the quantum Liouville equation for the f-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in the Heisenberg picture by generalizing the Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation that was presented in refs. [40, 41] for the density operator in the α -representation. The q-deformation then follows as a special case arising from the general case of f-deformation. In a similar manner, the quantum Liouville equation is also derived in the α_q -representation. Then, the classical limits of these quantum Liouville equations are investigated in α - and α_q -representations. Finally, a computer visualization method similar to that adopted in Chapter 4 is used to investigate the solution of the resulting Liouville equations in the classical limit.

5.1 The Quantum Liouville Equation of the f-Deformed 1-D Quantum Harmonic Oscillator in the α -Representation

The quantum Liouville equation of the f-deformed harmonic oscillator can be derived in general in the two representations of the complex coordinates α and α_f . The q-deformed harmonic oscillator follows as a special case from the f-deformed oscillator as shown previously in Chapter 4.

The Heisenberg equation of motion for the density operator $\hat{\rho}$ is given by eqn. (2.57), where the Hamiltonian $\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{f}$ is defined as in eqn. (3.31) and $\hat{\rho}$ is as defined in eqn. (2.55). Substituting $\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{f}$ in the equation for the commutator $\left[\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{f},\hat{\rho}\right]$ and

then inserting the result into the Heisenberg equation of motion given by eqn. (2.57), one obtains

$$\frac{\partial \hat{\rho}}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} + 1 \right] \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} + 1 \right) \right) \hat{\rho} + \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \right] \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \right) \right) \hat{\rho} - \hat{\rho} \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} + 1 \right] \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} + 1 \right) \right) - \hat{\rho} \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \right] \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \right) \right) \right\}$$

$$(5.1)$$

where $f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})$ represents a boson operator function with normal ordering. After lengthy mathematical manipulations, one obtains (see Appendix-D, eqns. (D.25) and (D.26)):

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} \end{bmatrix} \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} \right) \right) \hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \left\{ \left(\begin{bmatrix} \alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \end{bmatrix} \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \end{bmatrix} \right) \right. \\ \left. \cdot f^{2} \left(\begin{bmatrix} \alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \end{bmatrix} \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \end{bmatrix} \right) \varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\} (5.2)$$

and,

$$\hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right)\right) = \int d^{2}\alpha \left|\alpha\right\rangle \left\langle\alpha\right|\left\{f^{2}\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\right)\right.\right.$$
$$\left. \cdot \left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\right)\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}$$
(5.3)

In a similar manner, equations for $\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right)\right)\hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right)\right)$ can be obtained.

Eqns. (5.2) and (5.3) can be understood to imply the one-to-one correspondence,

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} \end{bmatrix} \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} \right) \right) \hat{\rho} \rightarrow \left(\begin{bmatrix} \alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \end{bmatrix} \right) \cdot f^{2} \left(\begin{bmatrix} \alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \end{bmatrix} \right) \varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$$

$$(5.4)$$

$$\hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right)\right) \rightarrow f^{2}\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\right) \\ \cdot \left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\right)\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$$
(5.5)

Similarly, one-to-one correspondence relations for $\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right)\right)\hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}+1\right)\right)$ can be obtained. Substituting the transformations of eqn. (5.4) and eqn. (5.5) into eqn. (5.1), using the definition of the density operator $\hat{\rho}$ from eqn. (2.55) and replacing $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ by $\varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ then simplifying the result, one obtains:

$$\frac{\partial \varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] + 1 \right) \right. \\
\left. + f^{2} \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] + 1 \right] \right. \\
\left. + f^{2} \left[\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] + 1 \right] \right. \\
\left. + \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \right] \right] \right] \\
\left. + f^{2} \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \right] \right] \\
\left. + f^{2} \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \right] \\
\left. + f^{2} \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \right] \right] \right]$$

$$(5.6)$$

The function $\varphi_q^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ represents the q-analog of the non-deformed quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ (see Sec. (3.3.2)), where in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$ the function $\varphi_q^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ reduces to $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$.

Eqn. (5.6) represents the quantum Liouville equation for the f-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in terms of the q-deformed quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi_q^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in the α -representation.

For the special case of the q-deformed oscillator, the definitions of the function f from Table (4.1) and the q-number from eqn. (4.3a) can be used to write:

$$f^{2}\left(\left[\alpha^{*}+\left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\left[\alpha+\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]+1\right)=\frac{\sinh\left(\lambda\left(\left[\alpha^{*}+\left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\left[\alpha+\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]+1\right)\right)\right)}{\left(\left[\alpha^{*}+\left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\left[\alpha+\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]+1\right)\sinh(\lambda)}$$
(5.7)

The complex conjugate of eqn. (5.7) is:

$$f^{2}\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] + 1\right) = \frac{\sinh\left(\lambda\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] + 1\right)\right)}{\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] + 1\right)\sinh(\lambda)}$$
(5.8)

Then, substituting for the sine hyperbolic function in terms of the exponential function into eqns. (5.7) and (5.8), one obtains:

$$f^{2}\left(\left[\alpha^{*}+\left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\left[\alpha+\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]+1\right) = \left\{2\left(\left[\alpha^{*}+\left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\left[\alpha+\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]+1\right)\sinh(\lambda)\right\}^{-1} \\ \cdot \left\{e^{\lambda\left[\alpha^{*}+\left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\left[\alpha+\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]+\lambda} \\ - e^{-\lambda\left[\alpha^{*}+\left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\left[\alpha+\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]-\lambda}\right\}$$

The complex conjugate of eqn. (5.9) is:

$$f^{2}\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] + 1\right) = \left\{2\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] + 1\right)\sinh(\lambda)\right\}^{-1} \\ \cdot \left\{e^{\lambda\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] + \lambda} \\ - e^{-\lambda\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] - \lambda}\right\}\right\}$$

$$(5.10)$$

Substituting eqns. (5.9) and (5.10) together with their complex conjugates into eqn. (5.6), and after some lengthy mathematical manipulations, one obtains:

$$\frac{\partial \varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \left\{ 4\sinh(\lambda) \right\}^{-1} \\
\cdot \left[\left(1 + e^{\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]} \\
+ \left(1 + e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right]} \right] + c.c. \right\} \varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$
(5.11)

where the abbreviation c.c. represents the complex conjugate of the first term in the braces.

Simplifying eqn. (5.11), the final result takes the form:

$$\frac{\partial \varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \left\{ 4\sinh(\lambda) \right\}^{-1} \left[\left(1 + e^{\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right)} \right] \\ \cdot e^{\lambda \left[|\alpha|^{2} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4} \right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \\ + \left(1 + e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda \left[\frac{s-1}{2} \right]} \\ \cdot e^{-\lambda \left[|\alpha|^{2} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4} \right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha^{*} \partial \alpha} \right] \right] \\ + c.c. \left\} \varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

(5.12)

Eqn. (5.12) represents the quantum Liouville equation for the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in terms of the q-deformed quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi_q^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in the α -representation. The exponential functions appearing in this equation are operator functions because they contain the differential operators $\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}$ and $\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}$.

5.1.1 Solution of the Disentanglement Problem for the Operator Functions

In general, the disentanglement problem is the problem of how to express the exponential of a sum of two operators in terms of the product of exponentials of these operators [50,110,126].

Assuming that \hat{A} and \hat{B} are two given operators, then the problem of disentanglement consists in finding operators $\hat{C}_1, \hat{C}_2, \cdots$ such that [50,110,126]

$$e^{\hat{\mathbf{A}}+\hat{\mathbf{B}}} = e^{\hat{\mathbf{A}}} \cdot e^{\hat{\mathbf{B}}} \cdot e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}_1} \cdot e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}_2} \cdots e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}_{\infty}}$$
(5.13)

The \hat{C}_{m^s} are the combinations of repeated commutators of \hat{A} and \hat{B} . If these combinations of commutators satisfy:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \hat{B} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \hat{B} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \hat{B} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}, \hat{B} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} = \dots = 0$$
(5.14)

where the dots \cdots represent all the commutators of order higher than $\left[\hat{A}, \left[\hat{A}, \left[\hat{A}, \hat{B}\right]\right]\right]$ and $\left[\hat{B}, \left[\hat{B}, \left[\hat{A}, \hat{B}\right]\right]\right]$, then eqn. (5.13) reduces to:

$$e^{\hat{\mathbf{A}}+\hat{\mathbf{B}}} = e^{\hat{\mathbf{A}}} \cdot e^{\hat{\mathbf{B}}} \cdot e^{\frac{1}{2}\left[\hat{\mathbf{A}},\hat{\mathbf{B}}\right]}$$
(5.15)

Eqn. (5.15) is known as the Baker-Campbell-Hausdorff (BCH) formula [50,110,126].

Therefore, letting

$$\hat{A}_{\pm} = \pm \lambda \left| \alpha \right|^2 \tag{5.16}$$

$$\hat{\mathbf{B}}_{1} = \lambda \left\{ \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4} \right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right\}$$
(5.17)

and,

$$\hat{B}_2 = -\hat{B}_1^* \tag{5.18}$$

and substituting for the operators \hat{A} and \hat{B} from eqns. (5.16), (5.17) and (5.18) into eqn. (5.14), the results are:

$$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\right] = \left[\hat{B}_{1},\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\right] = 0$$
(5.19)

and,

$$\left[\hat{A}_{-},\left[\hat{A}_{-},\hat{B}_{2}\right]\right] = \left[\hat{B}_{2},\left[\hat{A}_{-},\hat{B}_{2}\right]\right] = 0$$
(5.20)

Eqns. (5.19) and (5.20) represent the required conditions that should be satisfied to apply the BCH-formula (i.e., eqn. (5.15)).

The commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix}$ can be calculated by substituting the operators $\hat{A}_{\pm}, \hat{B}_{1}$ and \hat{B}_{2} from eqns. (5.16), (5.17) and (5.18) into the expansion of these commutators to obtain (see Appendix-E):

$$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right] = \left[\hat{A}_{-},\hat{B}_{2}\right] = -\lambda^{2} \left\{ s \left|\alpha\right|^{2} + \left(\frac{s^{2}-1}{4}\right) \left[\alpha^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}} + \alpha\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha} + 1\right] \right\}$$
(5.21)

Similarly, the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix}$ can be calculated to obtain (see Appendix-E, eqns. (E.9), (E.10), (E.14) and (E.15)):

$$\left[\hat{\mathbf{A}}_{+},\left[\hat{\mathbf{A}}_{+},\hat{\mathbf{B}}_{1}\right]\right] = \left(\frac{s^{2}-1}{2}\right)\lambda^{3}|\alpha|^{2}$$
(5.22)

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} = -\lambda^{3} \left\{ s^{2} |\alpha|^{2} + \left(\frac{s(s^{2}-1)}{4} \right) \left[\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + 1 \right] + \left[\frac{(s+1)^{2}(s-1)^{2}}{8} \right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right\}$$
(5.23)

and,

$$\left[\hat{A}_{-},\left[\hat{A}_{-},\hat{B}_{2}\right]\right] = -\left[\hat{A}_{+},\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\right]$$
(5.24)

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_2, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_-, \hat{B}_2 \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} = -\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_1, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_+, \hat{B}_1 \end{bmatrix}$$
(5.25)

The expressions for the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ for different values of the ordering parameter *s* are illustrated in Tables (5.1) and (5.2), where eqn. (5.16) and the eqns. (5.21)-(5.25) have been used to obtain the results:

Table (5.1)

The expressions for the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_+, \hat{B}_1 \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_-, \hat{B}_2 \end{bmatrix}$ for different values of the ordering parameter *s*.

S	$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]$	$\left[\hat{A}_{-},\hat{B}_{2}\right]$	
1	$-\lambda \hat{A}_+$	$\lambda \hat{A}_{-}$	
0	$\left(\frac{\lambda^2}{4}\right)\left[\alpha^*\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^*} + \alpha\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha} + 1\right]$	$\left(\frac{\lambda^2}{4}\right)\left[\alpha^*\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^*} + \alpha\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha} + 1\right]$	
-1	$\lambda \hat{A}_+$	$-\lambda \hat{A}_{-}$	

Table (5.2) The expressions for the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ for different values of the

ordering parameter s.

S	$\left[\hat{A}_{+}, \left[\hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1}\right]\right]$	$\left[\hat{B}_{1},\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\right]$	$\left[\hat{A}_{-}, \left[\hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2}\right]\right]$	$\left[\hat{B}_2, \left[\hat{A}, \hat{B}_2\right]\right]$
1	0	$-\lambda^2 \hat{A}_+$	0	$-\lambda^2 \hat{A}$
0	$-\left(\frac{\lambda^2}{2}\right)\hat{A}_+$	$-\left(\frac{\lambda^3}{8}\right)\frac{\partial^2}{\partial\alpha\partial\alpha^*}$	$-\left(\frac{\lambda^2}{2}\right)\hat{A}$	$\left(\frac{\lambda^3}{8}\right)\frac{\partial^2}{\partial\alpha\partial\alpha^*}$
-1	0	$-\lambda^2 \hat{A}_+$	0	$-\lambda^2 \hat{A}$

The fact that the expressions for the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$, $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ shown in Table (5.2) are non-vanishing for all three values of the ordering parameter *s* means that the conditions given in eqns. (5.19) and (5.20) are not satisfied. In other words, the BCH-formula cannot be applied to solve the problem of the disentanglement of the operators appearing in eqn. (5.12).

An alternative solution to this operator disentanglement problem could be through the Zassenhous formula [127]

$$e^{\hat{\mathbf{A}}+\hat{\mathbf{B}}} = e^{\hat{\mathbf{A}}} \cdot e^{\hat{\mathbf{B}}} \cdot e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}}$$
(5.26)

Again, the operators \hat{A} and \hat{B} are substituted from eqns. (5.16) and (5.17) respectively and the operator $e^{\hat{C}}$ can be calculated by employing the method introduced in ref. [128] since the same conditions of ref. [128] apply to our case, i.e.,

$$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right] = -f\left(Z\right)\hat{A}_{+}$$
(5.27)

$$\left[\hat{A}_{-},\hat{B}_{2}\right] = -f(Z)\hat{A}_{-}$$
(5.28)

where f(Z) represents any real function of arbitrary variable $Z \in \mathbb{R}$.

In our case, the function f(Z), denoted here for convenience by $\gamma_q^{(s)}$, can be calculated according to eqns. (5.27) and (5.28) as:

$$\gamma_{q}^{(s)} = \begin{cases} \frac{-\left[\hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1}\right]}{\hat{A}_{+}} & \text{associated with the operator } \hat{A}_{+} \\ \frac{-\left[\hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2}\right]}{\hat{A}_{-}} & \text{associated with the operator } \hat{A}_{-} \end{cases}$$
(5.29)

Thus, the operator $e^{\hat{C}}$ can be written as [128]:

$$e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}} = e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}_2} \cdot e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}_3} \cdots e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}_\infty} = e^{\left[\sum_{m=1}^\infty \left(\frac{1-m}{m!}\right)\left(-\gamma_q^{(s)}\right)^{m-1}\right]\hat{\mathbf{A}}_{\pm}$$
(5.30)

and the subscript q and superscript s in $\gamma_q^{(s)}$ refer respectively to the q-deformation and the associated type of ordering, i.e.; s = 1, 0, -1. But since [128]:

$$\sum_{m=1}^{\infty} \left(\frac{1-m}{m!}\right) \left(-\gamma_q^{(s)}\right)^{m-1} = \left(-\gamma_q^{(s)}\right)^{-1} \left(e^{-\gamma_q^{(s)}}-1\right) - e^{-\gamma_q^{(s)}}$$
(5.31)

then, inserting eqn. (5.31) into eqn. (5.30) results in:

$$e^{\hat{C}} = e^{\hat{C}_{2}} \cdot e^{\hat{C}_{3}} \cdots e^{\hat{C}_{\infty}} = e^{\left[\left(-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}\right)^{-1} \left\{e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}} - 1\right\} - e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}}\right] \hat{A}_{\pm}$$
(5.32)

Substituting \hat{A}_{\pm} from eqn. (5.16) and the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix}$ from Table (5.1) into eqn. (5.29) leads to three expressions for $\gamma_{q}^{(s)}$ as given in Table (5.3).

Table (5.3)

The expressions for $\gamma_q^{(s)}$ corresponding to different values of the ordering

Inserting the expressions for $\gamma_q^{(s)}$ from Table (5.3) into eqn. (5.32) produces different expressions for $e^{\hat{C}}$ associated with different values of *s*. These results are summarized in Table (5.4).

The expressions for $e^{\hat{\mathbf{C}}}$ corresponding to different *s* values.

Substituting $e^{\hat{C}}$ from eqn. (5.32) into eqn. (5.26) gives:

$$e^{\hat{A}_{+}+\hat{B}_{1}} = e^{\hat{A}_{+}} \cdot e^{\hat{B}_{1}} \cdot e^{\left[\left(-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}\right)^{-1}\left\{e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}}-1\right\}-e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}}\right]\hat{A}_{+}}$$
(5.33)
$$e^{\hat{A}_{-}+\hat{B}_{2}} = e^{\hat{A}_{-}} \cdot e^{\hat{B}_{2}} \cdot e^{\left[\left(-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}\right)^{-1}\left\{e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}}-1\right\}-e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}}\right]\hat{A}_{-}}$$
(5.34)

where the expressions for $\gamma_q^{(s)}$ associated with \hat{A}_+ and \hat{A}_- are given in Table (5.3) for different *s* values. Eqns. (5.33) and (5.34) represent the solution of the operator disentanglement problem for eqn. (5.12).

Substitution of the expressions for \hat{A}_{\pm} , \hat{B}_{1} and \hat{B}_{2} into eqns. (5.33) and (5.34) gives:

$$e^{\lambda} \left[|\alpha|^{2} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4}\right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right]_{=}$$

$$e^{\lambda} |\alpha|^{2} e^{\lambda} \left[\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4}\right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right]_{=}$$

$$e^{\lambda} |\alpha|^{2} e^{\lambda} \left[\left(-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}\right)^{-1} \left\{ e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}} - 1 \right\} - e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}} \right] \hat{A}_{+}$$

$$e^{-\lambda} \left[|\alpha|^{2} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4}\right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right]_{=}$$

$$e^{-\lambda} |\alpha|^{2} e^{-\lambda} \left[\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4}\right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right]_{=}$$

$$e^{-\lambda} |\alpha|^{2} e^{-\lambda} \left[\left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4}\right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right]_{=}$$

$$(5.36)$$

Finally, substituting eqns. (5.35) and (5.36) into eqn. (5.12) results in:
$$\frac{\partial \varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \left\{ 4\sinh(\lambda) \right\}^{-1} \left[\left(1+e^{\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right)} \right] \\ \cdot e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} e^{\lambda \left[\left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4} \right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \\ \cdot e^{\left[\left(-\gamma_{q}^{(s)} \right)^{-1} \left\{ e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}} - 1 \right\} - e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}} \right] \hat{A}_{+}} \\ + \left(1+e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda \left[\frac{s-1}{2} \right] e^{-\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} \\ \cdot e^{-\lambda \left[\left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left[\frac{(s^{2}-1)}{4} \right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \\ \cdot e^{\left[\left(-\gamma_{q}^{(s)} \right)^{-1} \left\{ e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}} - 1 \right\} - e^{-\gamma_{q}^{(s)}} \right] \hat{A}_{-}} \right] + c.c. \right\} \varphi_{q}^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

$$(5.37)$$

Eqn. (5.37) represents the quantum Liouville equation for the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in terms of the q-deformed quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi_q^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in α -representation. Substituting the values of the ordering parameter *s* (i.e.; *s* = 1, 0, -1) into eqn. (5.37) leads to the q-analogs of the well-known quasiprobability functions in quantum optics, namely; the Husimi *Q*-function (*s* = 1), the Wigner W-function (*s* = 0) and the Glauber-Sudarshan P-function (*s* = -1). This thesis is concerned with the q-analog of both *Q*-function (*s* = 1) and P-function (*s* = -1), where for these two functions, eqn. (5.37) has a well-behaved analytical solution as will be seen in the next sections.

5.1.2 The q-deformed Husimi Q_q -function (s = 1), Glauber-Sudarshan P_q -function (s = -1) and the Dilatation (Shift) Operator

The q-deformed quasiprobabilitity distribution function $\varphi_q^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ that appeared in eqn. (5.37) represents the q-analog of the function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$. Hence, for (s=1) this function becomes $\varphi_q^{(1)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$, and from Table (2.1) this function is the q-analog of $Q \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ which is denoted by $Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$. Substituting $Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t), \hat{A}_{\pm}$ and $\gamma_q^{(1)}$ into eqn. (5.37) leads to:

$$\frac{\partial Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \left\{ 4\sinh(\lambda) \right\}^{-1} \left[\left(1 + e^{\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} \right]^{2} \\ \cdot e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} e^{\left[\left(-\lambda \right)^{-1} \left(e^{-\lambda} - 1 \right) - e^{-\lambda} \right] \left(\lambda |\alpha|^{2} \right)} + \left(1 + e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} \\ \cdot e^{-\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} e^{\left[\left(\lambda \right)^{-1} \left(e^{\lambda} - 1 \right) - e^{\lambda} \right] \left(-\lambda |\alpha|^{2} \right)} \right] + c.c. \right\} Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$
(5.38)

which can be simplified to

$$\frac{\partial Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \left\{ 4\sinh(\lambda) \right\}^{-1} \cdot \left[\left(1+e^{\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} e^{-\left\{ (1+\lambda)e^{-\lambda} - 1 \right\} \left(|\alpha|^{2} \right)} + \left(1+e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} \cdot e^{-\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} e^{-\left\{ (1-\lambda)e^{\lambda} - 1 \right\} \left(|\alpha|^{2} \right)} \right] + c.c. \right\} Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

$$(5.39)$$

Similarly, the q-deformed quasiprobability distribution function is denoted by $P_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t) = \varphi_q^{(-1)}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$. As for $Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$, insertion of $P_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$, \hat{A}_{\pm} and $\gamma_q^{(-1)}$ into eqn. (5.37) gives:

$$\frac{\partial P_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \left\{ 4\sinh(\lambda) \right\}^{-1} \left[\left(1 + e^{\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda} e^{\lambda} |\alpha|^{2} \right] \right. \\ \left. \cdot e^{-\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} e^{\left\{ \left(1 - \lambda \right) e^{\lambda} - 1 \right\}} \left(|\alpha|^{2} \right) + \left(1 + e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda} e^{-\lambda} |\alpha|^{2}} \right. \\ \left. \cdot e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} e^{\left\{ \left(1 + \lambda \right) e^{-\lambda} - 1 \right\}} \left(|\alpha|^{2} \right) \right] + c.c. \right\} P_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

$$(5.40)$$

Since the action of the dilatation (shift) operator $e^{\beta x \frac{\partial}{\partial x}}$ on a function F(x) can be written as (see eqn. (3.21)):

$$e^{\beta x \frac{\partial}{\partial x}} F(x) = F(x e^{\beta})$$
(5.41)

for any arbitrary constant β , then one can employ eqn. (5.41), assuming that

 $\beta = \pm \lambda$ and replacing F x by $F(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ to write:

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^{*}}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}F(\alpha,\alpha^{*}) = F(\alpha,e^{\pm\lambda}\alpha^{*})$$
(5.42)

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}F(\alpha,\alpha^*) = F(e^{\pm\lambda}\alpha,\alpha^*)$$
(5.43)

Eqns. (5.42) and (5.43) can be generalized to the case when the shift operator acts on the product of two function $F(\alpha, \alpha^*)G(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ (see Appendix-F, eqns. (F.10) and (F.11)).

Using this result leads to:

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^{*}}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}F(\alpha,\alpha^{*})G(\alpha,\alpha^{*})=F(\alpha,e^{\pm\lambda}\alpha^{*})e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^{*}}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}G(\alpha,\alpha^{*}) \quad (5.44)$$

and,

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}F(\alpha,\alpha^*)G(\alpha,\alpha^*)=F(e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\alpha,\alpha^*)e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}G(\alpha,\alpha^*)$$
(5.45)

Letting

$$F(\alpha, \alpha^*) = \begin{cases} e^{-\left\{ (1+\lambda)e^{-\lambda} - 1 \right\} \left(|\alpha|^2 \right)} \\ e^{-\left\{ (1-\lambda)e^{-\lambda} - 1 \right\} \left(|\alpha|^2 \right)} \end{cases}$$
(5.46)

and,

$$G(\alpha, \alpha^*) = Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$$
(5.47)

and substituting eqns. (5.46) and (5.47) into eqns. (5.44) and (5.45), gives:

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^{*}}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}e^{-\left\{(1+\lambda)e^{-\lambda}-1\right\}\left(|\alpha|^{2}\right)}Q_{q}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t) = e^{-\left\{(1+\lambda)e^{-\lambda}-1\right\}\left[e^{\pm\lambda}|\alpha|^{2}\right]}e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^{*}}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}Q_{q}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t)$$
(5.48)

and,

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}e^{-\left\{(1-\lambda)e^{\lambda}-1\right\}\left(|\alpha|^{2}\right)}Q_{q}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t) = e^{-\left\{(1-\lambda)e^{\lambda}-1\right\}\left[e^{\pm\lambda}|\alpha|^{2}\right]}e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}Q_{q}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t)$$

$$(5.49)$$

Then, substituting eqns. (5.48) and (5.49) into eqn. (5.39), this equation becomes:

$$\frac{\partial Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \left\{ 4\sinh(\lambda) \right\}^{-1} \cdot \left[\left(1+e^{\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} e^{-\left\{ (1+\lambda)e^{-\lambda} - 1 \right\} \left[e^{\lambda} |\alpha|^{2} \right]} e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \left(1+e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} \cdot e^{-\left\{ (1-\lambda)e^{\lambda} - 1 \right\} \left[e^{-\lambda} |\alpha|^{2} \right]} e^{-\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] + c.c. \right\} Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$
(5.50)

But since,

$$e^{-\left\{\left(1+\lambda\right)e^{-\lambda}-1\right\}\left[e^{\lambda}\left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right]_{=}e^{-\left|\alpha\right|^{2}}e^{-\lambda\left|\alpha\right|^{2}}e^{\left(e^{\lambda}\left|\alpha\right|^{2}\right)}$$
(5.51)

and,

$$e^{-\left\{\left(1-\lambda\right)e^{\lambda}-1\right\}\left[e^{-\lambda}|\alpha|^{2}\right]_{=}e^{-\left|\alpha\right|^{2}}e^{\lambda}|\alpha|^{2}e^{\left(e^{-\lambda}|\alpha|^{2}\right)}$$
(5.52)

then, substituting eqns. (5.51) and (5.52) into eqn. (5.50) gives:

$$\frac{\partial Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = \left\{ -i\omega \{4\sinh(\lambda)\}^{-1} \left[(1 + e^{\lambda}) e^{-|\alpha|^{2}} e^{(e^{\lambda} |\alpha|^{2})} e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + (1 + e^{-\lambda}) e^{-|\alpha|^{2}} e^{(e^{-\lambda} |\alpha|^{2})} e^{-\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] + c.c. \right\} Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

$$(5.53)$$

After substituting the complex conjugate terms and re-arranging, eqn. (5.53) becomes:

$$\frac{\partial Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega \{4\sinh(\lambda)\}^{-1} e^{-|\alpha|^{2}}$$

$$\cdot \left\{ (1+e^{\lambda}) e^{\left(e^{\lambda} |\alpha|^{2}\right)} \left[e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - e^{\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \right\}$$

$$- (1+e^{-\lambda}) e^{\left(e^{-\lambda} |\alpha|^{2}\right)} \left[e^{-\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - e^{-\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \right\} Q_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

(5.54)

Eqn. (5.54) represents the quantum Liouville equation for the 1-D q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator where the probability distribution function is the Husimi function $Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$.

Similarly, one can simplify the Glauber-Sudarshan eqn. (5.40) for quasiprobability $P_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ to obtain:

$$\frac{\partial P_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega \{4\sinh(\lambda)\}^{-1} e^{|\alpha|^{2}}$$

$$\cdot \left\{ \left(1 + e^{-\lambda}\right) e^{\lambda} e^{\left(-e^{\lambda}|\alpha|^{2}\right)} \left[e^{\lambda\alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}} - e^{\lambda\alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha} \right] \right\}$$

$$- \left(1 + e^{\lambda}\right) e^{-\lambda} e^{\left(-e^{-\lambda}|\alpha|^{2}\right)} \left[e^{-\lambda\alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}} - e^{-\lambda\alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha} \right] \right\} P_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$
(5.55)

5.1.3 Zaslavskii's Method for Deriving the Quantum Liouville Equation for the q-Deformed Oscillator in the α -Representation

According to Zaslavskii [129], the equation of motion of an averaged physical quantity $\xi \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ is defined as [129]:

$$\frac{\partial \xi \ \alpha, \alpha^*; t}{\partial t} = -i\hat{\mathbf{K}} \xi \ \alpha, \alpha^*; t$$
(5.56)

where,

$$\hat{\mathbf{K}} = \left(\frac{1}{\hbar}\right) e^{-\left|\alpha\right|^{2}} \left\{ \hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \ \alpha^{*}, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \ \alpha, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right\} e^{\left|\alpha\right|^{2}}$$
(5.57)

The Hamiltonian of the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator is given by eqn. (3.34). And according to Sudarshan [102], one has the following correspondence:

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger} \rightarrow \alpha^{*} \\ \hat{a} \rightarrow \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} da^{*}, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}$$
(5.58)

and,

$$\hat{a} \rightarrow \alpha \\ \hat{a}^{\dagger} \rightarrow \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}$$
 for $\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \alpha, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}$ (5.59)

Substituting eqns. (5.58) and (5.59) into the expressions for $[\hat{N}]_q$ and $[\hat{N}+1]_q$

appearing in $\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \alpha^{*}, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}$ by using eqns. (3.35), leads to:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{N} \end{bmatrix}_{q} = \frac{\sinh \lambda \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}}{\sinh \lambda} \\ \hat{N} + 1_{q} = \frac{\sinh \left[\lambda \left[\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + 1 \right] \right]}{\sinh \lambda} \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{N} \end{bmatrix}_{q} = \frac{q \hat{N} - q^{-1}}{q - q^{-1}}$ (5.60)

and,

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{N} \end{bmatrix}_{q} = \frac{e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - 1}{e^{\lambda} - 1} \\ \hat{N} + 1_{q} = \frac{e^{\lambda \left[\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + 1 \right]} - 1}{e^{\lambda} - 1} \end{bmatrix}$$
 for $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{N} \end{bmatrix}_{q} = \frac{q^{\hat{N}} - 1}{q - 1}$ (5.61)

The same method can be used for $[\hat{N}]_q$ and $[\hat{N}+1]_q$ appearing in $\hat{\mathbb{H}}_q \alpha, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}$. Now, insertion of $[\hat{N}]_q$ and $[\hat{N}+1]_q$ from eqns. (5.60) and (5.61) into eqn. (3.34), gives:

$$\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \alpha^{*}, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \frac{\sinh \lambda \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}}{\sinh \lambda} + \frac{\sinh \lambda \left[\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + 1\right]}{\sinh \lambda} \right\}$$
(5.62a)

hence,

$$\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \alpha^{*}, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \left(\frac{\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}}{e^{\lambda} - 1}\right) + \left(\frac{\lambda \left[\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + 1\right]}{e^{\lambda} - 1}\right) \right\}$$
(5.62b)

and,

$$\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \alpha, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \frac{\sinh \lambda \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}}{\sinh \lambda} + \frac{\sinh \lambda \left[\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + 1\right]}{\sinh \lambda} \right\}$$
(5.63a)

hence,

$$\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \alpha, \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \left(\frac{e^{\alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}}{e^{\lambda} - 1}\right) + \left(\frac{e^{\lambda} \left[\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + 1\right]}{e^{\lambda} - 1}\right) \right\}$$
(5.63b)

respectively.

Using eqns. (5.62) and (5.63) in eqn. (5.57), leads to:

$$\hat{\mathbf{K}} = \boldsymbol{\omega} \ 2 \sinh \lambda \ ^{-1} e^{-|\boldsymbol{\alpha}|^2} \left\{ \sinh \lambda \boldsymbol{\alpha}^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}^*} + \sinh \lambda \left[\boldsymbol{\alpha}^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}^*} + 1 \right] \right. \\ \left. - \sinh \lambda \boldsymbol{\alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}} - \sinh \lambda \left[\boldsymbol{\alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}} + 1 \right] \right\} e^{|\boldsymbol{\alpha}|^2}$$

$$(5.64a)$$

and,

$$\hat{\mathbf{K}} = \omega \ 2 \ e^{\lambda} - 1 \ e^{-|\alpha|^2} \left\{ e^{\lambda \alpha^*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} + e^{\lambda \left[\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} + 1 \right]} - e^{\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right. \\ \left. - e^{\lambda \left[\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + 1 \right]} \right\} e^{|\alpha|^2}$$

$$(5.64b)$$

Then, using the definition of the sine hyperbolic function and re-arranging terms, eqn. (5.64a) can be cast in the form:

$$\hat{\mathbf{K}} = \boldsymbol{\omega} \quad 4\sinh \lambda \quad {}^{-1}e^{-|\boldsymbol{\alpha}|^{2}} \left\{ 1 + e^{\lambda} \left[e^{\lambda \boldsymbol{\alpha}^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}^{*}} - e^{\lambda \boldsymbol{\alpha}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}} \right] - 1 + e^{-\lambda} \left[e^{-\lambda \boldsymbol{\alpha}^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}^{*}} - e^{-\lambda \boldsymbol{\alpha}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}} \right] \right\} e^{|\boldsymbol{\alpha}|^{2}}$$
5.65a

Similarly, eqn. (5.64b) becomes:

$$\hat{\mathbf{K}} = \omega \ 2 \ e^{\lambda} - 1 \quad e^{-|\alpha|^2} \left\{ 1 + e^{\lambda} \left[e^{\lambda \alpha^*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - e^{\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \right\} e^{|\alpha|^2}$$
(5.65b)

Eqns. (5.65a) and (5.65b) can be substituted in eqn. (5.56) and after replacing $\xi \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ by $\xi_q \alpha, \alpha^*; t$, one obtains:

$$\frac{\partial \xi_q \ \alpha, \alpha^*; t}{\partial t} = -i\omega \ 4\sinh \lambda \ ^{-1} e^{-|\alpha|^2} \left\{ 1 + e^{\lambda} \left[e^{\lambda \alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}} - e^{\lambda \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}} \right] \right] \right\}$$

$$-1+e^{-\lambda}\left[e^{-\lambda\alpha^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}}-e^{-\lambda\alpha\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}}\right]\left|e^{|\alpha|^{2}}\xi_{q}\alpha,\alpha^{*};t\right.$$
5.66a

and,

$$\frac{\partial \xi_{q} \alpha, \alpha^{*}; t}{\partial t} = -i\omega \ 2 \ e^{\lambda} - 1 \ e^{-|\alpha|^{2}} \left\{ 1 + e^{\lambda} \left[e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - e^{\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \right\} \\ \cdot e^{|\alpha|^{2}} \xi_{q} \alpha, \alpha^{*}; t$$

(5.66b)

respectively, where the function $\xi_q \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ represents the q-analog of the averaged physical quantity $\xi \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ appearing in ref. [129]. Also, it is noted that the function $\xi_q \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ reduces to $\xi \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ in the limit $q \rightarrow 1$.

Finally, eqn. (5.66a) and (5.66b) can be simplified by using eqns. (5.44) and (5.45) with $F(\alpha, \alpha^*) = e^{|\alpha|^2}$, $G(\alpha, \alpha^*) = \xi_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ and re-arranging to get:

$$\frac{\partial \xi_{q} \alpha, \alpha^{*}; t}{\partial t} = -i\omega 4 \sinh \lambda^{-1} e^{-|\alpha|^{2}} \left\{ 1 + e^{\lambda} e^{e^{\lambda} |\alpha|^{2}} \\ \cdot \left[e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - e^{\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] - 1 + e^{-\lambda} e^{e^{-\lambda} |\alpha|^{2}} \\ \cdot \left[e^{-\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - e^{-\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \right\} \xi_{q} \alpha, \alpha^{*}; t$$
(5.67a)

and,

$$\frac{\partial \xi_{q} \alpha, \alpha^{*}; t}{\partial t} = -i\omega \ 2 \ e^{\lambda} - 1 \ e^{-|\alpha|^{2}}$$

$$\cdot \left\{ 1 + e^{\lambda} e^{-|\alpha|^{2}} \left[e^{\lambda \alpha^{*}} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - e^{\lambda \alpha} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \right\} \xi_{q} \alpha, \alpha^{*}; t$$

(5.67b)

respectively.

Eqns. (5.67) represent the quantum Liouville equations for the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator in the α -representation. The probability distribution function $\xi_q \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ in eqn. (5.67a) is equal to $Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ since eqn. (5.67a) is the same as eqn. (5.54).

5.2 The Quantum Liouville Equation of the q-Deformed 1-D Quantum Harmonic Oscillator in the α_q -Representation

A quantum Liouville equation for the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator

can be also obtained for the q-deformation defined by $f \ \hat{N} = \sqrt{\frac{\hat{N}q}{\hat{N}}}$ where

 $\left[\hat{N}\right]_q = \frac{q^{\hat{N}} - 1}{q - 1}$ in the α_q -representation. The aim of this section is to show that this is possible by using the q-deformed P-representation based on the q-deformed coherent states that have been introduced by Arik and Coon [9].

5.2.1 The q-Analog of Glauber-Sudarshan P-Representation

The q-deformed boson operators \hat{a}_q and \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} in this case obey the q-commutation relation [9]:

$$\left[\hat{a}_{q},\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\right]_{q} = \hat{a}_{q}\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} - q\,\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\hat{a}_{q} = 1$$

$$(5.68)$$

where $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{a}_q, \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \end{bmatrix}_q$ represents the q-commutator.

The unnormalized q-deformed coherent state $\|\alpha_q\rangle$ is defined as the eigenfunction of the q-deformed annihilation boson operator \hat{a}_q , or [9]:

$$\hat{a}_{q} \| \alpha_{q} \rangle = \alpha_{q} \| \alpha_{q} \rangle \tag{5.69}$$

where,

$$\left\|\alpha_{q}\right\rangle = \sum_{\mathbf{n}=0}^{\infty} \frac{\alpha_{q}^{\mathbf{n}}}{[\mathbf{n}]_{q}!} \left\|\mathbf{n}\right\rangle_{q}$$
(5.70)

and the q-deformed Hilbert space bases are given by [9]:

$$\left\| \mathbf{n} \right\rangle_{q} = \left(\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \right)^{\mathbf{n}} \left\| \mathbf{0} \right\rangle_{q} \tag{5.71}$$

such that

$$\hat{a}_{q} \left\| 0 \right\rangle_{q} = 0 \tag{5.72}$$

$$q \left\langle 0 \left\| 0 \right\rangle_{q} = 1 \tag{5.73}$$

It can also be shown that [9]:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \mathbf{n} \right\rangle_{q} = \left\| \mathbf{n} + 1 \right\rangle_{q} \tag{5.74}$$

$$\hat{a}_{q} \| \mathbf{n} \rangle_{q} = [\mathbf{n}]_{q} \| \mathbf{n} - \mathbf{1} \rangle_{q}$$
(5.75)

where $[n]_q$ is as defined by eqn. (3.5).

Therefore, the scalar product $q \langle m \| n \rangle_q$, using eqns. (5.71), (5.74) and (5.75), becomes:

$$_{q}\left\langle \mathbf{m}\right\|\mathbf{n}\right\rangle_{q} = _{q}\left\langle 0\right\|\left(\hat{a}_{q}\right)^{\mathbf{m}}\left(\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\right)^{\mathbf{n}}\left\|0\right\rangle_{q} = [\mathbf{n}]_{q}! \,\delta_{\mathbf{nm}}$$
(5.76)

where $[n]_q!$ is as defined by eqn. (3.12).

The action of \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} on $\|\alpha_q^{\dagger}\rangle$ can also be written as (see Appendix-G)

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \tag{5.77}$$

where $\frac{D}{D\alpha_q}$ represents the q-differential operator defined as [9]:

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_q} f(\alpha_q) = \frac{f(\alpha_q) - f(q\alpha_q)}{\alpha_q - q\alpha_q}$$
(5.78)

The operators \hat{a}_q and \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} are Hermitian adjoints of each other and the Hilbert space $\left\{ \|\mathbf{n}\rangle_q \right\}$ is the Hilbert space adjoint of the Hilbert Space $\left\{ q \langle \mathbf{n} \| \right\}$. Therefore,

$$\left(\hat{a}_{q} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle\right)^{\dagger} = \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \alpha_{q}^{*} \tag{5.79}$$

and,

$$\left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \hat{a}_{q} = \left(\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \right)^{\dagger} = \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}^{*}}$$
(5.80)

Arik and Coon [9] have also proved that for the states $\{\|\alpha_q\}$ there is also a resolution of identity in the form:

$$\hat{\mathbf{I}} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^2 \alpha_q}{E_q(\sigma)} \|\alpha_q\rangle \langle \alpha_q \|$$
(5.81)

where,

$$\sigma = q \left| \alpha_q \right|^2 \tag{5.82}$$

$$D^2 \alpha_q = D \alpha_q D \alpha_q^* \tag{5.83}$$

and *D* is the q-deformed differential associated with the q-deformed differential operator $\frac{D}{D\alpha_q}$, \mathbb{S} represents the basic integral, which is for a function F of real

variable *x* defined as [9]:

$$\overset{\mathbf{b}}{\underset{0}{\mathbb{S}}} F(x) D x \equiv (1-q) \mathbf{b} \sum_{\ell=0}^{\infty} q^{\ell} F(q^{\ell} \mathbf{b})$$
(5.84)

and the q-deformed exponential $E_q(\sigma)$ is defined as [9]:

$$E_q(\sigma) = \frac{1}{G\left(q(1-q)\left|\alpha_q\right|^2\right)}$$
(5.85)

where, $G(q(1-q)|\alpha_q|^2)$ is an entire function and $\lim_{q \to 1} E_q(\sigma) = e^{|\alpha|^2}$.

Then, by using the resolution of identity as in eqn. (5.81), one can write the \mathbb{P}_q -representation of the density operator $\hat{\rho}_q$ in the α_q -representation as:

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \left\|\alpha_{q}\right\rangle \left\langle \alpha_{q}\right\|$$
(5.86)

where, $\hat{\rho}_q$ and $\mathbb{P}_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ represent the q-analogs of the density operator $\hat{\rho}$ and the weight function $P(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ for the Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation respectively (see eqn. (2.59).

Using these results, one can write the following relations (see Appendix-H, eqns. (H.17), (H.18), (H.19) and (H.20))

$$\hat{a}_{q}\,\hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi}\,\mathbb{S}\,\frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}}{E_{q}\left(\sigma\right)}\,\left\|\alpha_{q}\right\rangle\!\left\langle\alpha_{q}\right\|\alpha_{q}\,\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\tag{5.87}$$

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \|\alpha_{q}\rangle \langle \alpha_{q} \| \alpha_{q}^{*} \mathbb{P}_{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*})$$
(5.88)

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(5.89)

and,

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \|\alpha_{q}\rangle \langle \alpha_{q} \| \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}^{*}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(5.90)

Hence, eqns. of correspondence which are the analogs of eqns. (2.65), (2.66), (2.67) and (2.68) in α -representation can be written in α_q -representation in the form:

$$\hat{a}_{q}\,\hat{\rho}_{q} \to \alpha_{q}\,\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \tag{5.91}$$

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \ \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \to \alpha_{q}^{*} \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(5.92)

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(5.93)

and,

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(5.94)

These equations permit the derivation of q-analog equations corresponding to eqns. (2.61) - (2.64) in the α_q -representation. Thus, by multiplying both sides of eqn. (5.89) from the left by \hat{a}_q , one obtains:

$$\hat{a}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \hat{a}_{q} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \quad (5.95)$$

The substitution of eqn. (5.69) into eqn. (5.95) gives:

$$\hat{a}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \|\alpha_{q}\rangle \langle \alpha_{q} \|\alpha_{q} \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \quad (5.96)$$

But since \hat{a}_q and \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} are both Hermitian adjoints of each other and $\hat{\rho}_q$ is self-adjoint, then the conjugate of eqn. (5.96) becomes;

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} = \left(\hat{a}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}\right)^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \|\alpha_{q}\rangle \langle \alpha_{q}\|$$
$$\cdot \alpha_{q}^{*} \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(5.97)

Also, one can show that (see Appendix-H, eqns. (H.34) and (H.35))

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} \hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}} \right] \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q} \right) \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$

$$(5.98)$$

and,

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} = \left(\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} \hat{\rho}\right)^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \|\alpha_{q}\rangle \langle \alpha_{q}\|$$
$$\cdot \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \tag{5.99}$$

Thus, the correspondence equations in the α_q -representation, which are the analogs of eqns. (D.27), (D.28), (D.29) and (D.30) in the α -representation given in Appendix-D, become (see Appendix-H, eqns. (H.36) and (H.37)):

$$\hat{a}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q} \rightarrow \alpha_{q} \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(5.100)

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \rightarrow \alpha_{q}^{*} \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}^{*}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(5.101)

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q}^{\dagger} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right] \left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{\dagger}, \alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(5.102)

and,

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}^{*}} \right] \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(5.103)

These correspondence equations represent novel results and will play an important role in deriving the quantum Liouville equation for the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator in the α_q -representation.

5.2.2 The Quantum Liouville Equation in Terms of q-Derivatives

The quantum Liouville equation in terms of q-derivative can be derived by substituting the Hamiltonian of the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator as given by eqn. (3.30a) in the Heisenberg equation of motion (i.e., eqn. (2.57)) to yield:

$$\frac{\partial \hat{\rho}_q}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \hat{a}_q \,\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \,\hat{\rho}_q + \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \,\hat{a}_q \,\hat{\rho}_q - \hat{\rho}_q \,\hat{a}_q \,\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} - \hat{\rho}_q \,\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \,\hat{a}_q \,\right\}$$
(5.104)

Using the correspondence of eqns. (5.100) - (5.103), eqn. (5.104) for the density

operator can be transformed to the \mathbb{P}_q -representation in a manner similar to what has been done in the α -space. This gives:

$$\frac{\partial \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \alpha_{q}\left[\alpha_{q}^{*}-\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) + \left[\alpha_{q}^{*}-\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right] \left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \alpha_{q}^{*}\left[\alpha_{q}-\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \left[\alpha_{q}-\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right\}$$

$$(5.105)$$

Eqn. (5.105) can be simplified to give:

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\partial \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)}{\partial t} &= \\ -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \left[\left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \alpha_{q} \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right. \\ &\left. + \left[q^{-1} \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \left[\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right] \right. \\ &\left. - \left[\left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) + \left(\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right. \\ &\left. - \left[q^{-1} \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) + \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}} \left[\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right] \right\} \end{aligned}$$

$$(5.106)$$

Applying the product rule of q-differentiation eqn. (3.25) to

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left[\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}\right)\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)\right] \quad \text{with} \quad F(x) = q^{-1}\alpha_{q} \quad \text{and}$$

$$G(x) = \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \text{ gives:}$$

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left[\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}\right)\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)\right] =$$

$$q^{-1}\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) + \alpha_{q}\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \quad (5.107)$$
And, similarly for $\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\left[\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)\right], \text{ but with } F(x) = q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}$
and $G(x) = \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right), \text{ one obtains:}$

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\left[\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)\right] =$$

$$q^{-1} \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*}; t \right) + \left(\alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}^{*}} \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*}; t \right)$$

$$(5.108)$$

Substituting eqns. (5.107) and (5.108) into eqn. (5.106) and simplifying the result, then:

$$\begin{split} &\frac{\partial \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \\ &\cdot \left\{ \left[2 \alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - 2 \alpha_{q} \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right] \\ &+ \left(1+q^{-1}\right) \left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2} \left[\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right] \\ &+ q^{-1} \left[\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right] \right\} \end{split}$$

(5.109)

The Jackson derivative \mathcal{D}_{z}^{q} is defined as [115-117]:

$$\mathcal{D}_{z}^{q} = \frac{D}{D z}$$
(5.110)

Then, using $q^{\pm 1} = e^{\pm \lambda}$ and eqn.(5.110) in eqn. (5.109), this equation becomes:

$$\frac{\partial \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right)$$

$$\cdot \left\{ \left[2\alpha_{q}^{*} \mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}^{*}}^{q} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},e^{-\lambda}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - 2\alpha_{q} \mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}}^{q} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(e^{-\lambda}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right]$$

$$+ \left(1 + e^{-\lambda}\right) \left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2} \left[\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(e^{-\lambda}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},e^{-\lambda}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right]$$

$$+ e^{-\lambda} \left[\mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},e^{-\lambda}\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) - \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(e^{-\lambda}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \right] \right\}$$
(5.111)

Using the analogs of eqns. (5.42) and (5.43), in the α_q -representation, one can write:

$$e^{-\lambda \alpha_{q} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}}} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t\right) = \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(e^{-\lambda} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t\right)$$
(5.112)

$$e^{-\lambda \alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}^{*}}} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t\right) = \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, e^{-\lambda} \alpha_{q}^{*}; t\right)$$
(5.113)

Substituting eqns. (5.112) and (5.113) into eqn. (5.111), the final result is:

$$\begin{split} &\frac{\partial \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \\ &\cdot \left\{ \begin{bmatrix} & -\lambda\alpha_{q}^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}^{*}} & & -\lambda\alpha_{q}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}} \\ 2\alpha_{q}^{*}\mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}^{*}}^{q}e^{} & e^{} & -2\alpha_{q}\mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}}^{q}e^{} \end{bmatrix} \right. \\ &+ \left(1 + e^{-\lambda}\right) \left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2} \begin{bmatrix} -\lambda\alpha_{q}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}} & & -\lambda\alpha_{q}^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}^{*}} \\ e^{} & e^{} & -e^{} \end{bmatrix} \right\} \\ &+ e^{-\lambda} \begin{bmatrix} -\lambda\alpha_{q}^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}^{*}} & & -\lambda\alpha_{q}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}} \\ e^{} & e^{} & e^{} \end{bmatrix} \right\} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right) \end{split}$$

(5.114)

Eqn. (5.114) represents the quantum Liouville equation for the probability distribution function $\mathbb{P}_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*; t)$ of the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator in the α_q -representation.

5.3 The Classical Limit of the q-Deformed Quantum Harmonic Oscillator

The present section is devoted to the investigation of the classical limit of the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator. This investigation is performed on the basis of the quantum Liouville equations corresponding to this oscillator that have been derived in Secs. (5.1) and (5.2).

5.3.1 The Approach to the Classical Limit

The classical limit for the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator can be approached in a way similar to what has been done by Ghosh et al [76] for the undeformed 1-D quantum oscillator with some necessary modifications.

In the case of the undeformed 1-D quantum oscillator, the following conditions are used to approach the classical limit [76]:

$$\begin{split} &\hbar \to 0, |\alpha|^2 \to \infty \\ &\text{such that} \\ &\hbar |\alpha|^2 \to \text{finite} \end{split}$$
 (5.115)

These conditions are necessary to obtain the energy as the classical limit of the expectation value of the Hamiltonian for the case of the non-deformed oscillator where it is required that this expectation value (i.e., eqn. (2.51)) remains finite as $\hbar \rightarrow 0$.

For the case of the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator, the expectation value of the Hamiltonian in a coherent state $|\alpha\rangle$ can be obtained as:

$$\left\langle \alpha \left| \hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} \right| \alpha \right\rangle = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{4} \right) \left(\frac{1}{\sinh(\lambda)} \right) \left\{ \left(1 + e^{\lambda} \right) e^{\lambda \left| \alpha \right|^{2}} - \left(1 + e^{-\lambda} \right) e^{-\lambda \left| \alpha \right|^{2}} \right\}$$
(5.116)

where the Hamiltonian $\hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q}$ is given by eqn. (3.34), and the q-number operators

are given as
$$\hat{N}_{q} = \frac{\sinh \lambda \hat{N}}{\sinh \lambda}$$
 and $\hat{N} + 1_{q} = \frac{\sinh \lambda [\hat{N} + 1]}{\sinh \lambda}$.

Again, the classical limit of this expectation value could be taken to correspond to the classical energy of the q-deformed oscillator.

For this expectation value to remain finite as $\hbar \rightarrow 0$, a modification to the conditions given in eqns. (5.115) is necessary. This is due to the introduction of q-deformation which is related to the non-linearity parameter λ . The modified

conditions can be obtained by expanding all the exponential functions appearing in the expression for the expectation value of eqn. (5.116) as power series in λ to obtain:

$$\langle \alpha | \hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} | \alpha \rangle = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{4} \right) \left\{ \frac{1}{\lambda \left[1 + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{3!} + \frac{\lambda^{4}}{5!} + \cdots \right]} \right\}$$

$$\cdot \left\{ \left[2 + \lambda + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} + \frac{\lambda^{3}}{3!} + \cdots \right] \left(1 + \lambda |\alpha|^{2} + \frac{1}{2!} \lambda^{2} |\alpha|^{4} + \frac{1}{3!} \lambda^{3} |\alpha|^{6} + \cdots \right)$$

$$- \left[2 - \lambda + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} - \frac{\lambda^{3}}{3!} + \cdots \right] \left(1 - \lambda |\alpha|^{2} + \frac{1}{2!} \lambda^{2} |\alpha|^{4} - \frac{1}{3!} \lambda^{3} |\alpha|^{6} + \cdots \right) \right\}$$

$$(5.117)$$

Simplifying eqn. (5.117) then, after some lengthy mathematical manipulations, one obtains:

$$\langle \alpha | \hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} | \alpha \rangle = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{4} \right) \left\{ \frac{1}{\left[1 + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{3!} + \frac{\lambda^{4}}{5!} + \cdots \right]} \right\} \left\{ 4 |\alpha|^{2} + \frac{2\lambda^{2}}{3} |\alpha|^{6} + \cdots + 2 + \lambda^{2} |\alpha|^{4} + \cdots + \lambda^{2} |\alpha|^{2} + \frac{\lambda^{4}}{6} |\alpha|^{6} + \cdots + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{3} + \frac{\lambda^{4}}{6} |\alpha|^{4} + \cdots \right\}$$

$$(5.118)$$

Letting $\lambda \to 0$ (i.e., $q \to 1$) in eqn. (5.118), this equation will reduce, as expected, to the energy equation for the undeformed quantum harmonic oscillator of eqn. (2.51). Therefore, to apply the condition for approaching the classical limit, $\hbar \to 0$ one should take into consideration the fact that $\lambda \neq 0$ in the present q-deformed case.

The main idea again is to let the energy as represented by the expectation value of eqn. (5.118) remain finite as $\hbar \rightarrow 0$. It appears from eqn. (5.118) that as

 $\hbar \rightarrow 0$ this expectation value can remain finite only if some additional conditions on λ are applied. Table (5.5) shows the different cases that can arise.

Table (5.5)

Different cases that arise in taking the limit $\hbar \rightarrow 0$ for the q-deformed oscillator

	limiting condition	existence of
	Innung condition	classical limit
case-1	$\hbar \rightarrow 0$, $ \alpha ^2 \rightarrow \infty$ such that $\hbar \alpha ^2 \rightarrow$ finite, and	No
	keeping λ fixed.	110
case-2	$\hbar \rightarrow 0$, $ \alpha ^2 \rightarrow \infty$ such that $\hbar \rightarrow 0$ faster than	
	$\lambda \rightarrow 0$, i.e., $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar^{\delta}$ where $\delta = 1 - \varepsilon$	No
	and $0 < \varepsilon < 1$, hence, $\lambda \alpha ^2 \rightarrow$ undefined.	
case-3	$\hbar \rightarrow 0, \alpha ^2 \rightarrow \infty$ such that $\lambda \rightarrow 0$ as fast as	
	$\hbar \rightarrow 0$, i.e., $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar$, hence	Yes
	$\lambda \alpha ^2 \rightarrow \text{finite}$	
case-4	same as case-3 but $\lambda \rightarrow 0$ faster than $\hbar \rightarrow 0$, i.e.,	Yes, but the
	$\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar^{\delta}$ where $\delta = 1 + \varepsilon$ and $\varepsilon > 1$,	q-deformation must
	hence, $\lambda \alpha ^2 \rightarrow 0$	vanish

There are different reasons for the non-existence of classical limits in some of the cases shown in Table (5.5). For example, when applying the condition $\hbar \to 0$, $|\alpha|^2 \to \infty$ such that $\hbar |\alpha|^2 \to$ finite and keeping λ fixed (case-1), the terms in eqn. (5.118) containing $\lambda^{2m} |\alpha|^{2m+2}$, $\lambda^{2m} |\alpha|^{2m+4}$ and $\lambda^{2j} |\alpha|^{2j}$ (i.e., $m=1,2,\cdots$ and $j=2,3,\cdots$) will blow-up (i.e., go to ∞). This is interpreted to mean that under

such a condition (i.e., keeping λ fixed), a classical limit does not exist [97]. While when applying the condition $\hbar \to 0$ faster than $\lambda \to 0$, $|\alpha|^2 \to \infty$ and $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar \cdot \hbar^{-\mathcal{E}}$ such that $\lambda |\alpha|^2 \to$ undefined (i.e., case 2 in Table (5.5)), eqn. (5.118) does not produce a finite value for the energy. This is also interpreted to mean that under such condition (i.e., $\hbar \to 0$ faster than $\lambda \to 0$) the classical limit does not exist.

Applying the other limiting condition $\lambda \to 0$ faster than $\hbar \to 0$, $|\alpha|^2 \to \infty$ and $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar \cdot \hbar^{\varepsilon}$ such that $\lambda |\alpha|^2 \to 0$, (i.e., case 4 in Table (5.5)) then, eqn. (5.118) produces a finite value for the energy of the undeformed quantum oscillator (i.e., $\langle \alpha | \hat{H} | \alpha \rangle = \hbar \omega |\alpha|^2$). Again, this means that under such a condition (i.e., $\lambda \to 0$ faster than $\hbar \to 0$), a classical limit exists but the q-deformation must vanish. This case is similar to the case of taking $q \to 1$ (i.e., $\lambda \to 0$) in eqn. (5.118) as mentioned before. However, applying the limiting condition, $\lambda \to 0$ as fast as $\hbar \to 0$, $|\alpha|^2 \to \infty$ and $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar$ such that $\lambda |\alpha|^2 \to \text{finite}$ (i.e., case 3 in Table (5.5)), then all terms in eqn. (5.118) containing $\lambda^m |\alpha|^{2m+2} (m=1,2,\cdots)$ remain finite with other terms vanishing. Therefore, eqn. (5.118) reduces to the energy of the q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator as:

$$\langle \alpha | \hat{\mathbb{H}}_{q} | \alpha \rangle = \left(\frac{\hbar \omega}{4} \right) \left\{ 4 |\alpha|^{2} + \frac{2\lambda^{2}}{3} |\alpha|^{6} + \cdots \right\}$$
 (5.119)

This result means that under the condition, $\lambda \rightarrow 0$ as fast as $\hbar \rightarrow 0$ (i.e., case 3 in Table (5.5)), a classical limit exists. Therefore, this limiting condition (case 3) will be adopted in this thesis to approach the classical limit for the q-deformed quantum oscillator on the basis of its various representations of the Liouville equation.

5.3.2 The Classical Limit of the Liouville Equation for ${\cal Q}_q$ in the

α -Representation

Expanding all functions appearing in eqn. (5.54) as power series in λ , and simplifying the result, one obtains:

$$\begin{split} \frac{\partial \mathcal{Q}_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} &= -\left(\frac{i\omega}{4}\right) \left[\frac{1}{\left[1+S_{1}(\lambda)\right]}\right] \\ \cdot \left\{ \left[2+S_{2}(\lambda)\right] e^{\left[\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2} + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} \left|\alpha\right|^{2} + \cdots\right]} \right] \\ \cdot \left[\left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right) + \frac{\lambda}{2!} \left\{\left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)^{2} - \left(\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right)^{2}\right\} + \cdots\right] \right] \\ + \left[2+S_{3}(\lambda)\right] e^{\left[-\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^{2} + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} \left|\alpha\right|^{2} - \cdots\right]} \\ \cdot \left[\left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right) - \frac{\lambda}{2!} \left\{\left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)^{2} - \left(\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right)^{2}\right\} + \cdots\right]\right\} \\ \cdot \mathcal{Q}_{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t) \end{split}$$



where,

$$S_{1}(\lambda) = \frac{\lambda^{2}}{3!} + \frac{\lambda^{4}}{5!} + \frac{\lambda^{6}}{7!} + \cdots$$

$$S_{2}(\lambda) = \lambda + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} + \frac{\lambda^{3}}{3!} + \cdots$$

$$S_{3}(\lambda) = -\lambda + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} - \frac{\lambda^{3}}{3!} + \cdots$$
(5.121)

Applying the adopted condition for the classical limit, i.e., $\hbar \to 0$, $|\alpha|^2 \to \infty$ such that $\lambda |\alpha|^2 \to \text{finite}$, to eqn. (5.120), where $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar$, and letting $Q_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t) \to \mathcal{P}_{CL}^q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ in this limit, then eqn. (5.120) reduces to:

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -\left(\frac{i\omega}{4}\right) \left\{ 2e^{\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} \left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right) + 2e^{-\lambda |\alpha|^{2}} \left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right) \right\} \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$

$$(5.122)$$

where the fact that in this limit $S_1(\lambda) = S_2(\lambda) = S_3(\lambda) = 0$ has been used. Re-arranging the terms in eqn. (5.122), this equation becomes:

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -i \,\omega_{q}^{(1)} \left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right) \,\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$
(5.123)

where,

$$\omega_q^{(1)} = \omega \cosh\left(\lambda |\alpha|^2\right) \tag{5.124}$$

Eqn. (5.123) represents a classical Liouville equation for a classical harmonic oscillator having frequency $\omega_q^{(1)}$. By expanding the frequency of this oscillator $\omega_q^{(1)}$ up to λ^2 , eqn. (5.123) becomes:

$$\frac{\partial \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega \left\{ \left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right) + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} |\alpha|^{4} \left(\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right) \right\} \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$$
(5.125)

Eqn. (5.125) can be interpreted as a classical Liouville equation for a classical harmonic oscillator with frequency:

$$\omega_q^{(1)} = \omega \left(1 + \frac{\lambda^2}{2!} |\alpha|^4 \right) \tag{5.126}$$

It is apparent that the 1st term on the right hand side of eqn. (5.125) represents the classical Liouville equation for a simple harmonic oscillator with frequency ω . Thus, eqn. (5.125) agrees with that obtained by Ghosh [76] for the undeformed case but with an additional term $\omega \frac{\lambda^2}{2!} |\alpha|^4 \left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right)$ resulting from the q-deformation.

Also, the comparison between eqn. (5.125) and the corresponding eqn. (4.70) shows that, when $\omega_q^{(1)}$ (i.e., eqn. (4.42a)), is expanded up to first order of λ^2 , the result agrees with that of eqn. (5.126).

5.3.3 The Classical Limit of the Liouville Equation for P_q in the

α -Representation

Using a technique similar to that of Sec. (5.3.2), eqn. (5.55) results in

$$\begin{split} \frac{\partial P_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)}{\partial t} &= -\left(\frac{i\omega}{4}\right) \left[\frac{1}{\left(1+S_1(\lambda)\right)}\right] \\ \cdot \left\{ \left(2+S_3(\lambda)\right) \left(1+\lambda+\frac{\lambda^2}{2!}+\cdots\right) e^{-\left[\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2 + \frac{\lambda^2}{2!} \left|\alpha\right|^2 + \cdots\right]} \right. \\ \left. \left[\left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right) + \frac{\lambda}{2!} \left(\left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}\right)^2 - \left(\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right)^2\right) + \cdots\right] \right. \\ \left. - \left(2+S_2(\lambda)\right) \left(1-\lambda+\frac{\lambda^2}{2!}-\cdots\right) e^{-\left[-\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2 + \frac{\lambda^2}{2!} \left|\alpha\right|^2 - \cdots\right]} \right] \\ \cdot \left[- \left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right) + \frac{\lambda}{2!} \left(\left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}\right)^2 - \left(\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right)^2\right) - \cdots\right] \right\} \\ \cdot P_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t) \end{split}$$

(5.127)

Applying the limiting condition, $\hbar \to 0$, $|\alpha|^2 \to \infty$ and $\lambda \to 0$ as` fast as $\hbar \to 0$, i.e., $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar$, hence $\lambda |\alpha|^2 \to finite$, to eqn. (5.127) and letting $P_q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t) \to \mathcal{P}_{CL}^q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$, one obtains the same result as in eqn. (5.122). Also, applying the same limiting condition to eqn. (5.67a) (i.e., the Liouville equation obtained from Zaslavskii's method) and letting $\xi_q \alpha, \alpha^*; t \to \mathcal{P}_{CL}^q \alpha, \alpha^*; t$, produce the same result as in eqn. (5.122). Similarly, applying the same previously mentioned limiting conditions (i.e., case-3) to eqn. (5.67b), leads to eqn. (5.123) but with q-deformed frequency given as:

$$\omega_q^{(2)} = \omega \, e^{\lambda \left|\alpha\right|^2} \tag{5.128}$$

As in the case of the classical limit of the Liouville equation for Q_q , eqn. (5.123) can be compared with the corresponding eqn. (4.70) by expanding eqn. (5.128) up to first order in λ . The result is:

$$\omega_q^{(2)} = \omega \left(1 + \lambda |\alpha|^2 \right) \tag{5.129}$$

Similarly, the expansion of eqn. (4.42b) leads to the same result given by eqn. (5.129) and, hence, eqn. (5.123) agrees with the corresponding eqn. (4.70).

Again, substituting eqn. (5.129) into eqn. (5.123), one obtains a classical Liouville equation consisting of two terms. The 1st term represents the classical Liouville equation for a simple harmonic oscillator with frequency ω . This result is the same as that obtained by Ghosh et al. [76]. The 2nd term is $\omega \lambda |\alpha|^2 \left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right)$ resulting from the effect of q-deformation.

5.3.4 The Classical Limit of the Liouville Equation for \mathbb{P}_q in the

α_q -Representation

Using the same technique of expanding the exponentials functions as power series in λ , and after some lengthy manipulations, eqn. (5.114) becomes:

$$\begin{split} & \frac{\partial \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t\right)}{\partial t} = \\ & -\left(\frac{i\omega}{2}\right) \left\{ \left[2 \alpha_{q}^{*} \mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}^{*}}^{q} \left[1 - \lambda \alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}^{*}} + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} \left(\alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}^{*}} \right)^{2} - \cdots \right] \right. \\ & - 2 \alpha_{q} \mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}}^{q} \left[1 - \lambda \alpha_{q} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}} + \frac{\lambda^{2}}{2!} \left(\alpha_{q} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}} \right)^{2} - \cdots \right] \right] \\ & + (2 + S_{3}(\lambda)) \lambda \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \left[\left(\alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}^{*}} - \alpha_{q} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}} \right) \right] \\ & - \left(\frac{\lambda}{2!} \right) \left[\left(\alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}^{*}} \right)^{2} - \left(\alpha_{q} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}} \right)^{2} \right] + \cdots \right] \\ & + (1 + S_{4}(\lambda)) \lambda \left[- \left(\alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}^{*}} - \alpha_{q} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}} \right) \\ & + \left(\frac{\lambda}{2!} \right) \left[\left(\alpha_{q}^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}^{*}} \right)^{2} - \left(\alpha_{q} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_{q}} \right)^{2} \right] - \cdots \right] \right\} \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t \right) \end{split}$$

(5.130)

where,

$$S_4(\lambda) = -\lambda + \frac{\lambda^2}{2!} - \frac{\lambda^3}{3!} + \cdots$$
 (5.131)

Letting $\lambda \rightarrow 0$ (i.e., $q \rightarrow 1$) in eqn. (5.130) leads to

$$\frac{\partial P_{\rm CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega \left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} - \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}\right) P_{\rm CL}(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$$
(5.132)

where, in this limit the relations [115-117]

$$\lim_{\lambda \to 0} \mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}}^{q} \to \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}$$

$$\lim_{\lambda \to 0} \mathcal{D}_{\alpha_{q}}^{q} \to \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha}$$
(5.133)

have been used.

Eqn. (5.130) is the same as that obtained by Ghosh et al. [76] for the undeformed case as expected.

Now, applying the limiting conditions $\hbar \to 0$, $|\alpha_q|^2 \to \infty$ and $\lambda \to 0$ as fast as $\hbar \to 0$, i.e., $\lambda = (const.) \cdot \hbar$ such that $\lambda |\alpha_q|^2 \to finite$, to eqn. (5.130), with $\mathbb{P}_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*; t) \to P_{CL}^q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*; t)$, the result is: $\frac{\partial P_{CL}^q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*; t)}{\partial t} =$ $-i\omega \left\{ \left[\alpha_q^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_q^*} - \alpha_q \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_q} \right] + \lambda |\alpha_q|^2 \left[\alpha_q^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_q^*} - \alpha_q \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_q} \right] \right\} P_{CL}^q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*; t)$ (5.134)

Eqn. (5.134) can be re-written in the form:

$$\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t)}{\partial t} = -i\omega_{q}^{(3)} \left(\alpha_{q}^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}^{*}} - \alpha_{q}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_{q}}\right) P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*};t) \quad (5.135)$$

where,

$$\omega_q^{(3)} = \omega \left(1 + \lambda \left| \alpha_q \right|^2 \right) \tag{5.136}$$

Eqn. (5.135) is the classical Liouville equation for harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_q^{(3)}$. This result for $\omega_q^{(3)}$ could be shown to agree with the result

obtained by Shabanov [89] using the path integral method to approach the classical limit for the q-deformed oscillator with q-deformation possessing the box function defined in eqn. (3.6).

The comparison between eqn. (5.135) and the corresponding eqn. (4.79) has been performed by using the same procedure presented in Sec. (5.3.2) and Sec. (5.3.3). The result shows agreement between these equations when the expansion of eqn. (4.57b) is accomplished up to first order in λ , thus, eqn. (5.135) agrees with eqn. (4.79).

Also, it is noticed that the classical Liouville equation for the simple harmonic oscillator corresponds to the first term in eqn. (5.135). The additional term in this equation $\omega \lambda |\alpha_q|^2 \left(\alpha_q^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_q^*} - \alpha_q \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha_q} \right)$ results from the effect of a deformation

q-deformation.

5.4 Computer Visualizations

It can be noticed that the classical Liouville equations, obtained from applying the classical limiting procedure in this chapter, are similar to those derived in Chapter 4 where the frequency of the system is also a function of $|\alpha|^2$. Therefore, one can use the same solution procedure introduced in the previous chapter to solve these equations. Then, computer visualizations similar to those used in that chapter can be employed to study the behavior of the q-deformed oscillator in its different classical limits. Performing this procedure, the results depicted in Figs. (5.1) - (5.3) are obtained for the 2-dimensional time-evolution contours of the probability distribution functions $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q} \alpha, \alpha^*; t$ and $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*; t)$ in phase space. These probability distributions exhibit whorl shapes, and it can be seen that these whorl shapes become finer as $t \to \infty$. Again, these whorl shapes can be compared with those obtained by Milburn [77] for the anharmonic oscillator shown in Fig. (4.1).



Fig. (5.1): The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (5.124) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.



Fig. (5.2): The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(2)}$ given by eqn. (5.128) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.


Fig. (5.3): The 2-D time-evolution contours of the classical probability distribution function $P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(3)}$ given by eqn. (5.136) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

It should be noticed that Fig. (5.3) has been obtained by substituting the definition of $|\alpha_q|^2$ into eqn. (5.136), using eqns. (4.1), (4.2) and (4.3b).

From all the previous figures, it can be observed that the behavior of the classical probability distribution functions $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ and $P_{CL}^{q}(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}; t)$ is more or less similar to that exhibited in Chapter 4, i.e., Figs. (4.2) and (4.3).

It is also observed that Fig. (5.3) is not similar to Fig. (5.2). This dissimilarity is basically the result of the non-commutative nature of quantum mechanics. That is, applying the classical limiting procedure in the present case leads to different expressions for $\omega_q^{(\mu)}$ in the α - and α_q - representations (see eqns. (5.128) and (5.136)).

Also, in Figs. (5.4) - (5.6), the results of 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution functions $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ and $P_{CL}^q(\alpha_q, \alpha^*_q; t)$ are depicted in phase space. It is clear from these figures that the peaks of the q-deformed Gaussians for the classical probability distributions $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^q(\alpha, \alpha^*; t)$ and $P_{CL}^q(\alpha_q, \alpha^*_q; t)$ do not change with time and are equal to the maximum value (i.e., 1). These peaks follow the classical trajectories that are shown in Figs. (5.1) - (5.3) for the probability distribution functions. Another observation is the nature of the Gaussian shapes of these distributions which become more convoluted around themselves as $t \to \infty$, as is apparent in Figs. (5.4)-Fig. (5.6).



Fig. (5.4): The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(1)}$ given by eqn. (5.124) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ) : (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.



Fig. (5.5): The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution function $\mathcal{P}_{CL}^{q}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_{q}^{(2)}$ given by eqn. (5.128) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.



Fig. (5.6): The 3-D time-evolution of the classical probability distribution function $P_{CL}^q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*; t)$ for the q-deformed harmonic oscillator with frequency $\omega_q^{(3)}$ given by eqn. (5.136) and q = 0.5 in phase space, for different values of time (τ): (a) $\tau = \pi/2$, (b) $\tau = \pi$, (c) $\tau = 3\pi/2$, and (d) $\tau = 2\pi$.

Chapter Six

agaggggggg

opopo

Ο

Ο

Conclusions and Suggestions for Future Work

Conclusions and Suggestions for Future Work

6.2 Conclusions

1. The investigation of the classical limit of the 1-D q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator leads to the conclusion that this limit is statistical in nature. This is clear from eqns. (5.125) and (5.135) where the classical Liouville equations are obtained for the 1-D q-deformed classical harmonic oscillator in α - and α_q -representations respectively. This is in conformity with Ghosh et al.'s work [76], where the classical Liouville equation was obtained for the 1-D classical simple harmonic oscillator, by applying the classical limiting conditions $\hbar \to 0$, $|\alpha|^2 \to \infty$, such that $\hbar |\alpha|^2 \to \text{finite.}$ It is also concluded that this interpretation for the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator is more accurate than that introduced by Batouli and El Baz [95], because they interpreted this oscillator as a driven harmonic oscillator with the driving force and deformed frequency $\omega_q^2 = (\omega^2/4)(qt)^2$, both dependent on the deformation of this oscillator. Batouli and El Baz's interpretation [95] is based on using the undeformed Heisenberg equation of motion to calculate the q-deformed time dependent expectation values for the position and momentum. This methodology has intrinsic limitations compared with our methodology which is based on obtaining the Liouville classical limit that uncovers more details due to its phase space nature.

- 2. The q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator can be interpreted as a nonlinear quantum oscillator where the nonlinearity parameter λ depends on ħ such that λ = (const.) · ħ . This dependence is as required for the classical limit to exist (see Table (5.1)). Based on the more detailed approach to the classical limit adopted in this work, this interpretation seems to be more accurate than that introduced by Man'ko [91] because this oscillator was interpreted as a nonlinear quantum oscillator with special type of nonlinearity where the frequency is energy dependent.
- 3. The behavior of the classical limit of the quantum Liouville equations for the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in phase space shows whorl shapes evolving with time as in Figs. (5.1) (5.3). These figures are similar to those obtained by Milburn [77] for the 1-D classical anharmonic oscillator as in Fig. (4.1). This similarity results from the fact that the anharmonicity itself represents a kind of deformation.

This leads to the conclusion that the whorl shapes in phase space can be considered as a generalized phenomenon connected with q-deformation; the anharmonic oscillator being a special case.

4. It has been noted in Sec. (5.3.4) that the classical limit obtained in the present work using Arik and Coon's [9] coherent states for the q-deformed oscillator agrees with that obtained by Shabanov [89] based on path integrals for the same q-deformation type. This can be taken as a strong confirmation of the correctness of the results obtained in the present work for the classical limit based on Arik and Coon's work for the q-deformed oscillator.

5. It can also be concluded that the q-deformation of the 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator induces a non-commutative effect in the geometry. This can be understood in the light of Vitiello's work [130], where the q-deformation of the coherent states was studied to find that the fractal self-similarity, obtained

by defining a fractal operator $q^{\alpha \frac{d}{d\alpha}}$, leads to a non-commutative geometry. The expression for this fractal operator is similar to the structure of the

dilatation (shift) operators $e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}$, $e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^*}$, $e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}q\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_q}$ and $\pm\lambda\alpha^*\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^*}$

 ${}^{\pm\lambda\alpha_q^*} \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha_q^*}$ appearing in the present work. These dilatation (shift) operators are inherent to the q-deformation and arise naturally in the quantum Liouville equations given in eqns. (5.54), (5.55), (5.67a), (5.67b) and (5.114) for the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in the α - and α_q -representations respectively.

6.2 Suggestions for Future Work

One can suggest the following proposals to develop the present work in the future:

- 1. Studying the possibility of finding analytical or numerical solutions for the quantum Liouville equations of the 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator given by eqns. (5.54), (5.55), (5.67a), (5.67b) and (5.114). Such a study is essential to enable the visualization of the behavior of the q-deformed quantum oscillator in the quantum phase space.
- 2. The path integral approach introduced by Ajanapon [131] for the undeformed quantum harmonic oscillator can be used to investigate the classical limit of the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator. The results that emerge

from such an approach can then be compared with the results of this thesis. In this context, Shabanov's work [89], where the quantum and classical mechanics of the q-deformed quantum harmonic oscillator were also investigated using path integrals, can also be cited.

- 3. The use of other potentials, such as the Morse and Pöschl-Teller potentials, and the investigation of the interpretation of the q-deformation of such potentials along the same lines used in the present thesis are suggested. The importance of such an extension of the present work stems from the fact that such potentials are very useful in many fields of physics such as molecular, solid state and nuclear physics.
- 4. Treatment of the classical limit of the q-deformed 1-D quantum harmonic oscillator in the light of Lavagno's work [96] can be suggested. One may first construct the q-deformed quantum Liouville equation by using the q-deformed Heisenberg equation of motion. The construction of the q-deformed classical system may then be attempted by using the q-deformed Poisson bracket to derive the q-deformed 1-D classical Liouville equation. Then, one may investigate the classical limit of the resulting quantum Liouville equation and compare the result with that obtained from the q-deformed classical Poisson bracket approach.



واواوا وا

. |0]

<u>o e de la constanta de la constant</u>

9 9 9

5

5

واووووووووووووووووو

وووووووو

5

999999999

5

واوو

996

Ο

JOO



Evaluation of the Poisson Bracket $\left\{ \alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*} \right\}$

The Poisson bracket $\{\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*\}$ is defined as [100]:

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\} = \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial q}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial q}\right)_{p}$$
(A.1)

But since,

$$\left(\frac{\partial \alpha_f}{\partial q}\right)_{p} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_f}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^*} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial q}\right)_{p} + \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_f}{\partial \alpha^*}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^*}{\partial q}\right)_{p}$$
(A.2)

$$\left(\frac{\partial \alpha_f}{\partial p}\right)_{q} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_f}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^*} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p}\right)_{q} + \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_f}{\partial \alpha^*}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^*}{\partial p}\right)_{q}$$
(A.3)

and their conjugates are,

$$\left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial q}\right)_{p} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial q}\right)_{p} + \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial q}\right)_{p}$$
(A.4)

$$\left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p}\right)_{q} + \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial p}\right)_{q}$$
(A.5)

then, substituting eqns. (A.2) - (A.5) into eqn. (A.1), and after some mathematical manipulations, one obtains:

$$\left\{ \alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*} \right\} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha} \right)_{\alpha}^{*} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right)_{\alpha} \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial q} \right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial p} \right)_{q}^{*} - \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p} \right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial q} \right)_{p}^{*} \right\}$$
$$+ \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \alpha} \right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial q} \right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p} \right)_{q}^{*} - \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial p} \right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial q} \right)_{p}^{*} \right\}$$

(A.6)

Now, since

$$\left\{\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right\} = \left(\frac{\partial\alpha}{\partial\varphi}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha^{*}}{\partial\rho}\right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial\alpha}{\partial\rho}\right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha^{*}}{\partial\varphi}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha^{*}}{\partial\varphi}\right)_{p}$$
(A.7)

and

$$\left\{\alpha,\alpha^*\right\} = -\left\{\alpha^*,\alpha\right\} \tag{A.8}$$

then, substituting eqns. (A-7) and (A-8) into eqn. (A-6), the result is:

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\} = \left\{\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} - \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}}\right\} \quad (A.9)$$

But,

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} - \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial\alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}}$$
(A.10)

then, substituting eqn. (A.10) into eqn. (A-9), one obtains:

$$\left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\} = \left\{\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}}$$
(A.11)



Evaluation of the Poisson Brackets
$$\left\{ \alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$

and
$$\left\{ \alpha_{f}^{},\mathcal{H}_{f}^{}\left(\alpha_{f}^{},\alpha_{f}^{*}
ight) \right\}$$

According to the definition of the Poisson bracket [100]:

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial \varphi}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial p}\right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p}\right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})}{\partial q}\right)_{p}$$
(B.1)

Considering \mathbb{H}_f as a function of the two independent variables α and α^* , one can write:

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p}\right)_{q} + \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial p}\right)_{q}$$
(B.2)

and,

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial q}\right)_{p} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha}\right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial q}\right)_{p} + \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial q}\right)_{p}$$
(B.3)

Then, substituting eqns. (B.2) and (B.3) into eqn. (B.1), the result is:

$$\left\{ \alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f} \left(\alpha, \alpha^{*} \right) \right\} = \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial \varphi} \right)_{p} \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha} \right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p} \right)_{\varphi} + \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial p} \right)_{\varphi} \right\}$$
$$- \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p} \right)_{\varphi} \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha} \right)_{\alpha^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial \varphi} \right)_{p} + \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right)_{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial \varphi} \right)_{p} \right\}$$
(B.4)

Eqn. (B.4) can be simplified to obtain:

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\} = \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial q}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial p}\right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha^{*}}{\partial q}\right)_{p} \right\} \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha} \quad (B.5)$$

Now, since

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathbb{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)_{\alpha}$$
(B.6)

then, substituting eqns. (A.7) and (B.6) into eqn. (B.5), one obtains:

$$\left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\} = \left\{\alpha, \alpha^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\alpha, \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}_{\alpha, \alpha^{*}}$$
(B.7)

Similarly, one can prove that

$$\left\{\alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right)\right\} = \left\{\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right\} \cdot \left\{\alpha_{f}, \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}\right)\right\}_{\alpha_{f}, \alpha_{f}^{*}}$$
(B.8)



Evaluation of the Poisson Brackets $\left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right), P_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t\right) \right\}$ and $\left\{ \mathbb{H}_{f}\left(\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t\right) \right\}$

The Poisson bracket $\left\{ \mathcal{H}_f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*), P_{CL}^f(\alpha_f, \alpha_f^*; t) \right\}$ is defined as [100]:

$$\left\{\mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right), P_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t\right)\right\} = \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial q}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial p}\right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial q}\right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial P_{$$

Considering \mathcal{H}_f as a function of the two independent variables α_f and α_f^* , one can write:

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \boldsymbol{q}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{p}} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}}{\partial \boldsymbol{q}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{p}} + \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}^{*}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}} \left(\frac{\partial \boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}^{*}}{\partial \boldsymbol{q}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{p}} \tag{C.2}$$

and,

$$\left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \boldsymbol{p}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{p}} = \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial \boldsymbol{p}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{p}} + \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{\alpha}_{f}} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial \boldsymbol{p}}\right)_{\boldsymbol{p}} \tag{C.3}$$

Also,

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial q} \end{pmatrix}_{p} = \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha_{f}^{*}} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial q} \end{pmatrix}_{p} + \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha_{f}} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial q} \end{pmatrix}_{p}$$
(C.4)
$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial p} \end{pmatrix}_{q} = \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha_{f}^{*}} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial p} \end{pmatrix}_{q} + \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \end{pmatrix}_{\alpha_{f}} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial p} \end{pmatrix}_{q}$$
(C.5)

Substituting eqns. (C.2) - (C.5) into eqn. (C.1), the result becomes:

$$\begin{split} &\left\{\mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right),P_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t\right)\right\} = \\ &\left\{\left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}^{*}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partial\gamma}\right)_{p} + \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial\gamma}\right)_{p}\right\} \\ &\cdot \left\{\left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}^{*}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partialp}\right)_{q} + \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partialp}\right)_{q}\right\} \\ &- \left\{\left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}^{*}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partialp}\right)_{q} + \left(\frac{\partial\mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partialp}\right)_{q}\right\} \\ &\cdot \left\{\left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}^{*}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}}{\partialq}\right)_{p} + \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}\right)_{\alpha_{f}}\left(\frac{\partial\alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partialq}\right)_{p}\right\} \end{split}$$

(C.6)

After some mathematical manipulations, this equation can be simplified to yield:

$$\begin{split} \left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right), P_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t\right) \right\} = \\ & \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \right)_{\alpha_{f}} \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \right)_{\alpha_{f}^{*}} \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial q} \right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial p} \right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial p} \right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial q} \right)_{p} \right\} \\ & + \left(\frac{\partial \mathcal{H}_{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}} \right)_{\alpha_{f}^{*}} \left(\frac{\partial P_{CL}^{f}}{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}} \right)_{\alpha_{f}} \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial q} \right)_{p} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial p} \right)_{q} - \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}}{\partial p} \right)_{q} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha_{f}^{*}}{\partial q} \right)_{p} \right\} \end{split}$$

$$(C.7)$$

Then, substituting eqn. (A-1) into eqn. (C-7) one gets:

$$\left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right), P_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t\right) \right\} = \left\{ \alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*} \right\} \cdot \left\{ \mathcal{H}_{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}\right), P_{CL}^{f}\left(\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*};t\right) \right\}_{\alpha_{f},\alpha_{f}^{*}}$$

$$(C.8)$$

Similarly, one can prove that

$$\left\{ \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*}), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t) \right\} = \left\{ \alpha,\alpha^{*} \right\} \cdot \left\{ \mathbb{H}_{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*}), \mathcal{P}_{CL}^{f}(\alpha,\alpha^{*};t) \right\}_{\alpha,\alpha^{*}}$$
(C.9)



The Correspondence Relations for $\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})\right)\hat{
ho}$ and $\hat{
ho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})\right)$

Multiplying the Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation for the relations $\hat{a}\hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho}\hat{a}^{\dagger}$ given in eqns. (2.61) and (2.62) by \hat{a}^{\dagger} from the left and \hat{a} from the right respectively, results in:

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\,\hat{\rho} = \int d^2\alpha\,\,\hat{a}^{\dagger}\,|\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha|\Big\{\alpha P(\alpha,\alpha^*)\Big\}$$
(D.1)

$$\hat{\rho}\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} = \int d^{2}\alpha \left|\alpha\right\rangle \left\langle\alpha\right|\hat{a}\left\{\alpha^{*}P(\alpha,\alpha^{*})\right\}$$
(D.2)

The expression for $\hat{a}^{\dagger} |\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha|$ and its conjugate are given in refs. [108,109] as:

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger} |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| = \left[\alpha^* + \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \tag{D.3}$$

$$|\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha|\,\hat{a} = \left[\alpha + \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^*}\right]|\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha| \tag{D.4}$$

Substituting eqns. (D.3) and (D.4) into eqns. (D.1) and (D.2) respectively, gives

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\,\hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha \left[\alpha^{*} + \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right] \left|\alpha\right\rangle \left\langle\alpha\right| \left\{\alpha P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}$$
(D.5)

$$\hat{\rho}\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} = \int d^{2}\alpha \left[\alpha + \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right] |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \left\{\alpha^{*} P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}$$
(D.6)

Performing integration by parts in eqns. (D.5) and (D.6), one obtains [111,112]:

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\,\hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha \,|\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha|\left\{\left[\alpha^{*}-\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right](\alpha)P(\alpha,\alpha^{*})\right\}$$
(D.7)

$$\hat{\rho}\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} = \int d^{2}\alpha \left|\alpha\right\rangle \left\langle \alpha\right| \left\{ \left[\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right] \left(\alpha^{*}\right) P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.8)

Now, starting from eqns. (2.61) and (2.62) to obtain $(\hat{a})^2 \hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho} (\hat{a}^{\dagger})^2$, then multiplying the results by $(\hat{a}^{\dagger})^2$ from the left and $(\hat{a})^2$ from the right, and using the same technique used previously to obtain eqns. (D.7) and (D.8), the results become:

$$\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right)^{2}\left(\hat{a}\right)^{2}\hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha \left[\alpha^{*} + \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]^{2} |\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha|\left\{\left(\alpha\right)^{2} P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}$$
(D.9)

$$\hat{\rho}(\hat{a}^{\dagger})^{2}(\hat{a})^{2} = \int d^{2}\alpha \left[\alpha + \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right]^{2} |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \left\{ \left(\alpha^{*}\right)^{2} P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.10)

Applying again integration by parts to eqns. (D.9) and (D.10), gives [108,109]:

$$(\hat{a}^{\dagger})^{2}(\hat{a})^{2}\hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha \, |\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha| \left\{ \left[\alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha} \right]^{2} (\alpha)^{2} P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.11)

$$\hat{\rho}(\hat{a}^{\dagger})^{2}(\hat{a})^{2} = \int d^{2}\alpha |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \left\{ \left[\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]^{2} (\alpha^{*})^{2} P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.12)

Then, using the mathematical induction method, and following the same previous procedure used to derive eqns. (D.11) and (D.12), one obtains:

$$\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right)^{m}\left(\hat{a}\right)^{m}\hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha \,\left|\alpha\right\rangle \langle\alpha|\left\{\left[\alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]^{m}\left(\alpha\right)^{m}P\left(\alpha,\alpha^{*}\right)\right\}\right\}$$
(D.13)

and,

$$\hat{\rho}(\hat{a}^{\dagger})^{m}(\hat{a})^{m} = \int d^{2}\alpha |\alpha\rangle \langle \alpha| \left\{ \left[\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]^{m} (\alpha^{*})^{m} P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.14)

Now, letting $f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}) = (\hat{a}^{\dagger})^{m} (\hat{a})^{m}$, and substituting $f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})$ into eqns. (D.13) and (D.14), results in:

$$f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})\hat{\rho} = \int d^{2}\alpha \, |\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha| \left\{ f\left(\left[\alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha} \right]^{m} (\alpha)^{m} \right) P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.15)

and,

$$\hat{\rho} f\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a}\right) = \int d^2 \alpha \left|\alpha\right\rangle \left\langle \alpha \left|\left\{f\left(\left[\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}\right]^m \left(\alpha^*\right)^m\right) P(\alpha, \alpha^*)\right\}\right\}\right\}$$
(D.16)

The function of the number operator, $f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})$, represents a special case of the function $f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})$, where $f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})$ represents an arbitrary operator ordered function. This permits the generalization of eqns. (D.15) and (D.16) using $f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}) \hat{\rho} \rightarrow f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger}) \hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho} f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}) \rightarrow \hat{\rho} f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})$ (see Sec. (5.1)). This generalization process can be satisfied if:

$$f(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger})\hat{\rho} = f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})\hat{\rho} = f(\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger})\hat{\rho}$$
(D.17)

and,

$$\hat{\rho}f(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}) = \hat{\rho}f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}) = \hat{\rho}f(\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger})$$
(D.18)

where $f(\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger})$ represents the anti-normal ordered operator function. Both functions $f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})$ and $f(\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger})$ can be obtained from the function $f(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger})$ by using the commutator $\left[\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right]$.

The derivation of eqn. (D.17) is as follows. Supposing any expression for arbitrary operator ordered function $f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})$ then, letting this function act on the density operator $\hat{\rho}$ from the left, and using the one-to-one correspondence relations given by eqns. (2.65) and (2.67), one can obtain the expression for $f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})\hat{\rho}$. This expression is compared with the expressions obtained for the $f(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})\hat{\rho}$ and $f(\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger})\hat{\rho}$. Similarly, one can derive eqn. (D.18) by using the same expression for the operator ordered function $f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})$ that was used to prove eqn. (D.17), but with the one-to-one correspondence relations that are defined in eqns. (2.66) and (2.68). Thus, by using the mathematical induction method for any arbitrary operator ordered function $f(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger})$, and following the same previously mentioned procedure (see Sec. (5.1)), one can prove that the eqns. (D.17) and (D.18) are still satisfied.

Hence, eqns. (D.15) and (D.16) can be re-written as:

$$f(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger})\hat{\rho} = \int d^2 \alpha \, |\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha| \left\{ f\left(\left[\alpha^* - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right]^m, \, (\alpha)^m \right) P(\alpha, \alpha^*) \right\}$$
(D.19)

$$\hat{\rho}f(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}) = \int d^{2}\alpha |\alpha\rangle\langle\alpha| \left\{ f\left(\left[\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]^{m}, \left(\alpha^{*} \right)^{m} \right) P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.20)

Eqns. (D.19) and (D.20), together with eqns. (D.17) and (D.18), permit the generalization of eqns. (D.7) and (D.8) by using $\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} \hat{\rho} = \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]^{m} \left(f\left(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right)\right) \hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho}\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} = \hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]^{m} \left(f\left(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right)\right)$. Therefore, eqns. (D.19) and (D.20) become:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \end{bmatrix}^{m} \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger} \right) \right) \hat{\rho} = \int d^{2} \alpha \, \left| \alpha \right\rangle \langle \alpha \left| \left\{ \begin{bmatrix} \alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \end{bmatrix}^{m} \left(\alpha \right)^{m} \, f^{2} \left(\begin{bmatrix} \alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \end{bmatrix}^{m}, \, \left(\alpha \right)^{m} \right) P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.21)

and,

$$\hat{\rho} \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \right]^{m} \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger} \right) \right) = \int d^{2} \alpha \left| \alpha \right\rangle \langle \alpha \left| \left\{ f^{2} \left(\left[\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]^{m}, \left(\alpha^{*} \right)^{m} \right) \left[\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]^{m} \left(\alpha^{*} \right)^{m} P(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\} \right.$$
(D.22)

respectively, where the function f has been replaced by f^2 in these equations. Eqns. (D.21) and (D.22) can be re-written equivalently in terms of the quasiprobability distribution function $\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ given in Table (2.1) as:

$$\begin{split} \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]^{m} \left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right)\right)\hat{\rho} = \\ \int d^{2}\alpha \left|\alpha\right\rangle \left\langle\alpha\right| \left\{ \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]^{m} \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]^{m}\right] \right. \\ \left. \cdot f^{2} \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]^{m}, \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]^{m}\right] \varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\} \end{split}$$
(D.23)

and,

$$\hat{\rho} \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \right]^{m} \left(f^{2} \left(\hat{a}, \hat{a}^{\dagger} \right) \right) = \int d^{2} \alpha \left| \alpha \right\rangle \left\langle \alpha \right| \left\{ f^{2} \left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]^{m}, \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right]^{m} \right) \right. \\ \left. \cdot \left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right]^{m} \left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right]^{m} \right) \varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\}$$
(D.24)

respectively.

Eqns. (D.23) and (D.24) represent the general relations for $\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger},\hat{a}\right)\right)\hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger},\hat{a}\right)\right)$.

A special case of the relations for $\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]^{m} \left(f^{2}(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger})\right) \hat{\rho}$ and $\hat{\rho} \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]^{m} \left(f^{2}(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger})\right)$ can be obtained by letting m=1 and $f^{2}\left(\hat{a},\hat{a}^{\dagger}\right) = f^{2}\left(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right)$ in eqns. (D.23) and (D.24), then these equations become:

$$\begin{split} \left[\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a} \right] \left(f^{2} (\hat{a}^{\dagger} \hat{a}) \right) \hat{\rho} = \\ \int d^{2} \alpha \left| \alpha \right\rangle \left\langle \alpha \right| \left\{ \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \right] \right. \\ \left. \cdot f^{2} \left[\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s-1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \right] \left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s+1}{2} \right) \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} \right] \right] \varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*}) \right\} \end{split}$$
(D.25)

and,

$$\hat{\rho}\left[\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\right]\left(f^{2}(\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a})\right) = \int d^{2}\alpha \left|\alpha\right\rangle \left\langle\alpha\right|\left\{f^{2}\left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\right)\right.\right. \\ \left. \cdot \left(\left[\alpha + \left(\frac{s-1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}\right]\left[\alpha^{*} + \left(\frac{s+1}{2}\right)\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right]\right)\varphi^{(s)}(\alpha, \alpha^{*})\right\}$$
(D.26)

respectively.

It is clear that in the limit $f^2 \rightarrow 1$, and using the ordering parameter s = -1 (i.e., the anti-normal ordered bosons operators, as given in Table (2.1)), then the *s*-ordered quasiprobability function $\varphi^{(-1)}(\alpha, \alpha^*) \rightarrow P(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and, hence, eqns. (D.25) and (D.26), reduce to eqns. (D.7) and (D.8) respectively. The following one-to-one correspondence relations for the Glauber-Sudarshan P-representation in the α -representation, which are the same as those introduced by Walls and Milburn [111], can then be obtained:

$$\hat{a}\,\hat{a}^{\dagger}\,\hat{\rho} \to \alpha \left(\alpha^* - \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right) P(\alpha, \alpha^*)$$
 (D.27)

$$\hat{\rho}\hat{a}\hat{a}^{\dagger} \rightarrow \alpha^{*} \left(\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right) P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$$
 (D.28)

$$\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a}\hat{\rho} \rightarrow \left(\alpha^{*} - \frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}\right)\alpha P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$$
 (D.29)

$$\hat{\rho}\hat{a}^{\dagger}\hat{a} \rightarrow \left(\alpha - \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}}\right)\alpha^{*}P(\alpha, \alpha^{*})$$
(D.30)



Evaluation of the Commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$

Using the definition of the commutator:

$$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right] = \hat{A}_{+}\hat{B}_{1} - \hat{B}_{1}\hat{A}_{+}$$
(E.1)

and multiplying both sides of eqn. (E.1) form the right by an arbitrary function $g = g(\alpha, \alpha^*)$, then substituting the definitions of \hat{A}_+ and \hat{B}_1 given in eqns. (5.16) and (5.17) in these equations and simplifying the result, gives:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} g = \begin{pmatrix} \frac{s+1}{2} \end{pmatrix} \lambda^{2} \alpha \alpha^{*2} \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \begin{pmatrix} \frac{s-1}{2} \end{pmatrix} \lambda^{2} \alpha^{2} \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha} \\ + \begin{bmatrix} \frac{(s-1)(s+1)}{4} \end{bmatrix} \lambda^{2} \alpha \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial^{2} g}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} - \begin{pmatrix} \frac{s+1}{2} \end{pmatrix} \lambda^{2} \alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} (\alpha \alpha^{*} g) \\ - \begin{pmatrix} \frac{s-1}{2} \end{pmatrix} \lambda^{2} \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} (\alpha \alpha^{*} g) - \begin{bmatrix} \frac{(s-1)(s+1)}{4} \end{bmatrix} \lambda^{2} \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} (\alpha \alpha^{*} g)$$
(E.2)

where,

$$\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \left(\alpha \alpha^* g \right) = \alpha \alpha^* g + \alpha^2 \alpha^* \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha}$$
(E.3)

$$\alpha^* \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*} \left(\alpha \alpha^* g \right) = \alpha \alpha^* g + \alpha \alpha^{*2} \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha^*}$$
(E.4)

and,

$$\frac{\partial^2 g}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^*} \left(\alpha \alpha^* g \right) = \alpha \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha} + \alpha^* \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha^*} + \alpha \alpha^* \frac{\partial^2 g}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^*} + g$$
(E.5)

Substituting eqns. (E.3), (E.4) and (E.5) into eqn. (E.2) and simplifying the result, one obtains:

$$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right] = -\lambda^{2} \left\{ s \left|\alpha\right|^{2} + \left(\frac{s^{2}-1}{4}\right) \left[\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + 1\right] \right\}$$
(E.6)

Similarly, one can prove that:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}$$
(E.7)

Also, one can write,

$$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\right] = \hat{A}_{+}\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right] - \left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\hat{A}_{+}$$
(E.8)

Then, substituting the expressions for \hat{A}_{+} from eqn. (5.16) and for the commutator $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}$ from eqn. (E.6) into eqn. (E.8), applying the same technique used to obtain the commutator $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix}$ and simplifying the result, yields:

$$\left[\hat{A}_{+},\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\right] = \left(\frac{s^{2}-1}{2}\right)\lambda^{3}\left|\alpha\right|^{2} = \left(\frac{s^{2}-1}{2}\right)\lambda^{2}\hat{A}_{+}$$
(E.9)

Similarly, the commutator $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_1, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_+, \hat{B}_1 \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ can be evaluated by using the same technique used to evaluate $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_+, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_+, \hat{B}_1 \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$, and after some lengthy mathematical manipulations, the result is:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{1}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix} = -\lambda^{3} \left\{ s^{2} |\alpha|^{2} + \left(\frac{s(s^{2}-1)}{4} \right) \left[\alpha^{*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^{*}} + \alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} + 1 \right] + \left[\frac{(s+1)^{2}(s-1)^{2}}{4} \right] \frac{\partial^{2}}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^{*}} \right\}$$
(E.10)

The following relations and there complex conjugates, as well as eqns. (E.3) - (E.5), have been used to obtain eqn. (E.10):

$$\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \left(\alpha \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha} \right) = \alpha \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha} + \alpha^2 \frac{\partial^2 g}{\partial \alpha^2}$$
(E.11)

$$\alpha \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha} \left(\alpha^* \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha^*} \right) = \alpha \alpha^* \frac{\partial^2 g}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^*}$$
(E.12)

$$\frac{\partial^2 g}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^*} \left(\alpha \frac{\partial g}{\partial \alpha} \right) = \frac{\partial^2 g}{\partial \alpha \partial \alpha^*} + \alpha \frac{\partial^3 g}{\partial \alpha^2 \partial \alpha^*}$$
(E.13)

Using the same technique, the commutators $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ and $\begin{bmatrix} \hat{B}_{2}, \begin{bmatrix} \hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2} \end{bmatrix} \end{bmatrix}$ can be evaluated. The results are:

$$\left[\hat{A}_{-}, \left[\hat{A}_{-}, \hat{B}_{2}\right]\right] = -\left[\hat{A}_{+}, \left[\hat{A}_{+}, \hat{B}_{1}\right]\right]$$
(E.14)

and,

$$\left[\hat{B}_{2},\left[\hat{A}_{-},\hat{B}_{2}\right]\right] = -\left[\hat{B}_{1},\left[\hat{A}_{+},\hat{B}_{1}\right]\right]$$
(E.15)



The Action of the Dilatation (Shift) Operators $e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}$

and
$$e^{\pm \lambda \alpha^*} \frac{\partial}{\partial \alpha^*}$$
 on $F(\alpha, \alpha^*) G(\alpha, \alpha^*)$

Assume two functions F(x) and G(x) that have power series expansions of the form:

$$F(x) = \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} a_m x^m$$
(F.1)

$$G(x) = \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} b_m x^m$$
(F.2)

Using these expressions, the product F(x) G(x) can be written as:

$$F(x)G(x) = \left(a_o + a_1x + a_2x^2 + a_3x^3 + \cdots\right) \cdot \left(b_o + b_1x + b_2x^2 + b_3x^3 + \cdots\right)$$
(F.3)

Multiplying both sides of eqn. (F.3) from left by the dilatation (shift) operator

$$e^{\beta x \frac{\partial}{\partial x}}$$
, where β represent any arbitrary constant, the result is:

$$e^{\beta x} \frac{\partial}{\partial x} F(x)G(x) = e^{\beta x} \frac{\partial}{\partial x} \left\{ \left[a_{o}b_{o} + a_{o}b_{1}x + a_{o}b_{2}x^{2} + a_{o}b_{3}x^{3} + \cdots \right] + \left[a_{1}b_{o}x + a_{1}b_{1}x^{2} + a_{1}b_{2}x^{3} + a_{1}b_{3}x^{4} + \cdots \right] + \left[a_{2}b_{o}x^{2} + a_{2}b_{1}x^{3} + a_{2}b_{2}x^{4} + a_{2}b_{3}x^{5} + \cdots \right] + \left[a_{3}b_{o}x^{3} + a_{3}b_{1}x^{4} + a_{3}b_{2}x^{5} + a_{3}b_{3}x^{6} + \cdots \right] \right\}$$
(F.4)

Applying eqn. (5.41) to eqn. (F.4) and simplifying, the result becomes:

$$e^{\beta x} \frac{\partial}{\partial x} F(x)G(x) = a_o \left\{ b_o + b_1(e^{\beta x}) + b_2(e^{\beta x})^2 + b_3(e^{\beta x})^3 + \cdots \right\}$$

+ $a_1(e^{\beta x}) \left\{ b_o + b_1(e^{\beta x}) + b_2(e^{\beta x})^2 + b_3(e^{\beta x})^3 + \cdots \right\}$
+ $a_2(e^{\beta x})^2 \left\{ b_o + b_1(e^{\beta x}) + b_2(e^{\beta x})^2 + b_3(e^{\beta x})^3 + \cdots \right\}$
+ $a_3(e^{\beta x})^3 \left\{ b_o + b_1(e^{\beta x}) + b_2(e^{\beta x})^2 + b_3(e^{\beta x})^3 + \cdots \right\}$ (F.5)

Collecting similar terms, this gives:

$$e^{\beta x} \frac{\partial}{\partial x} F(x)G(x) = \left\{a_o + a_1(e^{\beta x}) + a_2(e^{\beta x})^2 + a_3(e^{\beta x})^3 + \cdots\right\}$$
$$\cdot \left\{b_o + b_1(e^{\beta x}) + b_2(e^{\beta x})^2 + b_3(e^{\beta x})^3 + \cdots\right\}$$

(F.6)

But since,

$$F(e^{\beta}x) = \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} a_m (e^{\beta}x)^m$$
(F.7)

and

$$G(e^{\beta}x) = \sum_{m=0}^{\infty} b_m (e^{\beta}x)^m$$
(F.8)

then, substituting eqns. (F.7) and (F.8) into eqn. (F.6), one obtains:

$$e^{\beta x \frac{\partial}{\partial x}} F(x)G(x) = F(e^{\beta x})G(e^{\beta x})$$
(F.9)

Using $F(x) = F(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and $G(x) = G(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ in eqn. (F.9), then substituting $\beta = \pm \lambda$ and applying eqns. (5.42), (5.43) for $F(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ and $G(\alpha, \alpha^*)$ respectively to eqn. (F.9), the, results become:

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}}F(\alpha,\alpha^{*})G(\alpha,\alpha^{*})=F(\alpha,e^{\pm\lambda}\alpha^{*})e^{\pm\lambda\alpha^{*}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha^{*}}}G(\alpha,\alpha^{*}) \quad (F.10)$$

and,

$$e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}F(\alpha,\alpha^*)G(\alpha,\alpha^*) = F(e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\alpha,\alpha^*)e^{\pm\lambda\alpha}\frac{\partial}{\partial\alpha}G(\alpha,\alpha^*)$$
(F.11)



The Expressions for $\hat{a}_{\bm{q}}^{\dagger} \| \pmb{\alpha}_{\bm{q}} angle$ and $\left< \pmb{\alpha}_{\bm{q}} \| \hat{a}_{\bm{q}} \right>$ in Terms of q-Derivatives

The unormalized q-deformed coherent state $\|\alpha_q\rangle$ is given by eqn. (5.70). Then,

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \frac{\alpha_{q}^{n}}{[n]_{q}!} \, \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| n \right\rangle_{q} \tag{G.1}$$

Substituting for $\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \| \mathbf{n} \rangle_{q}$ from eqn. (5.74) into the right hand side of eqn. (G.1), then multiplying both sides of the result by $[\mathbf{n}+1]_{q}$ and taking $\mathbf{m} = \mathbf{n}+1$, the result becomes:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \sum_{m=1}^{\infty} \frac{[m]_{q} \alpha_{q}^{m-1}}{[m]_{q} [m-1]_{q}!} \left\| m \right\rangle_{q} \tag{G.2}$$

But,

$$[\mathbf{m}]_q != [\mathbf{m}]_q [\mathbf{m} - 1]_q ! \tag{G.3}$$

Then, substituting eqn. (G.3) into eqn. (G.2) yields:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \sum_{m=1}^{\infty} \frac{[m]_{q} \alpha_{q}^{m-1}}{[m]_{q}!} \left\| m \right\rangle_{q} \tag{G.4}$$

Using the expression for the action of the q-differential operator (Jackson's derivative) and $f(\alpha_q) = \alpha_q^m$ given in eqn. (5.78), leads to:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \left\{ \sum_{m=1}^{\infty} \frac{\alpha_{q}^{m}}{[m]_{q}!} \left\| m \right\rangle_{q} + \left\| 0 \right\rangle_{q} \right\}$$
(G.5)

where,

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_q}\alpha_q^{\rm m} = \left[\mathrm{m}\right]_q \alpha_q^{\rm m-1} \tag{G.6}$$

and,

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_q} \left\| 0 \right\rangle_q = 0 \tag{G.7}$$

But since $||\alpha_q\rangle$ is as defined in eqn. (5.70), then using this definition in eqn. (G.5), one obtains:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle = \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \tag{G.8}$$

Similarly, it can be shown that:

$$\left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \hat{a}_{q} = \left(\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \right)^{\dagger} = \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}} \tag{G.9}$$



The Correspondence Relations for $\hat{a}^{\dagger}_{q}\hat{\rho}_{q}$, $\hat{\rho}_{q}\hat{a}_{q}$, $\hat{a}^{\dagger}_{q}\hat{a}_{q}\hat{\rho}_{q}$ and $\hat{\rho}_{q}\hat{a}^{\dagger}_{q}\hat{a}_{q}$

The correspondence relations for $\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_q$ and $\hat{\rho}_q \hat{a}_q$ in terms of the \mathbb{P}_q -representation can be derived as follows.

Using the product rule of q-differentiation defined in eqn. (3.25) with $D_x^q = \frac{D}{D\alpha_q}$, $F(x) = F(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ and $G(x) = G(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$, then eqn. (3.25)

becomes:

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \left\{ F(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) G(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) \right\} = \left[\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} F(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) \right] G(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) + F(q\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} G(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) \tag{H.1}$$

Eqn. (H.1) is similar to the equation introduced by Arik and Coon [9], where $F(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ and $G(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ are two arbitrarily functions defined as [9]:

$$F(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = G\left((1-q)|\alpha_q|^2\right) f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*\right)$$
(H.2)

Therefore,

$$F(q\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = G\left(q(1-q)|\alpha_q|^2\right) f(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$$
(H.3)

and,

$$G(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = g(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) \tag{H.4}$$

where, $f(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ and $g(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ are two arbitrary functions.

Substituting eqns. (H.2) - (H.4) into eqn. (H.1) and re-arranging the result, gives:

$$G\left(q(1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)f\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) = \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left\{G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right\} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left\{G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right\}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(H.5)

Applying the product rule of q-differentiation (i.e., eqn. (H.1)) again to the expression $\frac{D}{D\alpha_q} \left\{ G\left((1-q) \left| \alpha_q \right|^2 \right) f\left(q^{-1} \alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right) \right\}$ that appears in eqn. (H.5)

with $F(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = G((1-q)|\alpha_q|^2)$ and $G(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = f(q^{-1}\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$, then using

the definition of $E_q(\sigma/q)$ that have been introduced in [9] as:

$$E_q(\sigma/q) = \frac{1}{G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_q\right|^2\right)}$$
(H.6)

or,

$$G\left(q(1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right) = E_{q}\left(-q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)$$
(H.7)

where σ was given in eqn. (5.82), yields:

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \left\{ G\left((1-q) \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right) f\left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right\} = -\frac{\alpha_{q}^{*} f\left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)}{E_{q} \left(q \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right)} + \left[\frac{1}{E_{q} \left(q \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right)} \right] \left[\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} f\left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right] \tag{H.8}$$

and the following equation has been used:

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left\{G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)\right\} = \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left\{E_{q}\left(-\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)\right\} = -\alpha_{q}^{*}E_{q}\left(-q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right) \quad (H.9)$$

Substituting eqns. (H.7) and (H-8) into eqn. (H.5) and simplifying the result, produces

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{E_q \left(q \left| \alpha_q \right|^2 \right)} \end{bmatrix} f \left(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right) \frac{D}{D \alpha_q} g \left(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right) = \frac{D}{D \alpha_q} \left\{ G \left((1-q) \left| \alpha_q \right|^2 \right) f \left(q^{-1} \alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right) g \left(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right) \right\} + \left[\frac{g \left(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right)}{E_q \left(q \left| \alpha_q \right|^2 \right)} \right] \left(\alpha_q^* - \frac{D}{D \alpha_q} \right) f \left(q^{-1} \alpha_q, \alpha_q^* \right)$$

(H.10)

Using the basic integral \mathbb{S} on both sides of eqn. (H.10), yields:
$$\begin{split} &\mathbb{S}\left[\frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}}{E_{q}\left(q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)}\right]f\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) = \\ & \mathbb{S}D^{2}\alpha_{q}\left\{\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left[G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right]\right\} \\ & + \mathbb{S}\left[\frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)}{E_{q}\left(q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)}\right]\left(\alpha_{q}^{*}-\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right)f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right] \end{split}$$

(H.11)

Eqn. (H.11) is similar to the equation that was introduced by Arik and Coon [9] where the 1st term on the right hand side represents the boundary term [9] that vanishes at $|\alpha_q|^2 = [0]_q$ and at $|\alpha_q|^2 \rightarrow [\infty]_q$, where $[0]_q = 0$ and $[\infty]_q = (1-q)^{-1}$ are as defined in [9].

Then, eqn. (H-11) becomes:

(H.12)

But since,

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\|\alpha_{q}\right\rangle \left\langle \alpha_{q}\right\|$$
(H.13)

then, by applying eqn. (H.12) to eqn. (H.13) and using eqn. (G.8), one can get:

$$f(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = \mathbb{P}_q(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) \tag{H.14}$$

$$g(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = \|\alpha_q\rangle \langle \alpha_q\| \tag{H.15}$$

Hence,

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \! \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| = \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} g\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \tag{H.16}$$

Therefore, one can deduce that eqn. (H.13) takes the form:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \quad (\text{H.17})$$

The adjoint of eqn. (H.13) is given as:

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q} = \left(\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q}\right)^{\dagger} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \left\|\alpha_{q}\right\rangle \left\langle\alpha_{q}\right\| \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(H.18)

Then, the one-to-one correspondence for eqns. (H.17) and (H.18) in terms of the \mathbb{P}_q -representation can be deduced as:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{\rho}_{q} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \right] \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(H.19)

and,

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \tag{H.20}$$

respectively.

Similarly, the correspondence relations for $\hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{a}_q \hat{\rho}_q$ and $\hat{\rho}_q \hat{a}_q^{\dagger} \hat{a}_q$ can be derived by the same technique, but using:

$$F(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = G\left((1-q)|\alpha_q|^2\right) \left[f(q^{-1}\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)\right]\alpha_q$$
(H.21)

instead of eqn. (H.2).

Therefore,

$$F(q\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*) = G\left(q(1-q)|\alpha_q|^2\right) \left[f(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)\right](q\alpha_q)$$
(H.22)

Then, after some lengthy mathematical manipulations, the result becomes:

$$\begin{split} & \mathbb{S}\left[\frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}}{E_{q}\left(q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)}\right]f\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\left(q\alpha_{q}\right)\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)=\\ & \mathbb{S}D^{2}\alpha_{q}\left\{\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\left[G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\alpha_{q}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right]\right.\\ & \left.-G\left(q(1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)f\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right\}\\ & \left.+\mathbb{S}\left[\frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)}{E_{q}\left(q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)}\right]\left[\alpha_{q}^{*}-\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right]\alpha_{q}f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right. \end{split}$$
(H.23)

follows.

Similarly, the 1st term on the right hand side of eqn. (H.23) represents a boundary term [9] which also vanishes at $|\alpha_q|^2 = [0]_q$ and at $|\alpha_q|^2 \to [\infty]_q$. This can be proved in a similar manner a done by Arik and Coon [9] and as

Since $\mathbb{S} D^2 \alpha_q$ consists of an ordinary integration over the argument ϕ of the complex variable $\alpha_q = |\alpha_q| e^{i\phi}$ and a basic integration over $|\alpha_q|^2$, then one can write [9]:

$$\mathbb{S} D^{2} \alpha_{q} F\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}\right) = \frac{\mathbb{S}^{\left[\alpha\right]}_{q}}{\mathbb{S}^{\left[0\right]}_{q}} D\left(\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right) \int_{0}^{2\pi} d\phi F\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(H.24)

Letting

$$d\phi = \left(\frac{i}{2}\right) \frac{d\alpha_q^*}{\alpha_q^*} \tag{H.25}$$

$$F(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}) = \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \left\{ G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right) f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\alpha_{q} g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \right\}$$
$$-G\left(q(1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right) f\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(H.26)

and using the fact that for $\frac{D}{D\alpha_q} \left(\left| \alpha_q \right|^2 \right) = \alpha_q^*$, then

$$\frac{D}{D\alpha_q} = \alpha_q^* \frac{D}{D\left(\left|\alpha_q\right|^2\right)} \tag{H.27}$$

After some mathematical manipulations, eqn. (H.24) becomes:

$$\begin{split} & \mathbb{S} D^{2} \alpha_{q} \left\{ \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}} \left[G\left((1-q) \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right) f\left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \alpha_{q} g\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right] \\ & - G\left(q\left(1-q \right) \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right) f\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) g\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right\} = \left[\frac{i}{2} \right] \oint d\alpha_{q}^{*} \overset{[\infty]_{q}}{\underset{[0]_{q}}{\mathbb{S}} D} \\ & \cdot \left\{ \left[G\left((1-q) \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right) f\left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) - G\left(q\left(1-q \right) \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right) f\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right] \\ & \cdot \alpha_{q} g\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right\} \end{split}$$

But $\underset{0}{\overset{b}{\mathbb{S}}} DF(\alpha_q, \alpha_q^*)$ can be written as [9]:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \infty \\ q \\ \mathbb{S} \\ [0]_{q} \end{bmatrix}^{q} DF(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) = F(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}) \begin{vmatrix} \alpha_{q} \end{vmatrix}^{2} = \begin{bmatrix} \infty \end{bmatrix}_{q}$$
(H.29)
$$\begin{vmatrix} \alpha_{q} \end{vmatrix}^{2} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \end{bmatrix}_{q}$$

where,

$$F(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}) = \left[G\left((1-q)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) - G\left(q\left(1-q\right)\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)f\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\right]\alpha_{q}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(H.30)

Then, applying eqn. (H.29) to the right hand side of eqn. (H.28), and simplifying the result, yields:

$$\begin{split} & \mathbb{S} D^{2} \alpha_{q} \left\{ \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}} \left[G\left((1-q) \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right) f\left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \alpha_{q} g\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right] \\ & - G\left(q\left(1-q \right) \left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} \right) g\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) f\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \right\} = \\ & \left[\frac{i}{2} \right] \oint d\alpha_{q}^{*} \left\{ F\left(\alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \left| \frac{\left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} = [\infty]_{q}}{\left| \alpha_{q} \right|^{2} = [0]_{q}} \right\} = 0 \end{split}$$

(H.31)

The notation \oint represents a closed contour integration on the circle $\left|\alpha_q\right|^2$.

The term on the right hand side of eqn. (H.31) vanishes for $|\alpha_q|^2 = [0]_q$ and for

$$\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2} \rightarrow [\infty]_{q}$$
 as in ref. [9].

Therefore, eqn. (H.23) becomes:

$$\begin{split} &\mathbb{S}\left[\frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}}{E_{q}\left(q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)}\right]f\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)\left(\alpha_{q}\right)\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) = \\ &\mathbb{S}\left[\frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}g\left(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right)}{E_{q}\left(q\left|\alpha_{q}\right|^{2}\right)}\right]\left(\alpha_{q}^{*}-\frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right)\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}\right)f\left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \end{split}$$

(H.32)

But, since

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\hat{a}_{q}\hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2}\alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \mathbb{P}_{q}(\alpha_{q},\alpha_{q}^{*})(\alpha_{q})\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger}\|\alpha_{q}\rangle\langle\alpha_{q}\|$$
(H.33)

then, by applying eqn. (H.32) to eqn. (H.33), and using eqn. (G.8), one can deduce that eqn. (H.33) takes the form:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} \hat{\rho}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \|\alpha_{q}\rangle \langle \alpha_{q} \| \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}} \right] \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q} \right) \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(H.34)

The adjoint of eqn. (H.34) is:

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} = \frac{1}{\pi} \mathbb{S} \frac{D^{2} \alpha_{q}}{E_{q}(\sigma)} \left\| \alpha_{q} \right\rangle \! \left\langle \alpha_{q} \right\| \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D \alpha_{q}^{*}} \right] \! \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*} \right) \mathbb{P}_{q} \left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1} \alpha_{q}^{*} \right)$$
(H.35)

Then, the one-to-one correspondence relations for eqns. (H.34) and (H.35) in terms of the \mathbb{P}_q -representation become:

$$\hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} \hat{\rho}_{q} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q}^{*} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}}\right] \left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(q^{-1} \alpha_{q}, \alpha_{q}^{*}\right)$$
(H.36)

and

$$\hat{\rho}_{q} \hat{a}_{q}^{\dagger} \hat{a}_{q} \rightarrow \left[\alpha_{q} - \frac{D}{D\alpha_{q}^{*}}\right] \left(q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \mathbb{P}_{q}\left(\alpha_{q}, q^{-1}\alpha_{q}^{*}\right) \tag{H.37}$$

respectively.



[1] T. Ernst;

"A Comprehensive Treatment of q-Calculus"; Springer, Basel, 2012.

- [2] G. Gassper and M. Rahman;
 "Encyclopedia of Mathematics and Its Applications: Basic Hypergeometric Series";
 Second Edition, Cambridge University Press, 2004, pp. 1-37.
- [3] V. Kac and P. Cheung;

"Quantum Calculus";

Springer, New York, 2002.

[4] F. H. Jackson;

"Generalization of the Differential Operative Symbol with an Extended Form of Boole's Equations";

Mess. Math., Vol. 38 (1909) 57-62.

[5] F. H. Jackson;

"q-Difference Equations";

Am. J. Math., Vol. 32, No. 4 (1910), 305-314.

[6] R.D. Carmichael;

"The General Theory of Linear q-Difference Equations";

Am. J. Math., Vol. 34, No. 2 (1912) 147-168.

[7] I. E. Tamm;

"The Relativistic Interaction of Elementary Particles";

J. Phys. USSR, Vol. 9, No. 6 (1945) 449-465.

[8] S. M. Dancoff;

"Non-adiabatic Meson Theory of Nuclear Forces";

Phys. Rev., Vol. 78, No. 4 (1950) 382-385; as cited by ref. [38].

[9] M. Arik and D. D. Coon;

"Hilbert Space of Analytic Functions and Generalized Coherent States"; J. Math. Phys., Vol. 17, No. 4 (1976) 524-527.

[10] Ph. Feinsilver;

"Commutators, Anti-Commutators and Eulerian Calculus";

Rocky Mountain J. Math., Vol. 12 (1982) 171-184.

[11] Ph. Feinsilver;

"Discrete Analogues of the Heisenberg-Weyl Algebra";

Mh. Math., Vol. 104, Issue 2 (1987) 89-108.

[12] L.C. Biedenharn;

"The Quantum Group $SU_q(2)$ and a q-Analogue of the Boson Operators";

J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 22, No.11 (1989) L873-L878.

[13] A.J. Macfarlane;

"On q-Analogues of the Quantum Harmonic Oscillator and the Quantum Group $SU(2)_a$ ";

J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 22, No. 1 (1989) 4581-4588.

[14] C. Quesne;

"New q-Deformed Coherent States with an Explicitly Known Resolution of Unity";

J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 35, No. 43 (2002) 9213-9226.

- [15] C. Quesne, K. A. Penson and V. M. Tkachuk
 "Maths. Type q-Deformed Coherent States for q >1";
 Phys. Lett. A, Vol. 313, Issues 1-2 (2003) 29-36.
- [16] M. Chaichian and A. Demichev; *"Introduction to Quantum Groups*";
 World Scientific Publishing Co. Pte. Ltd., Singapore, 1996, pp. 111-151.

- [17] D. Bonatsos and C. Daskaloyannis;
 "Quantum Groups and Their Applications in Nuclear Physics";
 Prog. Part. Nucl. Phys., Vol. 43 (1999), 537-618.
- [18] V. V. Borzov, E. V. Damaskinsky and S. B. Yegorov;
 "Some Remarks on the Representations of the Generalized Deformed Oscillator Algebra";
 ArXiv:q-alg/9509022v1 20 Sep 1995 available at:

http://arxiv.org/pdf/q-alg/9509022.pdf

[19] P. N. Swamy;

"q-Deformed Fermions";

Eur. Phys. J. B, Vol. 50 (2006) 291-294.

[20] P. N. Swamy;

"q-Deformed Fermions: Algebra, Fock Space and Thermodynamics"; Int. J. Mod. Phys. B, Vol. 20, Issue 18 (2006) 2537-2550.

- [21] A. Lavagno, A. M. Scarfone and P. N. Swamy;
 "q-Deformed Structures and Generalized Thermodynamics";
 Rep. Math. Phys., Vol. 55, Issue 3 (2005) 423-433.
- [22] H. Song, S. Ding and I. An *"Statistical Mechanical Properties of q-Oscillator System"*;
 J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 26 (1993) 5197-5205.
- [23] T. Birol and O. E. Mustecaphoglu;
 "Phase Diffusion of a q-Deformed Oscillator";
 Symmetry, Vol. 1, Issue 2 (2009) 240-251.

[24] P. N. Swamy;

"Deformed Heisenberg Algebra: Origin of q-Calculus"; Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, A328, Issue 1-2 (2003) 145-153.

[25] D. G. Caldi;

"q-Deformations of the Heisenberg Equations of Motion"; in

Proceedings of the XXth International Conference on Differential Geometric Methods in Theoretical Physics, New York, Edited by S. Catto et al., June 3-7, 1991.

[26] J. Zhang

"A q-Deformed Uncertainty Relation";

Phys. Lett. A, Vol. 262, Issues 2-3 (199) 125-130.

[27] R. J. Finkelstein;

"Observable Properties of q-Deformed Physical Systems";

Lett. Math. Phys., Vol. 49, Issue 2 (1999) 105-114.

[28] C. R. Lee;

"On q-Analogues of the Quantum Harmonic Oscillator"; Chin. J. Phys., Vol. 28, No. 5 (1990) 381-385.

[29] X. Song;

"The Construction of the q-Analogues of the Harmonic Oscillator Operators from Ordinary Oscillator Operators";

J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 23, No. 16 (1990) L821-L825.

[30] D. Gangopadhyay;

"On Quantum q-Oscillators";

Acta Physica Polonica B, Vol. 22, No. 10 (1991) 819-828

[31] R. J. Finkelstein;

"q-Deformation of the Oscillator";

J. Math. Phys., Vol. 33, Issue 12 (1992) 4259-4266.

 [32] "Workshop on Harmonic Oscillators";
 Proceedings of a Conference held at the University of Maryland College Park, Maryland, NASA Conference Publication 3197, Edited by D. Han et al., 1993.

- [33] A. Lorek, A. Ruffing and J. Wess;
 "A q-Deformation of the Harmonic Oscillator";
 Z. Phys. C, Vol. 74, Issue 2 (1997) 369-377.
- [34] L. C. Kwek and C. H. Oh;
 "A General q-Oscillator Algebra";
 Lett. Math. Phys., Vol. 44, Issue 4 (1998) 273-281.
- [35] R. W. Gray and C. A. Nelson;
 "A Completeness Relation for the q-Analogue Coherent States by q-Integration";
 J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 23, No. 18 (1990) L945-L950.
- [36] A. Ballesteros, O. Civitarese and M. Reboiro;
 "Nonstandard q-Deformed Realization of the Harmonic Oscillator"; Phys. Rev. C, Vol. 72 (2005) 1 - 6.
- [37] V. V. Eremin and A. A. Meldianov;
 "The q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator, Coherent States, and the Uncertainty Relation";

Theor. Math. Phys., Vol. 147, No. 2 (2006) 709-715.

- [38] J. D. Bukweli-Kyemba and M. N. Hounkonnou;
 "Quantum Deformed Algebra: Coherent States and Special Functions";
 ArXiv: 1301.0116v1 [math-ph] 1 Jan. 2013 available at: <u>http://arxiv.org/abs/1301.0116</u>
- [39] E. Schrodinger;

Naturwissenschaften, Vol. 14 (1926) 664-666; as cited by ref. [42].

[40] R. J. Glauber;

"Photon Correlations";

Phys. Rev. Lett., Vol. 10, No. 3 (1963), 84-86.

[41] E. C. G. Sudarshan;

"Equivalence of Semiclassical and Quantum Mechanical Descriptions of Statistical Light Beams"; Phys. Rev. Lett., Vol. 10, No. 7 (1963) 277-279.

- [42] R. J. Glauber;*"Coherent and Incoherent States of the Radiation Field"*;Phys. Rev., Vol. 131, No. 6 (1963) 2766-2787.
- [43] R. J. Glauber;*"The Quantum Theory of Optical Coherence"*;Phys. Rev., Vol. 130, No. 6 (1963) 2529-2538.
- [44] P. Garruthers and M. Nieto;
 "Phase and Angle Variables in Quantum Mechanics";
 Rev. Mod. Phys., Vol. 40, No. 2 (1968) 411-440.
- [45] K. E. Cahill and R. J. Glauber;
 "Density Operator and Quasiprobability Distributions";
 Phys. Rev., Vol. 177, No. 5 (1969) 1882-1902.
- [46] K. E. Cahill and R. J. Glauber;
 "Ordered Expansions in Boson Amplitude Operators";
 Phys. Rev., Vol. 177, No. 5 (1969) 1857-1881.
- [47] V. V. Dodonov; *"Nonclassical States in Quantum Optics: a Squeezed Review of the first 75 Years*";
 J. Opt. B: Quantum Semiclassical Optics, Vol. 4 (2002) R1-R33.
- [48] H. Y. Fan and H. T. Nan;
 "Calculating the Density Operator from Diagonal Coherent State Representation";
 Commun. Theor. Phys., Vol. 4, No. 4 (1985) 483-490.

[49] L. I. Schiff;

"Quantum Mechanics";

Third Edition, Mc Graw-Hill, New York, 1968.

[50] E. Merzbacher;

"Quantum Mechanics";

Third Edition, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., New York, 1998.

[51] D. J. Griffiths;

"Introduction to Quantum Mechanics";

Second Edition, Pearson Education, Inc., New York, 2005.

[52] G. Iwata;

"Transformation Functions in the Complex Domain";

Prog. Theor. Phys., Vol. 6, No. 4 (1951) 524-528.

[53] V. V. Kuryshkin;

"On Some Generalization of Creation and Annihilation Operators in Quantum Theory (μ -quantization)";

Deposit no. 3936-3976 (Moscow: VINITI) (in Russian), 1976; as cited by ref. [47].

- [54] A. Jannussis, G. Brodimas, D. Sourlas and V. Zisis; *"Remarks on the q-Quantization"*;
 Lett. Nuovo Cimento, Vol. 30, No. 4 (1981) 123-127.
- [55] A. I. Solomon and J. Kartriel;
 "On q-Squeezed States";
 J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 23, No. 23 (1990) L1209-L1212; as cited by ref. [47].

- [56] J. Katriel and A. I. Solomon;
 "Generalized q-Bosons and Their Squeezed States";
 J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 24, No. 9 (1991) 2093-2105; as cited by ref. [47].
- [57] X. Meng and J. wang;
 "The q-Analogues of Squeezed States and Some Properties¹";
 Int. J. Theor. Phys., Vol. 46, No. 5 (2007) 1307-1317.
- [58] X. Jun, S. Jun, Y. Chun and L. Yu;
 "q-deformed Entangled States Representations and Some Applications";
 Commun. Theor. Phys., Vol. 55, No. 2 (2011) 227-231.
- [59] A. Capolupo, E. D. Giudice, V. Elia, R. Germano, E. Napoli, M. Niccoli,
 A. Tedeschi and G. Vitiello; *"Self-Similarity Properties of Nafionized and Filtered Water and Deformed Coherent States"*;

Int. J. Mod. Phys. B, Vol.28, Issue 3 (2014) 1450007.

- [60] R. L. M. Filho and W. Vogel; *"Nonlinear Coherent States"*;
 Phys. Rev. A, Vol. 54 (1996) 4560-4563; as cited by ref. [47].
- [61] V. I. Man'ko, G. Marmo, E.C. G. Sudarshan and F. Zaccaria;
 "f-Oscillators and Nonlinear Coherent States";
 Phys. Scr., Vol. 55, No. 5 (1997) 528-541.
- [62] P. Aniello, V. Man'ko, G. Marmo, S. Solimeno and F. Zaccaria;
 "On the Coherent States, Displacement Operators and Quasidistributions Associated with Deformed Quantum Oscillators";
 L. Ont. B: Opentum and Samialassiand Optics, Vol. 2, No. 6 (2000)

J. Opt. B: Quantum and Semiclassical Optics, Vol. 2, No. 6 (2000) 718-725.

- [63] S. T. Qiang and Z. Y. Jin;
 "Phase Properties of Nonlinear Coherent States";
 Commun. Theor. Phys., Vol. 38, No. 5 (2002) 606-610.
- [64] R. Roknizadeh and M. K. Tavassoly; *"The Construction of Some Important Classes of Generalized Coherent States: the Nonlinear Coherent States Method"*;
 J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 37, No. 33 (2004) 8111.
- [65] M.K. Tavassoly;
 "New Nonlinear Coherent States Associated to Inverse Bosonic and f-Deformed Ladder Operators";
 J. Phys. A: Math. Theor. , Vol. 41, No. 28 (2008) 1-17.
- [66] O. Abbasi and M. K. Tavassoly;
 "Superposition of Two Nonlinear Coherent States π/2 out of Phase and Their Nonclassical Properties"
 Opt. Commun., Vol. 282, Issue 18 (2009) 3737-3745.
- [67] M. K. Tavassoly and A. Parsaiean;
 "Quantum Statistical Properties of Some New Classes of Intelligent States Associated with Special Quantum Systems";
 J. Phys. A: Math. Theor., Vol. 40, No. 32 (2007) 9905.
- [68] O. Sanchez and J. Recamier;
 "Nonlinear Coherent States for Nonlinear Systems";
 J. Phys. A: Math. Theor., Vol. 44, No. 14 (2011) 1-18.
- [69] V. C. Ruby and M. Senthilvelan;
 "An Observation of Quadratic Algebra, Dual Family of Nonlinear Coherent States and Their Nonclassical Properties, in the Generalized Isotonic Oscillator";
 J. Math. Phys., Vol. 53, Issue 8 (2012) 082102.

[70] Z. Yongxin;

"A New Kind of Even and Odd Nonlinear Coherent States and Their Quantum Statistical Properties";

Moder. Appl. Sc., Vol. 6, No. 4 (2012) 112-116.

- [71] I. Aremua, M. N. Hounkonnou and E. Baloitcha;
 "On Nonlinear Coherent States Properties for Electron-Phonon Dynamics";
 J. Nonlinear Math. Phys., Vol. 21, No. 1 (2014) 89-119.
- [72] R. R. Ancheyta, C. G. Gutierrez and J. Recamier;
 "Photon Added Nonlinear Coherent States for a One Mode Field in a Kerr Medium";

J. Opt. Soc. Am. B, Vol. 31, Issue 1 (2014) 38-44.

- [73] R. L. Pena, V. I. Man'ko, G. Marmo, E.C. G. Sudarshan and F. Zaccaria;
 "Photon Distribution In Nonlinear Coherent States";
 J. Russ. L. R., Vol. 21, No. 4 (2000) 305-316.
- [74] V. Man'ko, G. Marmo, A. Porzio, S. Solimeno and F. Zaccaria;
 "Trapped Ions In Laser Fields: A Benchmark for Deformed Quantum Oscillators";
 Phys. Rev. A, Vol. 62, Issue 5 (2000) 053407-1-053407-13
- [75] P. A. M. Dirac; *"The Principles of Quantum Mechanics"*;
 Fourth Edition, Oxford University Press, 1958, pp. 84-88
- [76] G. Ghosh, B. D. Roy and M. Dey; "On the Single-Particle Schrödinger Fluid";

J. Phys. G: Nucl. Phys., Vol. 3, No. 8 (1977) 1077-1084.

[77] G. J. Milburn;

"Quantum and Classical Liouville Dynamics of the Anharmonic Oscillator"; Phys. Rev. A, Vol. 33, No. 1 (1986) 674-685. [78] M. A. Z. Habeeb;

"Fluid-Dynamical Interpretation of Quantum Damped Oscillators";

J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 20, No. 17 (1987) 5929-5934.

[79] M. Jafarpour and T. Tahamtan;
"Octic Anharmonic Oscillators: Perturbed Coherent States and the Classical Limit";
Int. J. Theor. Phys., Vol. 48 (2009) 487-496.

[80] M. Hillery, R. F. O'connell, M. O. Scully and E. P. Wigner;
"Distribution Functions in Physics Fundamentals";
Phys. Rep., Vol. 106, No. 3 (1984) 121-167.

- [81] K. Takahashi;
 "Distribution Functions in Classical and Quantum Mechanics";
 Progr. Theor. Phys. Suppl., Vol. 98 (1989) 109-156.
- [82] N. Lu, S. Zhu and G. S. Agarwal;
 "Comparative Study of various Quasiprobability Distributions in Different Models of Correlated-Emission Lasers";
 Phys. Rev. A; Vol. 40, No. 1 (1989) 258-268.
- [83] W. Zhang, D. Feng and R. Gilmore; *"Coherent States: Theory and Some Applications"*;
 Rev. Mod. Phys., Vol. 62, No. 4 (1990) 867-927.
- [84] H. Moya-cessa, J.R. Moya-Cessa, L. R. Berriel-valdos and R. Juarez- Amaro; *"Introduction to Quantum Optics: Quasiprobability Distribution Functions";* Some Topics of Mod. Opt., Vol. 1, No. 1 (2008) 283-313.
- [85] C. K. Zachos, D. B. Fairlie and T. L. Curtright;
 "Quantum Mechanics In Phase Space An Overview with Selected Papers";
 World Scientific Publishing Co. Pte. Ltd., Singapore, 2005, pp. 235-243.

[86] W. B. Case;

"Wigner Function and Weyl Transformations for Pedestrians" Am. J. Phys., Vol. 76, No. 10 (2008) 937-946.

[87] V. Buzek;

"Dynamics of a q-Analogue of the Quantum Harmonic Oscillator";

J. Mod. Opt., Vol. 38, No. 4 (1990) 801-812.

[88] S. V. Shabanov;

"The Poisson Bracket for q-Deformed Systems";

J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 25, No. 22 (1992) L1245-L1250.

[89] S. V. Shabanov;

"Quantum and Classical Mechanics of q-Deformed Systems";

J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 26, No. 11 (1993) 2583-2606.

- [90] M. Chaichian and A. P. Demichev;
 "q-Deformed Path Integral";
 Phys. Lett. B, Vol. 320, Issues 3-4 (1994) 273-280.
- [91] V. I. Man'ko, G. Marmo, S. Solimeno and F. Zaccaria;
 "Physical Nonlinear Aspects of Classical and Quantum q-Oscillators";
 Int. J. Mod. Phys. A, Vol. 8 (1993) 121-167.
- [92] V. I. Man'ko and R. V. Mendes;
 "On the Nonlinearity Interpretation of q- and f-Deformation and Some Applications";
 - J. Phys. A: Math. Gen., Vol. 31 (1998) 6037-6044.
- [93] J. L. Gruver;

"q-Deformed Dynamics of q-Deformed Oscillators"; Phys. lett. A, Vol. 254, Issues 1-2 (1999) 1-6.

- [94] E. I. Jafarov, S. Lievens, S. M. Nagiyev and J. V. der Jeugt; *"The Wigner Function of a q-Deformed Harmonic Oscillator Model"*;
 J. Phys. A: Math. Theor., Vol. 40, No. 20 (2007) 5427.
- [95] J. Batouli and M. El Baz;
 "Classical Interpretation of a Deformed Quantum Oscillator";
 Found. Phys., Vol. 44, Issue 2 (2014) 105-113.
- [96] A. Lavagno, A. M. Scarfone, P. N. Swamy;
 "Classical and Quantum q-Deformed Physical Systems";
 Eur. Phys. J. C, Vol. 47, Issue 1 (2006) 253-261.
- [97] A. Eftekharzadeh and B. L. Hu;
 "The Classical and Commutative Limit of Noncommutative Quantum Mechanics: a Super * Wigner-Moyal Equation";
 Braz. J. Phys., Vol. 35, No. 2A (2005) 333-341.
- [98] F. Benatti and L. Gouba;
 "Classical Limits of Quantum Mechanics on a Non-Commutative Configuration Space";

J. Math. Phys., Vol. 54, Issue 6 (2013) 063508

[99] F. Benatti and L. Gouba;

"Interpretation of the Classical Limits of Quantum Mechanics on a Non-Commutative Configuration Space"; ArXiv: 1409.5255v1 [quant-ph] 18 Sep 2014 available at: http://arxiv.org/abs/1409.5255

[100] H. Goldstein, C. Poole and J. Safko; "Classical Mechanics";

Third Edition, Addison Wesley, New York, 2000.

[101] F. Strocchi;

"Complex Coordinates and Quantum Mechanics"; Rev. Mod. Phys., Vol. 38, No. 1 (1966) 36-40.

- [102] J. R. Klauder and E. C. G. Sudarshan; *"Fundamental of Quantum Optics"*W. A. Benjamin Inc., New York, 1968, pp. 105-135.
- [103] M. M. Nieto and L. M. Simmons;
 "Coherent States for General Potentials. I. Formalism";
 Phys. Rev. D, Vol. 20, No. 6 (1979) 1321-1331.
- [104] M. Lewenstein, A. Sanpera and M. Pospiech;
 "Quantum Optics: an Introduction (Short Version)";
 University of Hannover, Germany, 2006, pp. 1-39.
- [105] W. Vogel and D. G. Welsch;"Quantum Optics";Wiely-VCH Verlag GmbH & Co. KGaA, Weinheim, 2006, pp. 73-88.
- [106] J. P. Gazeau;*"Coherent States in Quantum Physics";*Wiley-VCH Verlag GmbH & Co. KGaA, Weinheim, 2009, pp. 3-44.
- [107] H. J. Carmichael;

"Statistical Methods in Quantum Optics 1";

Second Edition, Springer, New York, 2002, pp. 75-117

[108] M. Weissbluth;

"Photon-Atom Interactions";

Academic Press, INC., New York, 1989, pp. 153-175.

[109] W. H. Louisell;

"Quantum Statistical Properties of Radiation"; John Wiley & Sons, New York, 1990, pp. 88-155. [110] V. I. Man'ko;

"Introduction to Quantum Optics"; AIP Conf. Proc., Vol. 365 (1996) 337-371.

[111] D. F. Walls and G. J. Milburn;*"Quantum Optics"*;Springer, Berlin, 2008, p. 101

[112] S. M. Barnett and P. M. Radmore; *"Methods in Theoretical Quantum Optics"*;
Clarendon Press., Oxford, 1997, pp. 265-268

[113] G. Vinod;

"Studies in Quantum Oscillators and q-Deformed Quantum Mechanics";

PhD. Thesis, Dep. Phys., Cochin University of Science and Technology, Kochi-22, Kerala, India, 1997.

[114] S. Nalci;

"Exactly Solvable Q-extended Nonlinear Classical and Quantum Models";

MSc. Thesis, Dep. Math., Graduate School of Engineering and Sciences of Izmir Institute of Technology, 2011

[115] A. Lavagno and G. Gervino;

"Quantum Mechanics in q-Deformed Calculus";

J. Phys., Conference Series 174, No. 1 (2009) 1-8

[116] A. Lavagno;

"Deformed Quantum Mechanics and q-Hermitian Operators";

J. Phys. A: Math. Theor., Vol. 41, No. 24 (2008) 1-9.

[117] A. Lavagno, A. M. Scarfone and P. N. Swamy;
"*Classical q-Deformed Dynamics*";
Eur. Phys. J. B, Vol. 50 (2006) 251-254.

[118] R. P. Malik;

"Lagrangian Formulation of Some q-Deformed Systems"; Phys. Lett. B, Vol. 316, Issues 2-3 (1993) 257-263.

[119] W. Chung and K. Chung;

"q-Deformed Classical Mechanics";

Phys. Lett. A, Vol. 191, Issues 1-2 (1994) 71-76.

[120] A. Isar and W. Scheid;

"Deformation of Quantum Oscillator and of its Interaction with Environment"; Physica A: Statistical Mechanics and its Applications, Vol. 335, Issues 1-2 (2004), 79-93.

[121] A. Isar;

"Deformed Open Quantum Systems";

Proceedings of the International Workshop, Bucharest, Romania, 7-12, Edited by A. C. Mueller et al., Sep. 2003, pp. 176-177.

- [122] J. P. Gazeau, M. C. Baldiotti and D.M. Gitman;
 "Coherent State Quantization and Moment Problem";
 Acta Polytechnica, Vol. 50, No. 3 (2010) 30-36.
- [123] F. H. Jackson;

"Basic Integration";

Quart. J. Math., Vol. 2, No. 1 (1951) 1-16.

[124] R. Parthasarathy and R. Sridhar;

"Diagonal Representation of Density Matrix Using q-Coherent States";

Proceeding of Institute of Mathematics of NAS of Ukraine, Vol. 50, Part 2. (2004) 909-914.

[125] S. Wolfram;

"The Mathematica Book";

Fifth Edition, Wolfram Media (2003).

[126] R. R. Puri;

"Mathematical Methods of Quantum Optics"; Springer, Berlin, 2001, pp. 48-50.

- [127] W. Magnus, A. Karrass and D. Solitar;
 "Combinatorial Group Theory";
 Second Edition, Dover Publications, Inc., New York, 1977, p. 372
- [128] Z. Avetisyan and R. Verch;
 "Explicit Harmonic and Spectral Analysis in Bianchi I-VII type Cosmologies";
 Class. Quant. Grav., Vol. 30, No. 15 (2013) 1-33
- [129] O. B. Zaslavskii, Y. A. Sinitsyn and V. M. Tsukernik; *"Time Evolution of a Quantized Anharmonic Oscillator and Its Spin Analogue"*;
 Sov. Phys. JETP, Vol. 64, No. 1(1986) 90-95

[130] G. Vitiello;

"Fractals, Coherent States and Self-Similarity Induced Non-commutative Geometry";

Phys. Lett. A, Vol. 376, Issue 37 (2012) 2527-2532.

[131] P. Ajanapon;

"Classical Limit of the Path Integral Formulation of Quantum Mechanics in Terms of the Density matrix"; Am. J. Phys., Vol. 55, No. 2 (1987) 159-163



جمهورية العراق وزارة التعليم العالي والبحث العلمي جامعة النهرين كلية العلوم قسم الفيزياء

الحالات الكمية المتشاكهة المشوهة وبعض تطبيقاتها

أطروحة مقدمة الى كلية العلوم / جامعة النهرين وهي جزء من متطلبات نيل درجة الدكتوراه في الفيزياء

من قبل

أحمد شاكر محمود ياس

بكالوريوس علوم فيزياء-كلية العلوم / جامعة النهرين (١٩٩٨) ماجستير علوم فيزياء-كلية العلوم / جامعة النهرين (٢٠٠١)

جمادي الأولى

\$12 TV

شباط

۲۰۱۶ م

المُلخَص

لقد وَجَدَ مفهوم التشوه من النوع q طريقه الى العديد من التطبيقات في حقول الفيزياء المختلفة، مثل البصريات الكمية، الفيزياء الذرية، فيزياء الحالة الصلبة، الفيزياء النووية وعلم الكونيات، مما شجع على تعميم فكرة هذا النوع من التشوه لتشمل مفاهيم أخرى مثل الحالات المتشاكهة المعروفة في حقل البصريات الكمية. هذا من جانب ومن جانب أخر فأن تفسير المعنى الفيزيائي للتشوه من النوع q يبقى المشكلة الأبرز في جميع هذه التطبيقات.

إن العمل الحالي هو محاولة لتطبيق مفهوم الحالات المتشاكهة المشوهة من أجل أيجاد حل لمسألة تفسير المعنى الفيزيائي هذه، حيث تم أستخدام المتذبذب التوافقي الكمي ذي التشوه من النوع q ببعد الواحد كنموذج لتطبيق هذه المنهجية في أستخدام الحالات المتشاكهة المشوهة لحل هذه المسألة.

في العمل الحالي ، تم أبتداءاً أشتقاق معادلة ليوفل الكلاسيكية للمتذبذب التوافقي الكلاسيكي ذو التشوه من النوع q ببعد واحد في حالتي فضاء الطور المشوه وغير المشوه، حيث تم حل المعادلة آنفة الذكر بأستخدام ''طريقة الخصائص'' المعروفة في حل المعادلات التفاضلية الجزئية التي تعطي دالة توزيع الأحتمالية الكلاسيكية لهذا المتذبذب في فضاء الطور. ثم تم تحري سلوك هذه الدالة في فضاء الطور بأستخدام طريقة حاسوبية لتوضيح تفاصيل هذا السلوك من خلال بناء برنامج حاسوبي بأستخدام حزمة البرمجيات "لمعادلة المتذبذب في فضاء الطور. ثم تم تحري سلوك هذه الدالة في فضاء الطور بأستخدام طريقة الكلاسيكية لهذا المتذبذب في فضاء الطور. ثم تم تحري سلوك هذه الدالة في فضاء الطور بأستخدام طريقة الكلاسيكية لهذا المتذبذب في فضاء الطور. ثم تم تحري سلوك هذه الدالة في فضاء الطور بأستخدام طريقة ماسوبية لتوضيح تفاصيل هذا السلوك من خلال بناء برنامج حاسوبي بأستخدام حزمة البرمجيات "لمعاه الموسية"

وعلى المستوى الكمي فقد تم في العمل الحالي إعادة صياغة معادلة هايز نبيرك للحركة لمؤثر الكثافة للمتذبذب التوافقي الكمي غير المشوه ببعد واحد بدلالة دوال توزيع شبه الأحتمالية المعروفة، لتمثيل المتذبذب ذو التشوه من النوع q في فضائي الطور المشوه وغير المشوه. ساعد هذا الأمر في الحصول على معادلة ليوفل الكمية للمتذبذب في هذين الفضائين. تم التوصل للغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلات ليوفل الكمية بتعميم الطريقة للغايات التقليدية المستخدمة في الحالة غير المشو هة الى الحالة المعروفة. بالاضافة الكمية بتعميم الطريقة للغايات التقليدية المستخدمة في الحالة غير المشو هة الى الحالة المشوهة. بالاضافة الكمية بتعميم الطريقة للغايات التقليدية المستخدمة في الحالة غير المشو هة الى الحالة المشو هة. بالاضافة الكمية بتعميم الطريقة للغايات التقليدية المستخدمة في الحالة غير المئو همة الى الحالة المشو هة. بالاضافة الى ذلك، فقد تم في العمل الحالي توظيف تقريب جديد لتحري الغاية الكلاسيكية لمعادلة ليوفل الكمية لهذا المن في الحديث الى ذلك، فقد تم في العمل الحالي توظيف تقريب جديد لتحري الغاية الكلاسيكية لمعادلة ليوفل الكمية لهذا المنو في الى ذلك، فقد تم في الحالة عاليات الكلاسيكية لمعادلة ليوفل الكمية لهذا المن ذلك، فقد تم في العمل الحالي توظيف تقريب جديد لتحري الغاية الكلاسيكية لمعادلة ليوفل الكمية لهذا المتذبذب المتنات التائج المترشحة عن الأشتقاقات الرياضية للغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلات ليوفل الكمية لهذا المتذبذب أربيت النتائج المترشحة عن الأشتقاقات الرياضية للغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلات ليوفل الكمية لهذا المتذبذب أربيت النتائج للمترشحة عن الأشتقاقات الرياضية الغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلات ليوفل الكمية لهذا المتذبذب أربي وكوون). أشرية ذات النتائج المترشحة عن الأشتقاقات الرياضية الغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلات ليوفل الكمي غير المنود بن هذه النتائي هذه النائية الما منود المود المود المود المود المود المنود بنائية من فرا المود المودية الغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلات ليوفل الكمية لهذا الماديذب بأربي هذه النائية كشفت مع نتائج البر امجيات الحاسوبية المعدة بأستخدام أمود المود مي معلومات أكثر تفصيلاً

تخص المعنى الفيزيائي للتشوه من النوع q لهذا المتذبذب، وتضمن ملاحظة أن المتذبذب ذي التشوه من النوع q بالبعد الواحد يمكن إعتباره مكافئاً لمتذبذب لاخطي يتصف بمعامل لاخطية يعتمد على \hbar . لوحظ أيضاً بأن سلوك الغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلة ليوفل الكمية لهذا المتذبذب يتصف بأسكال دوامية في فضاء الطور حيث با لأمكان مقارنتها مع نظير اتها الكلاسيكية لأظهار التفاوت في السلوك. ويمكن أعتبار هذا السلوك ذي الشكل الدوامي ظاهرة عامة مرتبطة بالتشوه من النوع q، حيث معامل لاخطية يعتمد على معام النوع م أيضاً بأن سلوك الغايات الكلاسيكية لمعادلة ليوفل الكمية لهذا المتذبذب يتصف بأسكال دوامية في فضاء الطور حيث با لأمكان مقارنتها مع نظير اتها الكلاسيكية لأظهار التفاوت في السلوك. ويمكن أعتبار هذا السلوك ذي الشكل الدوامي ظاهرة عامة مرتبطة بالتشوه من النوع q، حيث يكون المتذبذب اللاتوافقي حالة خاصة.

تم التوصل أيضاً من خلال نتائج العمل الحالي إلى وجود مؤشرات على طبيعة لاتبادلية لهندسة فضاء الطور للمتذبذب ذي التشوه من النوع q الذي تمت در استه.